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Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 4.1
6 October 2020

TITLE: Confirmation of Minutes - 24 June 2020
ID: A1358805
From: Judith Graham, Corporate Excellence P/A

Recommendation

That the minutes of the Audit & Risk Subcommittee meeting held on 24 June 2020 to be
confirmed as a true and correct record.

Attachments/Nga tapirihanga
Nil

Authorised by Group Manager

Name: Bruce Howse, Group Manager - Corporate Excellence,
Title: Group Manager - Corporate Excellence
Date:
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020

TITLE: 2019/20 Annual Report and Deloitte Audit Report
ID: A1362628
From: Simon Crabb, Finance Manager

Executive summary/Whakarapopototanga

The Deloitte Audit Report on the matters arising from their 2019/20 end of year audit is attached as
Attachment One. Peter Gulliver (Deloitte Audit Partner) will attend the September Subcommittee
meeting to discuss this report.

The independent member of council, Geoff Copstick, has performed a review of the 2020 Annual
Report and has provided a written report summarising his observations, attached as Attachment Two.

The Summary 2020 Annual Report and the Full 2020 Annual Report are attached as Attachment Three
and Four respectively. The final formatting and layout of these documents is still being performed.

The final signed audit opinions will be released upon council’s adoption of the Summary and the full
Annual Report on 20 October 2020, and Deloitte receiving the signed letters of compliance and
representation.

Recommendation(s)

1. That the report ‘2019/20 Annual Report and Deloitte Audit Report’ by Simon Crabb,
Finance Manager and dated 10 September 2020, be received.

2. That the Subcommittee endorse a recommendation to council that the Summary
Annual Report, the Full Annual Report, and the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2020 be adopted.

Background/Tuhinga
2019-20 Financial Result

Council posted a total comprehensive revenue and expense surplus for the 2019/20 financial year of
$5.38M. At the August 2020 council meeting, the draft net surplus after transfers from/(to) special
reserves presented to council was $40K.

The movement from the draft result to the total comprehensive revenue and expense reported in the
2020 Report is explained in Table One over the page.
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6 October 2020

Table One

2019/20 DRAFT net surplus after transfers to reserves 40,311

reported to Council in August 2020

Add back the transfers to Special Reserves as these do not form part of the statutory 5787 233

reporting format e

Add back the transfer to reserves approved by Council in August as they do not form part of

the statutory reporting format:
- COVID-19 Reinstatement Reserve 1,700,000
- Opex Reserve 467,695

Add back non-cash gains/(losses) on the revaluation of council’s assets:
- Investment properties & vested assets 1,149,349
- Owner occupied land & buildings 394,411
- Carbon credits 156,267
- NEST Loan interest 43,775
- Infrastructure assets (1,253,564)
- Forestry holdings (107,000)

Total Comprehensive Revenue & Expense - $5.378 477

as reported in the 2019/20 Annual Report

Deloitte Audit Report

The following two matters were included as part of the Audit findings commentary in the Deloitte
Audit report (refer Attachment Three) and will be discussed further by the Audit partner (Peter
Gulliver) at the Subcommittee meeting.

1. Restatement of Prior Year Infrastructure values

During this year’s annual reporting programme it was discovered that several land parcels
associated with the Whangarei Detention Dam were incorrectly accounted for in the last
valuation (2017) of the dam supplied to NRC by its independent valuer.

Council holds an easement to use a number of land parcels associated with the dam, and in
2017 these parcels were incorrectly valued based on full ownership, while a small amount
(558K) of valid land was excluded from the valuation. The overall impact was a net
overstatement in the value of the Dam in 2017 of $2.9M.

This overstatement was corrected in the 2020 financial statements by reducing the opening
balance of the Dam assets and council’s equity, by $2.9M in the 2019 financial figures (the
comparative column).

To avoid this oversight happening again, a record of title will be required to be held on file by
the department responsible for engaging an independent valuer. Furthermore, all valuation
reports will be confirmed as correct, with reference to any title records, by the council officer
responsible for the asset valuation.
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2. Investment Property Valuations
a. Independent Valuation of the Kensington Development Project

In determining the market value of the Kensington Development Project at 30 June 2020,
councils independent valuers (Telfer Young) used an approach that calculated a completed
development value of $11,950,000 inclusive of the sales proceeds of the childcare site.

The budgeted cost of project is $15,476,800 (including land, construction and holding costs),
which implies that in the view of Telfer Young the value of the completed project is going to
be less than overall cost of the project.

b. Independent Valuation of the Kaipara Service Centre Development Project

Telfer Young valued the Kaipara Service Centre Development Project at 30 June 2020 at $185K
reflecting the costs of demolition and site clearance only, disregarding the development costs
spent to date of approximately $745K.

Telfer Young also stated in their valuation report that the return from investment of the
Kaipara Service Centre project “is well below what would be required by an investor in this
location”.

In reference to 2a and 2b, Deloitte make the point that property valuations are based on a
number of assumptions and professional judgement. Deloitte suggest council may want to
consider engaging with Telfer Young directly to fully understand their assumptions and the
approach that underpins the values attributed to these two development projects.

Considerations

Options

No. | Option Advantages Disadvantages

1 Adopt Facilitate the adoption None
and public availability of
the 2020 Annual Report
and 2020 Summary
Annual Report within the
statutory timeframes set
out in the LGA 2002.

2 Do not Adopt The annual report can be | A special council meeting
amended if required would need to be called
before 31 October 20 to
adopt a revised 2020
Annual Report and
comply with the Local
Electoral Act 2001 and
the Local Government Act
2002.

The staff’'s recommended option is 1.
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
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2. Significance and engagement

In relation to section 79 of the Local Government Act 2002, this decision is considered to be of
low significance when assessed against council’s Significance and Engagement Policy because it
has previously been consulted on and provided for in council’s Long Term Plan and/or is part of
council’s day to day activities. This does not mean that this matter is not of significance to
tangata whenua and/or individual communities, but that council is able to make decisions
relating to this matter without undertaking further consultation or engagement.

3. Policy, risk management and legislative compliance

Endorsement of the recommendations is consistent with sections 98 and 99 of the Local
Government Act 2002 regarding the timeframes for adoption and public availability of the
annual report and the requirement for an audit report to be included in both the full Annual
Report and Summary Annual Report.

Further considerations

Being a purely administrative matter, financial implications, community views, and Maori
impact statement are not applicable.

Attachments/Nga tapirihanga

Attachment 1: 2019/20 Deloitte Audit Report § &
Attachment 2: 2019/20 Geoff Copstick Commentary § &
Attachment 3: 2019/20 Annual Report Summary 3 &
Attachment 4: 2019/20 Annual Report § &

Authorised by Group Manager

Name: Bruce Howse, Group Manager - Corporate Excellence,
Title: Group Manager - Corporate Excellence
Date:
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Deloitte.

Northland Regional Council

Report to the Audit and Risk Subcommittee

for the year ended 30 June 2020
23 September 2020
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee

6 October 2020

A. Partner introduction

We are pleased to present this report to the Audit & Risk Committee on the
consolidated group financial statements and groups of activity statement of
Northland Regional Council ('NRC' or ‘Council”) and its subsidiaries (‘Group’) for
the year ended 30 June 2020..

We have substantially completed our audit subject to the satisfactory resolution

of the remaining outstanding items. As of the date of this report, the most

significant outstanding items are :

*  Procedures relating to the final disclosures in the financial statements and
annual report;

*  Completion of internal quality review procedures;

*  Appropriate procedures relating to subsequent events up to the date of our
audit opinion;

* Receipt of the signed management representation letter; and

*  Adoption of the financial statements and annual report by Council

Included in this report are the matters arising from our audit which we consider
appropriate for the attention of the Audit & Risk Subcommittee. These matters

have been discussed with management and their comments have been included
where appropriate.

This year's audit scope was consistent with the prior year.

As previously communicated, and as mandated by the OAG, our audit report will
include an emphasis of matter (EOM) paragraph in relation to how Covid-19 has
impacted the Group’s financial results. Management has included several
disclosures within the financial statements to explain the key impacts, which
mainly relate to the various investment property and owner occupied property
valuations. The EOM paragraph within our audit report will make reference to
these disclosures.

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1

We look forward to the Committee meeting on 30th September 2020 where we
will have the opportunity to discuss this report. In the interim, should you require
clarification on any matter in this report please do not hesitate to contact us.

We would like to take this opportunity to extend our appreciation to
management and staff for their assistance and cooperation during the course of
our audit.

Peter Gulliver, Partner

for Deloitte Limited

Appointed Auditor on behalf of the Office of the Auditor General
Auckland | 23 September 2020

ID: A1370066
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee
6 October 2020

B. Our audit explained — a tailored approach

Idertify changes in your business
and environment

In ourplanning report dated 18
June 2020, we identified the key
changes inyour business and
articulated how these impacted
our audit approach.

Identify changes
in your business
and environment

Scoping

We set our materiality at $1.122m for
Council based on a percentage of total
expenses .We have completed our audit to
this materiality level and includedin
Section E are all misstatements above 550k
as requested by the Committee.

Understand the
control
environment

financial statemenits.

D.

Understand the control environment

We obtained an understanding of the control
environment, sufficient to identify and assess the
risks of material misstatement of the Council

Cur approach tointernal controls for the areas of
audit focus is consistent with the plan set out in our
planning report. Our findings are included in Section

Other findings

As well as our conclusions on the areas of
focus, we report to you other observations
that inour judgement warrant
communication with the Audit & Risk
Committee, including those on internal
controls.

Our observations are set out in Section D.

lude on

Section C of this report.

Conclusion on areas of audit focus / significant risk areas

Details of the areas of audit focus and our responses are set outin

Our audit report

We will include an “Emphasis of
Matter” paragraph in our audit report
arising from the impact of COVID-19 on
the Council. The proposed wording is
based on requirements as set out by
the OAG. We have not otherwise
identified any material unadjusted
differences or omitted financial
statement disclosures that could either
individually or in aggregate have a
material effect on the financial
statements.

Quality and Independence

We take our independence and the guality of the
auditwork we perform very seriously. We confirm
thatwe have maintained our independence in
accordance with Professional and Ethical
Standards.

We provide an overview of the relationships and
non-audit services in Appendix 2.

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1

ID: A1370066

11



Audit and Risk Subcommittee

ITEM: 5.1

6 October 2020 Attachment 1
C. Areas of audit focus — dashboard
The following areas of audit focus are consistent with the areas identified in our planning report.
. o i Presumed fraud Planned controls Level of management
Area of audit focus Significant risk i . . .
risk testing approach judgement required
Asset valuations and assessment of carrying values of assets No Mo DH
Governance and valuation of investment assets No No D+l .
Legislative compliance: rates revenue No No Ecl)g .
Validity of fees and charges revenue Yes Yes D+l .
Management override of controls Yes Yes DH N/A
Impact of Covid-19 No No N/A N/A
Other matters including OAG audit brief requirements No Mo D+l
Approach to controls Level of management judgement required
D+ Testing of the design and . .
implementation of key controls _
OE: Testing of the operating Low High
effectiveness of key controls
5
ID: A1370066 12



Audit and Risk Subcommittee
6 October 2020

C. Areas of audit focus

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1

Area of audit focus

Asset valuations and assessment of
carrying values of assets

MRC recognises the following classes of
asset at fair value:

* Infrastructure assets;

* Land and buildings;

* Investment properties;
*  Emissions trading units;
* Forestry assets

Determining the fair value of assets
requires management and independent
valuers to make a number of judgments
around the appropriate valuation
methodology and assumptions. Valuation
outcomes are often sensitive to variations
in the key assumptions.

This gives rise to a risk around the
valuation of these assets at year-end and
the treatment of movements in fair value
during the year.

Our approach

In order to address this risk, we

* Obtained the independent valuations of the relevant
asset classes;

* Obtained representations directly from the independent
valuers confirming their valuation methodology;

* Reviewed the key underlying assumptions used by the
independent valuers to determine whether these
assumptions were reasonable and in line with the
relevant financial reporting and valuation standards;

*  Assessed the appropriateness of the assumptions in light
of the impact of Covid-19;

*  Held various discussions with the valuers as appropriate;

*  Determined whether the revaluation transactions are
correctly accounted for and disclosed in the financial
statements. If there is significant valuation uncertainty
noted as a result of Covid-19, ensure that this has been
adequately disclosed in the financial statements; and

* Considered any caveats included in the valuation.

We have specifically considered the valuation approach for
the Kensington development and the Kaipara Service Centre
which are both under development at year end.

We also performed testing over the sale of the assets
relating to the Marsden Point Rail Link (MPRL) to ensure the
appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure is
reflected in the financial statements.

Audit findings

During FY 20, Council discovered that a number of land
parcels associated with the Whangarei Detention Dam
were incorrectly accounted for in the valuation of the
dam supplied to the Council by its independent valuer in
2017 (when these assets were last valued). This has
resulted in an overstatement in the value of
infrastructure assets by $2.9m which has been corrected
as a prior year adjustment. The 2019 balance sheet has
been restated by reducing the value of the infrastructure
assets and equity accordingly. Appropriate disclosures
have been included in the financial statements.

As part of the current year infrastructure asset valuation
process management have obtained certificate of title
searches to ensure that all land included as part of the
valuation is correctly owned by Council.

As a result of Covid, the valuers have applied
assumptions regarding the reasonably possible impacts
of Covid based on available information on 30 June 2020.
This created a greater degree of uncertainty on the
valuation of these assets as at 30 June 2020. However it is
important to note that this does not mean the valuation
cannot be relied upon for the purpeses of financial
reporting, rather that there may be a wider degree of
variation in relation to key assumptions and inputs into
the valuation. This uncertainty has been appropriately
disclosed in the financial statements and noted in our
audit report as part of a Covid related emphasis of matter
paragraph.

On the following page we have commented specifically on
the valuation of the Kensington and Kaipara Hub property
being developed.

ID: A1370066
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 1

C. Areas of audit focus

Audit findings

Asset valuations and assessment of carrying values [continued)

Investment property valuations

Former Countdown Supermarket — Kensington

We note that the Kensington property, which is subject to a development project, has been independently valued by Telfer Young for financial reporting purposes at
$6,150,000 as at 30 June 2020. After accounting for the project costs of 54,383,000 incurred during the year this asset has been written down by 52,133,000 since 30 June
2019. This essentially means the valuers are not ascribing value for the full amount of development costs incurred. We noted the same position as part of our 2019 report
to Council.

In their report the valuers comment that they have assessed the property using a residual development approach, which assumes a completed development. Accordingly
the valuers have capitalised assessed market rents to arrive at an “as if complete” value, from which are deducted leasing costs (including incentives), construction costs,
holding costs, a contingency and an allowance for profit and risk. The valuer has been advised that 6 agreements to lease are now unconditional representing nearly 50% of
the proposed floor area. Afurther 34% of the retail units have either heads of agreement or conditional agreements to lease with the remaining 16% being in early
negotiations or enquiry stage. The rents agreed to date are well above other rents within Kensington, the Regent and other suburban shopping centres which is positive
but also presents potential sustainability risks. There are still a number of units within the development not leased and while rents are underway and generally above
market rentals, most of these agreements will likely have substantial incentives.

This valuation approach derives an “as completed” market value of 511,950,000 (including the sale of the childcare land) which is less than the budgeted total development
cost of $15,476,800 (including land cost, construction, and holding costs) implying a negative project value.

32 Hokionga Road, Dargaville

This property will be a new office for Northland Regional Council and Kaipara District Council. During the year, $744,706 of costs have been incurred to develop this
property. Telfer Young has independently valued the property at $185,000 as at 30 June 2020 resulting in a write down of 754,706 in FY20 which means that all
development costs incurred in FY20 has been written off.

As development costs are expected to exceed $9,000,000 plus GST, the valuers have indicated that the return is well below what would be required by an investor in this
location. Given the projected overall deficit, the property has been valued as a clear development site at the date of assessment reflecting the cost of demalition and site
clearance.

Valuation of development properties is an exercise in professional judgement based on various assumptions and other considerations. We also note that valuation of
partially completed developments introduces additional judgements around expected rent arrangements. In order to fully understand the approach the valuers have taken
and the likely final outcomes for these two development projects we recommend Council seeks to engage with the valuers directly.

ID: A1370066 14



Audit and Risk Subcommittee
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C. Areas of audit focus

Area of audit focus

Governance and valuation of investment
assets

MRC has a significant portfolio of
investment assets. The strategy around
the use of this investment portfolio and
the returns received are an important
component of Council’s funding of its
activities.

This gives rise to risks around the
robustness of governance processes
around these investments, the valuation
of the investments at year-end, and
whether the appropriate accounting
treatment has been applied in respect of
those valuations, as well as fairvalue
movements.

Our approach

We addressed these risks through :

Evaluating the governance processes and controls around investment
assets. This will involve determining whether investment mandates and
parameters are monitored as part of governance arrangements, including
the risk/return strategy employed and the adequacy of reporting in this
area;

Ascertaining the quality of controls in place at the investment manager
and custodian by obtaining internal control audit reports;

Reviewing the accounting treatment applied to investment assets against
relevant financial reporting standards;

Reviewing the calculation of investment asset fair values at year-end; and
Reconcile and validate the cash movements in and out of the investment
funds

Audit findings

During our audit of the financial assets held
in various investment funds we compare
the allocation of assets to the benchmarks
in the Statement of Investment Policy and
Objectives (SIPO). The SIPO for each fund
governs the make-up of the fund,
benchmark asset allocations, and minimum
/ maximum holdings for particular asset
fund types.

We note that Council's fund manager
reports this infermation on a quarterly
basis. As at 30 June 2020 two short term

funds had breached the allocation per SIPO:

- Quay Street Income currently sitting at
32.7% (range of 0-30% per SIPO)

- Self Managed cash fund currently
sitting at 13.8% (range of 0-5% per
SIPO).

We note this allocation was in response to
the current market conditions. The
Investment Committee has approved this
allocation whilst assets are being
rebalanced.

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee

6 October 2020

C. Areas of audit focus

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1

Area of audit focus

Legislative compliance: rates revenue

Over recent years there have been a number of issues within the
Local Government sector arising from rates not being setin

accordance with the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 (LGRA).

Compliance with the detail of the LGRA is vital: if the rate is not

within the range of options and restrictions provided for in that
Act, it may not be valid.

Management and Council need to continue to ensure that the
requirements of the LGRA are adhered to and that there is
consistency between the rates resolution, the Funding Impact
Statement for that year, and the Revenue and Financing Policy in
the respective LTP or Annual Plan (AP).

Our approach
In order to address this risk, we:

* Tested the controls around the rates setting
process at Council;

+  Completed a ‘work programme’ compiled by
the OAG, (similar to that completed in the
prior year), to assist us in determining if rates
had been set correctly by the Council;

* Reviewed the meeting minutes recording the
adoption of the rates resolution, determining
whether the rates are in accordance with the
revenue and financing policy as well as
reviewing any other information available
with regard to rates.

We note that we are not legal experts and we
recommend Council continue to have their legal
advisor review the documentation supporting the
setting of rates to confirm legislative compliance.

Audit findings

We identified no material misstatement during our
testing on rates.

We note that Council uses Simpson Grierson to
review its rating documentation prior to its
adoption. This is a good process that should be
continued.

ID: A1370066
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1

6 October 2020 Attachment 1

C. Areas of audit focus

Area of audit focus Our approach Audit findings
Validity of fees and charges revenue We tested a sample of fees and charges revenue for accuracy. We also We identified no material misstatement in
reviewed the recognition policy and practice against relevant financial respect of fees and charges revenue.

reporting standards to ensure the revenue is recognised at the right time.
There is a risk that fees and charges porting e €

revenue may be misstated if they are
calculated incorrectly or revenue is
recognised incorrectly.

We have identified this as our presumed
risk of fraudulent revenue recognition as
required by auditing standards.

ID: A1370066 17
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C. Areas of audit focus

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1

Area of audit focus

Management override of controls

We are required to design and perform
audit procedures to respond to the risk of
management’s override of controls.

Our approach

As part of our testing of the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the
general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the Group
financial statements, we performed the following testing:

*  Understand and evaluate the financial reporting process and the controls
over journal entries and other adjustments made in the preparation of the
Group financial statements.

*  Test the appropriateness of a sample of journal entries and adjustments
and make enquiries about inappropriate or unusual activities relating to
the processing of journal entries and other adjustments.

*  Review accounting estimates for bias that could result in material
misstatement due to fraud, including assessing whether the judgements
and decisions made, even if individually reasonable, indicate a possible
bias on the part of management.

* Perform a retrospective review of management's judgements and
assumptions relating to significant estimates reflected in last year's Group
financial statements.

*  Obtain an understanding of the business rationale of significant
transactions that we become aware of that are outside the normal course
of business or that otherwise appear to be unusual given our
understanding of the entity and its environment.

Audit findings

We have not identified any inappropriate
journal entries or indications of
management bias.

We have communicated to management
that best practice would be for all manual
journal entries to be reviewed
independently of the journal preparer prior
to posting.

ID: A1370066
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Audit and Risk Subcommittee
6 October 2020

C. Areas of audit focus

Area of audit focus

COVID-192 Impact

Covid-19 continues to rapidly
evolve, and has already had a
significant impact on the
operations of many organisations.

Entities must carefully consider
their unigue circumstances and risk
exposures when analysing how
recent events may affect their
financial reporting. Specifically,
financial reporting and related
financial statement disclosures
need to convey all material effects
of Covid.

For Northland Regional Council the
FY20 impacts will likely manifest
themselves in relation to
investment property revaluation

Our approach

Audit findings

We have maintained regular contact with
management over the last & months in
particular to ensure we understand the
Council's position with respect to Covid-19,
including for the FY20year subject to audit,
but also F¥Y21where the Annual Plan
required additional consideration with
respect to areas where income would be
reduced and costs removed or deferred.

With respect to FY20 our work have included

additional emphasis on:

*  Provision for doubtful debts on other
receivables such as fees and charges;

+  The provisioning approach for rates
receivables given the likely additional
financial stress amongst the rate payer
base;

*  Fair value measurements, particularly
investment properties;

Covid-19 has resulted in impacts to key estimates and judgements used in the following

areas:

* Investment property, owner occupied freehold land and buildings, infrastructure and
forestry assets. Refer to slide 6 for further discussions.
*  Provision for non collection of rates receivables and general debtors as at 30 June

2020.

Council has assessed the non collection risk of rates receivables based on an analysis of
Council’s historical non-collection rate from each district. Council also incorporated an
additional Covid provision of $49k which is based on the movement in the unpaid current
Whangarei District Council rates of 20%. The rates receivable balance for other territorial
authorities have remained relatively in line with prior year representative of the fact that

rate payments have not been materially impacted by Covid at this stage.

To assess if Council’s provision for each territorial authorities is sufficient, we have
performed a stress test of the impact of the estimated collection rate on the provision.

WDC FHDC I(DC
e r— L

uncertainties (refer earlier area of * The recognition and disclosure of grant rerem T el 25 e 1690
N . N arrears (excluding penalties)
focus), and the level of income received to provide support to
provisioning required for rates certain sectors of the community; Average collection rate for rate 558 11% 3994
receivables and receivables due for + Recognition and disclosure of wage arrears based on last 3 years
cther income items. subsidies claimed; and :
+  Disclosures made in the financial Worst collection rate for rate 52% 9% 33%
statements arrears in the last 3 years
Additional provision based on worst 17 43 27
It is important that the Annual Report wollection ate
provides appropriate insight into the risks
and uncertainties facing the organisation Additional provision based onworst 73 209 71

due to Covid and the judgements that have
been made in preparing financial
information.

collection rate and additional 10%
stress test

We also noted that Council has taken advantage of $1.5m from the central government's
wage subsidy effectively reducing the labour cost for Northland ratepayers. This has been

disclosed in the financial statements.

ID: A1370066
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C. Areas of audit focus

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1

Areaof audit focus

Performance, waste and probity

Ensuring that Parliament's expectations are met with
respect to use of rate payer funds is a key feature of any
audit in the public sector.

Managing conflicts of interest and related party
transactions

Councils are required to ensure that there are appropriate
procedures in place to identify and manage conflicts of
interest that related party disclosures in the financial
statements are complete.

Financial prudence

Councils are required to include appropriate benchmarking
reporting in the Annual Report as required by the Local
Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence)
Regulations 2014.

Our ap proach

Our audit approach included a specific programme of work,
as in previous years, covering the following aspects:

*  Confirming Council has the appropriate policy framework
for areas such as delegated authorities, fraud, conflicts
of interest etc.

*  Ensuring we understand any changes made to such
policies.

*  Testing certain areas of sensitive expenditure to ensure
spending is appropriate and authorised in accordance
with policy and best practice.

*  Reviewing areas such as credit card expenditure, fuel
card expenditure, and mobile phone expenditure.

Our audit procedures on related party disclosures included
searching public records for potential related party
relationships (such as the Companies Office website).

We also ensured any entries in the interests register were
individually assessed, and those which met the definition of
a related party transaction during the year were disclosed in
the Annual Report. This included remuneration disclosures
relating to the Councillors and key management personnel.

Our audit procedures included reviewing the disclosures and
recalculating key ratios to determine whether Council was in
compliance with these regulations.

Audit findings

We did not identify any issues in respect of
performance, waste, and probity.

We are satisfied that related party
transactions including remuneration
disclosures relating to Councillors have
been appropriately disclosed in the annual
report.

We identified no issues in respect of these
disclosures.
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Areaof audit focus

Legislative compliance and more specifically legality of
rates

The Council is subject to significant regulatory and
legislative compliance requirements. The Council needs to
have adeguate systems in place to monitor compliance
with legislation along with any changes occurring in the
applicable legislation.

Provincial growth fund

The Provincial growth fund represents a $3billion
investment of public money in projects and initiatives
which aim to lift productivity potential in New Zealand's
regions.

Councils are required to account for the fund in accordance
with PBE accounting standards and be transparent with
their communities about the funding.

The Council has had one Provincial Growth fund contract
relating to the Water Storage and Use Project.

Our ap proach

Our audit procedures included looking at Council's processes
for ensuring legislative compliance, including specifically
testing compliance with legislation that materially impacts
on the financial statements. This included the Local
Government Act 2002 and the Local Government (Rating) Act
2002. In particular extensive work was completed on the
rates setting process, as outlined in the Areas of Focus
section above.

We reviewed all contracts in place (multiple contracts
relating to the one project).

We focused on the risk that revenue may not be recorded in
the appropriate accounting period due to incorrect
recognition or deferral of revenue. This could arise from
incorrectly identifying conditions or restrictions associated
with revenue transactions or incorrectly applying the
contractual terms associated with the timing of when
revenue is recognised.

Audit findings

We identified no issues in respect of
legislative compliance for the current
financial year.

There are a number of conditions with this
funding and revenue can only be
recognised when each separately
identified condition is met.

Further the project has now been passed
to another community organisation and so
thefinancial impacts have been concluded
in Council’s financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2020.
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Area of audit focus

Fraud

The primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud rests
with management and the Council,
including designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls over the
reliability of financial reporting,
effectiveness and efficiency of operations
and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. As auditor, we obtain
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error.

Our approach

Throughout the financial year we remained alert for issues that indicate
fraud.

Specifically our work involved:

*  Formal inguiries of the Council, management and others within the entity
regarding the risks of fraud within the Council including the processes in
place to mitigate those risks;

* Documenting systems and internal controls used by the Council to
prevent and detect fraud. In this area we will raise any weaknesses with
management and the Council as applicable;

* Remaining alert for the existence of any confidentially clauses in
employment contracts that may prevent disclosure of information and
thus reduce the level of transparency of spending of public monies; and

*  Reviewing the current fraud policy to ensure it follows OAG guidance and
ensure management and employees are aware of the fraud policy and its
content.

Audit findings

We do not have any matters to report with
respect to actual or suspected fraud, or
Council’s policy framework in this area.
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D. Internal control findings

Assessment of internal control

Our audit approach requires us to obtain an understanding of an entity's internal controls, sufficiently to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

Group’ financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We remind you that our audit is not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the controls operating within the Council. We will report to management
any recommendations on controls that we identified during the course of our audit work. The matters being communicated are limited to those deficiencies that we
have identified during the audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported. Our recommendations for improvement should be

assessed by you for their full commercial implications before they are implemented.

Observations and recommendations in the current period

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in internal controls which would impact upon our ability to provide our opinion. Any minor control observations
have been communicated to management throughout the course of the audit.
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E. Summary of unadjusted differences

In performing our audit, we have not identified unadjusted differences that could individually or in aggregate have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2020.

F. Summary of audit adjustments - disclosures

In performing our audit, no material uncorrected disclosure deficiencies were detected inthe Group financial statements.

- ! E

7
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Appendix 1: Purpose of report and responsibility statement

This report has been prepared for the Audit & Risk Committee and is part of our
ongoing discussions as auditor in accordance with our engagement letter and
master terms of business dated 17t June 2020 and as required by New Zealand
auditing standards.

This report is intended for the Council's Audit & Risk Committee (and other
Council members) and should not be distributed further. We do not accept any
responsibility for reliance that a third party might place on this report should
they obtain a copy without our consent.

This report includes only those matters that have come to our attention as a
result of performing our audit procedures and which we believe are appropriate
to communicate to the Committee. The ultimate responsibility for the
preparation of the Group financial staterents rests with the Council.

Responsibilities

We are responsible for conducting an audit of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2020 in accordance with New Zealand auditing standards issued by the NZ
Auditingand Assurance Standards Board. Our audit is performed pursuant to the
requirements of the Public Audit Act 2001, the Local Government Act 2002, and
taking into consideration instructions received from the Office of the Auditor
General, with the objective of forming and expressing an opinion on the Group's
financial statements, performance information, and other requirements of
Schedule 10 that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the
Council. The audit of the Group financial statements and group of activities
statement does not relieve management or the Council of their responsibilities.

Our audit is not designed to provide assurance as to the overall effectiveness of
the Council's controls but we will provide you with any recommendations on
controls that we may identify during the course of our audit work.

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 1
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Appendix 2: Independence and fees

Effective 1 April 2020, the updated Code of Ethics (AAG PES 1) infroduce a change to the Auditor-Generals” independence requirements by placing limitation on “other work” that can
be carried out by auditors, over and above the work we carry out on behalf of the Auditor-General. We have obtained approval to provide the below services for the year ending 30
June 2020.

The professional fees earned by Deloitte Limited in the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 are as follows:

cv Py Notes
($000) ($*000)
Fees payable for the audit of the Council’s annual report and summary financial statement 120 118
OAG overhead 11 12
Other assurance engagements relating to the Debenture Trust Deed and audit of the Register of 6 6
Security Stock
Total audit related and other assurance fees 137 136
Cyber governance maturity assessment 5 10
Agreed upon procedures for Waima Waitai Wairoa project 5 -
Review of Annual Plan for 2020-2021 2 - 1)
Online Fraud and Corruption Awareness Training - 8 (1)
Total services 149 154
(1) These are cne-off services provided during FY19 and FY20.

Deleitte has been engaged to undertake certain advisery work for Waka Kotahi. This engagement is in relationto certain additional costs that are being passed on by bus operators to
Regiconal Councils and therefore to Waka Kotahi as a result of new provisionsin the Empleyment Relations Amendment Act. Any interaction between the Deleitte engagemnent team and
Morthland Regional Council in relation to this project will be via Waka Kotahi and will not involve members of the audit team. We have obtained OAG approvalto provide this service to Waka
Kotahi.
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Appendix 3: Other communications

The following matters are communicated in accordance with the requirements of New Zealand auditing standards:

Non-compliance with laws
and regulations

Accounting policies / financial
reporting

Related parties

Written representation

Other information

In performing our audit of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020, we have not become aware of any instances of non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations that may have an impact on the determination of material amounts and
disclosures within the financial statements.

There were no changes in accounting pelicies during the year ended 30 June 2020.
We have not become aware of any other significant qualitative aspects of the Group's accounting practices, including judgements

about accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures that need to be communicated to the Audit &
Risk Committee.

Mo significant related party matters other than those reflected in the Group financial statements came to our attention that, in
our professional judgement, need to be communicated to the Audit & Risk Committee

A copy of the representation letter to be signed on behalf of the Council has been circulated separately.

We have read the other information (the financial and non-financial infermation other than the financial statements) contained
within the annual report to consider whether there are material inconsistencies with the financial statements.
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Appendix 4: Simplifying the annual report
Since we were appointed as your auditors, we have been on a journey with management on simplifying the annual report.
The chart below shows the change in page numbers per section year on year. We have segregated the annual reportinto three main areas — the Financials (relating to
Section 3 Financial Statements), Council Activities (relating to Section 2 which includes the statement of service performance, the funding impact statements for each
activity and financial prudence); and Other Sections (relating to Section 1 Overview, Section 4 Legislative disclosures and section 5 CCO's and Subsidiaries).
Note we have included the 2016 annual report to act as the baseline comparative data.
Number of % change
pages reduced
since FY16
Annual Report
Financials 14 18%
Council Activities 12 22%
e 2ov N ToraL 26 1%
@
-
3 o I S Commentary of changes
o
c
_E In FY¥13, ourfocus was on reducing the Council Activities
20 [ section cue toYear 1implementation of the 2018-2028
LTP.
In FY20, there is a slight increase in page numbers across
the sections due to Covid-19 and the drought response
0 20 40 60 20 100 120 140 160 180 which resulted in additional disclosures to il lustrate the
Page Numbers impact these events have on Council operations for the
year.

M Financials ™ Council Activities  m Other Sections We expect there to be a further opportunity to streamline
and improve the non financial performance measure
disclosures as part of the upcoming 2021-31LTP.

21
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Deloitte.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited ("DTTL"), its global network of member firms, and their related
entities (collectively, the “Deloitte organisation”). DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) and each of its member firms and related
entities are legally separate and independent entities, which cannot obligate or bind each other in respect of third parties. DTTL and
each DTTL member firm and related entity is liable only for its own acts and omissions, and not those of each other. DTTL does not
provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more.

Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited is a company limited by guarantee and a member firm of DTTL. Members of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited
and their related entities, each of which are separate and independent legal entities, provide services from more than 100 cities across
the region, including Auckland, Bangkok, Beijing, Hanoi, Hong Kong, Jakarta, Kuala Lumpur, Manila, Melbourne, Osaka, Seoul, Shanghai,
Singapore, Sydney, Taipei and Tokyo.

Deloitte is a leading global provider of audit and assurance, consulting, financial advisory, risk advisory, tax and related services. Our
global network of member firms and related entities in more than 150 countries and territories (collectively, the “Deloitte
organisation”) serves four out of five Fortune Global 500° companies. Learn how Deloitte’s approximately 312,000 people make an
impact that matters at www.deloitte.com.

Deloitte Mew Zealand brings together more than 1400 specialist professionals providing audit, tax, technology and systems, strategy
and performance improvement, risk management, corporate finance, business recovery, forensic and accounting services. Our people
are based in Auckland, Hamilton, Rotorua, Wellington, Christchurch, Queenstown and Dunedin, serving clients that range from New
Zealand's largest companies and public sector organisations to smaller businesses with ambition to grow. For more information about
Deloitte in New Zealand, look to our website www.deloitte.conz.

© 2020. For information, contact Deloitte Global.
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Northland Regional Council - Audit & Risk Subcommittee

2019/20 Annual Report & Audit

Geoff Copstick - Independent Financial Advisor

Over the past few months, as in the past few last years, | have attended both audit planning and
reporting progress meetings with Simon Crabb and the team from Deloitte to be able to
communicate directly to councillors on any pertinent issues that arose through the process of
preparing, and the audit of NRC’'s 2020 Annual Report. Central government's alert level response to
Covid-19 and the pandemic itself were predicted to significantly challenge both team’s ability to
complete the work and meet the deadlines set by law. Now that the reportis finalised | can report
that both Simon Crabb and NRC's finance team and the Deloitte’s team have more than met those

challenges. By sheer hard work, good use of technology and above all consistent professional

collaboration the report is complete and audited without qualification, well ahead of schedule.

Council should be very, very proud of Simon and be assured that our, now 4-year relationship with
our auditors is robust, respectful and delivering efficiency. Peter Gulliver our audit partner again

rates NRC's performance as among the best of the local government entities he is involved with as

an OAG-appointed auditor.

Given the turbulence created by Covid-19 comparisons of the numbers in the financial statements to
the prior year give some useful illustrations of how resilient Malcolm and the ELT have made NRC

and some insights into the stresses building up right now in the local, national and global economies;

stresses | advise council to monitor very carefully though existing resources or perhaps to consider
establishing (or connecting with) an economic data analysis team for that purpose.

1. Again NRC has posted a materially better result than was planned. NRC has posted a
S4.8Million surplus (against $0.3Million loss per the LTP). | have extended the analysis of
operating cashflows into the 2020 year and draw councillors attention to the ever-shifting

bias of cashflows (both inflows and expenditure) between NRC controlled and non-

controlled sources —this year | have further split out the cash inflows because of the $7M

increase this year in income from grants and subsidies (largely unplanned and by my
analysis non-controllable) which accrues on the basis of work done (and expenditure
incurred —in 2020 ~ $6M disclosed in note 4 on page 83 of the report as ‘other operating
expenses’). The table shows that MMH income is steady and that NRC-controlled inflows
have declined (following the bumper year for rates income in 2019 — the rates affordability
metric and last year’s report tells that story! This year the over-plan income and expense
flowed from grants and subsidies and the work NRC is obliged to undertake to get them.

NRC - Cashflow trends 2016 - 2020

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 2

Average Average

NZ5000s 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 change change (LY)
NRC controlled cash inflows 28,217 27,529 29,808 38,039 33,600 5.5% 11.2%
Cash from grants and subsidies 1,964 3,257 2,644 4,900 14,890 B4.1% 44,1%
MMH Dividends 2,712 3,100 3432 3,488 3,543 7.4% 8.9%
Total 32,893 33,886 35,884 46,427 52,123

Operating costs - 30,733 - 33755 - 35047 - 41441 - 47485 18.2% 6.8%
Operating cash inflow 2,160 131 837 4,986 4 638

Notes on NRCs 2020Annual Report Page 1
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The need for investment gains and a stable or increasing dividend from MMH to pay for
our increasing cost base may still hold but this year the picture is hugely overshadowed by
the success NRC has enjoyed getting 3" party grants albeit these are matched by costs
incurred to do the work involved (and thus P&L neutral by and large) but in the post Covid
economy such grants and subsidies may be harder to get, require more of NRC as a
recipient or not be available at all. Council should seek assurance NRC is not hard wiring
cost structures into place that will be hard to scale back if grant and subsidy income dries
up in the years to come. | also advise council that if this ad-hoc activity is going grow, then
additional financial reporting from Vincent and Simon to present in more detail the kinds
of expenses associated with grants and subsidies and ensure the new ERP system facilitates
transparent and full reporting of each income and cost stream over time (like a portfolio
report).

Another resource allocation issue exposed by this year’s numbers is that these cash
inflows, the activities undertaken and their associated costs are unplanned —NRC does not
control when these grants become available nor the quantum available to NRC. If these
activities displace planned workstreams where resources are constrained councillors will
have to judge the tensions between what is planned and approved against what is made
possible by these grants.

2. lastyear the subcommittee asked that to the extent possible under the OAGs audit
arrangements Peter Gulliver present evidence to us that Deloitte’s are consistently working
to ensure NRC is getting value for money — this should be no surprise to Peter - it was a
condition of our endorsement of his firm getting the gig!!

3. Evidence of the wider economic stresses building following Covid-19 have already been
alluded to regarding the availability of central government grants (note that government
debt is now much higher than the previous recent highs in 2012/2013 - ~26%). Elsewhere in
our accounts we see the value of our assets under pressure and certainly very volatile.
Volatility is uncertainty by definition and the issue for NRC is our strategy to rely on the
earning capacity of our diverse and substantial balance sheet to supplement rates income. |
have previously said that Malcolm and the ELT had done a frankly remarkable job of
building core competency at NRC while remaining flexible enough to cope with earnings
volatility — but our commercial property portfolio, our managed funds and even some
current assets (eg rates receivable) are in my opinion very vulnerable to general economic
stress and another quandary worth debating is that general economic stress generates real
needs among the communities we serve and potentially inflates expenses to meet those
needs. This year MMH wrote down commercial property it owns as tenants closed or
wound down operations, the valuers reporting on our own development projects cast
some doubt on the recoverable value of those ongoing investments and as we have heard
the bonds and shares comprising our managed funds are volatile (see 1-year VIX index
below). The assets we derive income from weaken in the very situations that amplify
community needs and | recommend council devote some time to develop policy to guide
NRC on high level balance sheet management and to seek creative ways of breaking the
deadlock between these two contrary conditions.

Notes on NRCs 2020Annual Report Page 2
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Kia ora and welcome

He Kupu Whakataki na te Heamana rdua ko te Tumuaki

We've all had to dig deep and draw on reserves we didn’t
know we had to withstand challenge and upheaval in the
last year (July 2013 to June 2020). Welcome to our Annual
Report, which provides a snapshot of some of our activities
during this time.

We've risen to the challenges of drought, pandemic,
economic uncertainty and political change and have
remained true to our mission to create a healthy
environment, a strong economy and resilient
communities.

The October local government elections brought four new
councillors to our nine-member council. We acknowledge
the leadership and achievements of our outgoing and
incoming elected representatives.

Our region endured one of the most severe droughts on
record. Northland's Civil Defence Emergency Management
Group worked alongside many other agencies in a
collaborative response to the drought and pandemic
crises.

The COVID-19 pandemic required a rapid response from
the council and we continued to provide the business-
as-usual services that keep our environment, people and
communities healthy and safe.

Among the milestones achieved, the three-year Otuihau-
Whangarei Falls project to improve water quality in the
upper Hatea river reached its final stages.

.
e

AV %
(IS

.f?‘ Malcolm Nicolson
Chief Executive Officer

We're in the second year of the eight-year $15 million
Awanui flood risk reduction programme and are on target
with our work to reduce flood risk to Kaitaia township and
its surrounding communities.

The council completed pre-feasibility work for the region’s
water storage and use project, now managed by a Trust.
The intent is to capture more of Northland’s rain and make
it available when it's needed, providing greater resilience
to climate change and generating new economic
opportunities.

Protection of the region’s dune lakes is continuing with
the most recently-completed work at Lakes Wahakari and
Waiparera in the Far North and several lakes in the Kai [wi
and Pouto lakes area.

Outstanding success is being noted in animal and weed
pest control programmes run by thousands of volunteers
throughout the region. They are vital to achieving the
environmental outcomes you've told us are important.
Without them, it would be much harder to achieve positive
change in the communities we serve.

Ehara taku toa | te toa takitahi,
engari ké he toa takitini

Success is not the work of one,
but the work of many

Penny Smart
Chair

This summary of Northland Regional Council activities is for the year 1July 2019 to 30 June 2020 and contains information from our full Annual Report 2020.
The full report for the financial year to 30 June 2020 was authorised for issue by resolution of Northland Regional Council on 20 October 2020. The Annual
Report Summary was authorised for issue by the Chief Executive on 21 October 2020. For our full audited Annual Report, visit www.nrc.govt.nz/annualreport
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Together we thrive

Our strength lies in collaboration with community groups, iwi
and hapi and we have consolidated existing partnerships
and forged new ones throughout the year. Thousands of
volunteers work with us on wide-ranging initiatives such

as pest animal control, weed busting, riparian and coastal
planting, raising plants in shade houses and fencing to keep
stock out of waterways.

They are a formidable force and we were able to
acknowledge their passion and dedication through our
annual Environmental Awards, now in their second year.
We've welcomed a new generation of environmental action

with the addition of 15 Early Childhood Education Centres
to our Enviroschools programme and we now have 126
Enviroschools in our region. Our $20,000 Environmental
Leaders Fund assists schools with some of this work while
a $10,000 allocation from our biosecurity environment fund
supports practical hands-on environmental projects that
have a positive impact on our environment.

Improving freshwater quality

We know that improving freshwater quality Is a high priority
for our communities - that’s why we're spending millions

of dollars on looking after our streams, rivers, lakes and
wetlands. Much of this work Is collaborative, Involving
landowners, tangata whenua, community organisations

and government agencies committed to a common goal. An
example is Waima Waital Walora - a unique partnership that
brings together these groups with a shared vision to Improve
the maurl (spiritual lifeforce) of the Kaipara Harbour.

The regional council’s part in this project includes: promoting
good farming and forestry principles and restoration
practices, supporting landowners with sustainable land

management, subsidising fencing, planting on highly erodible
land, stock water reticulation and wetland enhancement.
This work combines to reduce the amount of sediment

going into the Northern Wairoa River and flowing out into

the harbour. Protecting our dune lakes in the Aupouri (Far
North)and Poutd/Kai Iwi Lakes (Kaipara) areas is an ongoing
project of considerable importance, again involving the
regional council and communities determined to improve the
water quality in their fragile taonga. Among other freshwater
projects, the three-year Otuihau-Whangarei Falls project to
improve water quality in the upper Hatea River has reached
its final stages.

ID: A1370066

35



Audit and Risk Subcommittee
6 October 2020

Nga hua o0 2019/20

Highlights of 2019/20

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 3

Pest control in action

All over our reglon, people from all walks of life are giving
of their time to tackle pest plants and animals in Northland,
often in harsh country and inhospitable conditions. Their
dedicated effort to restore and protect our environment

so that our native plants and animals can flourish Is truly
astounding.

Much of this work is the result of community partnerships
and collaborations and we are proud to be part of these
efforts to help our environment recover and thrive. Kiwi
numbers have risen from 80 to 900 in Whangarei Heads
since 2002 and there are now 76 Community Pest Control
Areas (CPCAs) covering 130,393 hectares in Northland.

The 155 community groups comprising “Kiwi Coast” have
killed 396,634 pests in the last seven years. We supplied
9,000 predator traps to help with this work and contributed
$196,070 from the Environment Fund for pest controlin the
last year. Close to 2,050 boat hulls were inspected during our
annual marine biosecurity hull surveillance programme to
prevent the spread of marine pests, and we're working with
117 landowners to protect kauri in the region.

A strong economy

Regional economic growth Is an important part of our
wellbeing. The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and is likely to
continue to place a significant constraint on the Northland
economy. Job opportunities for young people In tourism
related and construction industries will be severely limited
without government initiatives.

To that end we're working closely with our regional economic
development agency, Northland Inc. Limited, the three
district councils and central government agencies to deliver
co-ordinated recovery initiatives in Northland. In the last
year, we've supported, through our Investment and Growth

Reserve, the development of a project to build pasture
resilience to pest and disease in Northland, a pa-based
amphitheatre visitor experience project at Mokau, and the
Northland water storage and use project. Through the same
fund, we made an enabling investment funding allocation to
the Manea Footprints of Kupe cultural and education centre
at Opononi.
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Protecting our people

Flooding ranks as one of the highest risks for Northland,

so the development of flood protection infrastructure

and varlous river works are a priority for the council. A
comprehensive programme of flood protection work Is

In progress in the Awanui catchment where we're in the
second year of an eight-year $15 million flood risk reduction
programme to provide a higher level of flood protection for
Kaltala township and Its surrounding communities.

The work includes a new spillway to direct water away
from the Bell's Hill slip site, work on the lower Awanui River
catchment, and stopbank stabilisation behind the Te Ahu
centre. Updated river flood maps for Awanui and Kerikeri

catchments are now complete. They're based on the latest
survey data available and the new modelling is showing
reduced flood risk in these areas. A new 113-metre long
flood wallin Woods Road, Whangarei is increasing the level
of flood protection in flood-prone Commerce Street. The
$360,000 projectis asmall part of a $1 million programme
of flood mitigation works spanning three years.

Resilient communities

The region’s four councils work together on civil defence
emergency management, along with emergency services,
welfare groups, other agencies and trained volunteers, to
build resilience in our communities.

Storms, flooding and tsunami are among the highest risks
to Northland and are a focus for Northland's civil defence

emergency management network. However, it was the arrival

of COVID-19 pandemic overlapping with drought that this

Disclosure statement

year required the longest continuous response in the history
of the Northland Civil Defence Emergency Management
(CDEM) Group. Both responses brought their own challenges
and led to new ways of working together with other
organisations, and more formal collaboration with Northland
iwi has been a hugely positive outcome of this time.

Both the Northland drought and the COVID-19 pandemic have brought significant challenges this financial year, meaning a number of our
performance measures and targets have not been met. While council has undertaken measures to reduce the impact of COVID-19 on its

financial operations such as reduced, postponed or cancelled work streams and cost-savings across all activities, none of this has resulted
in areduction in the levels of service provided or put at risk the obligations and duties of the council in the 2019/20 year.
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Ta matou mahi whakarapopoto

Summary of our performance

Some of our measures have not been met as a result of the Northland drought response and the COVID-19 pandemic. For more

information, please refer to the full Annual Report 2020. E ny | ronmen ta | Serv | Ces

b out of 12 targets met

10,953ha 32,730ha

of additional land was added to the increase in land actively managed
land already under Community Pest under a sustainable farm
Control Areas. environment plan.

Governance and engagement CO/\(O]
4 out of 10 targets met Uo

14 667 2576

subscriber increase of Northland schools and of residents surveyed were
in online and social kindergartens participated satisfied with how council
media channels. in the Enviroschools programme. involves the public in decisions.

Economic development
1 out of 2 targets met

308789 58%  100% We_ Dok

people used the Whangarei urban of customers surveyed said of reported faults in aids to toits Statement of Intent (SOI). SRLELEE
bus service, with 91.8% satisfied they were satisfied with the navigation were responded
with the service. quality of service they received to within five working days.

from the council.

Regulatory services

River management 7 out of 15 targets met

Tout of 1target met

60 .. 15 100% 100%

popular popular shellfish collection of resource consents were of monitored air sheds met
swimming sites were monitored processed within statutory national environmental
sites monthly during summer. timeframes. standards.

No failures in flood protection systems for the Awanui, Whangarei and Kaeo schemes.
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Te whakarapopoto
0 te plrongo putea

Financial summary

$59M Actual revenue Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
Other Rental Fees ] ) X )
revenue revenue and charges Council Annual Plan Council Consolidated  Consolidated
For the year ended 30 June 2020 EUSJun 20 30Jun20 30 Jun19 30 Jun 20 30 Jun18
000 000 000 000 000
REVENUE
Fai[ value Gains Dividend Subsidies Rates Dperating revenue (excuding share of assaciate and joint venture company surplus and rates) 15 19,25 260 33063 27030
gains on earnt on revenue and grants
revaluation  externally Rates 29,497 29,860 21203 29497 27203
managed
funds Total revenue 5001 49285 49820 62,660 54233
EXPENDITURE
SSQM ACtuaI Dperatlonal spendlng Operating expenses (exchiding finance expense) 53,37 48,4 43978 62026 50,764
Governance and Customer services and Finance costs 330 1340 903 1430 1241
Other Engagement community resilience
Total expenditure 54247 49454 4881 63,456 51985
@ ]9% 2']% 2&% 26% Share of associate and joint venture company surplus = = = 8748 9007
Income tax - = = (22) 9)
Regulatory services Environmental services
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 4,767 (369) 4939 7930 1,236
Attributable to:
Council’s revenue for the 2019-20 financial year was $9.9M Other budget variations Northland Regional Council 4767 369) 493 479 6604
more than its 2013-20 Annual Plan, mainly due to: » Council's current assets are higher than its 2019-20 Annual Non-controling iterest - - - 38 4632
» Increases in subsidy revenues, off-setting the increased Plan mainly due to the funding requirement for councils OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE - Fnancial asset o i value through oher comprehensive revenue and xp
costs incurred over a number of council projects and two development projects being held in the short term Gains o) on property revakations otber than investment properies) . . - (6 -
work programmes. investment fund. Gains/(loss) on carbon credit revaluation 156 - 36 156 36
» Unbudgeted COVID-19 wage subsidies. » Council's non current assets are lower than its 2019-20 Bains/loss) on infrastructure asset revahuation 186 - - (66)
» Vested assets and increases in the fair value [ngn-cash} Annual Plan mainly due to lower capital expenditure Net hedging movement (joint venture company) - - - (186) (308)
of council's investment properties. occurring during the year than planned, and a reduction in Total other comprehensive revenue and expense 612 - 46 (697) bil]
] the value of infrastructure assets. TOTAL CONPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE — - S . oo
Council’s total expenses for the 2019-20 financial year was . . R
» Council's current liabilities and non-current liabilities Miributable to:
$4.8M more than its 2019-20 Annual Plan, mostly due to:
vary from the 2019-20 Annual Plan as a $10M loan due for Northland Regional Council - - - 479 6769
» Project costs notin the Annual Plan that arose during the repayment in August 2020 has been transferred from Non-cantrolling interest - - - 250 473
year that were funded by unbudgeted subsidies received. non- current, and classified as a current liability in the - - - 1233 504
» Welfare support and drought support payments made during Annual Report.
the year and funded from Central Government subsidies.
» Losses arising from asset revaulations, and the disposal of
the Marsden Point Rail Link Joint Venture.
» Lower than budget expenditure due to savings, delays and
work programmes not coming on line as anticipated by
year end.
12 13
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Financial summary
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Attachment 3

Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Council Annual Plan Council Consolidated Consolidated

As at 30 June 30 Jun 20 30 Jun20 30 Jun19 30 Jun 20 30Jun19
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Curent assets 32483 12463 1900 33859 20,92
Non-current assets 156,431 72724 160,103 304327 04873
TOTAL ASSETS 188,924 185187 m.m 338,186 325,865
Current liabilities (21196} (6.394) (6. 66} (23,142} (9552}
Nor-current liabilities (10,182} (27901} (20,084} (27,800} (33,036}
TOTALLIABILITIES (31.378) (34,206) (26.950) (50,742} (42.588)
NET ASSETS/EQUITY 157546 150,892 152,167 W74t 283271

Statement of Changes in Equity

Annual Plan Council Consolidated Consolidated
For the year ended 30 June 2020 30Jun 20 30 Jun19 30 Jun 20 30Jun19
$000 $000 $000 $000

(OPENING BALANCE T2, 167 T26 150,089 w3an 277697
Adjustment to infrastructure asset value® (2.807) (2907)
(OPENING EQUITY (2079 restated) 5267 1261 11182 832 74,700
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year 531 (369) 4985 123 N503
Dividends paid (3.086) (3017)
CLOSING EQUITY 157 546 150,892 152,167 BTh4 283,211
Attribatable to:
Worthland Regional Council 157,546 150,892 152,167 1962 18,703
Non-controlling Interest 4,462 55,004

B1546 50,892 52,167 WT44 28321
COMPONENTS OF EQUITY
Accumulated funds 115,702 137567 119,943 148,562 152771
Asset revaluation reserve 1949 3963 1537 35,115 35,105
Hedyging reserve (590} (490}
Special reserves 30,895 9,362 30887 0,895 0887
Hinority interest B4, 462 B5.004

157,546 160,892 152,167 20744, 8321

*During 2018/20, the council discovered that a number of land parcels associated with the Whangarei detention dam were incorrectly accounted for, in the valuation of the dam

supplied to council byit'sindependent valuer in 2017, when the assets were last valued.

14

Council Annual Plan Council Consolidated Consolidated
For the year ended 30 June 2020 30 Jun20 30 Jun 20 30Jun19 30 Jun 20 30Jun19

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Net cash from operating activities 4838 3.355 4986 1884 1868
Net cash from investing activities (1.337) (9.904) 16.378) (9.948) 15,804)
Net cash from financing activities B,545 1000 155 4083
Net increasef{ decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 330 (5) (392) 3.0T0 (53)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year B06 86 998 1758 181
Closing cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 3807 f 1606 4828 1758

Accounting policies

Northland Regional Council Is a local authority governed by
the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government
(Rating) Act 2002 and Is domiciled and operates in

New Zealand.

The primary objective of the council is to provide goods or
services and perform regulatory functions for the community
benefit. The council does not operate to make a profit.

The audited statements of the council and group for the 12
months to 30 June 2020 have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2002 and
the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence)
Regulations 2014 which include the requirement to comply
with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand
(NZ GAAP).

The council has designated itself and the group as Tier 1
Public Benefit Entities (based on size). The summary financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 1
Public Benefit Entity (PBE) accounting standards as they
relate to summary financial statements and comply with
Public Benefit Entity Financial Reporting Standard 43 (FRS43)
Summary Financial Statements. The full financial statements
of the council comply with PBE accounting standards.

The summary financial statements are presented in
New Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

The summary financial statements have been extracted
from the full financial statements so do not include all

the disclosures provided in the audited full financial
statements and cannot be expected to provide as complete
an understanding as provided by the audited full financial
statements.

The Annual Report Summary has been audited for consistency
with the full Annual Report and the audit opinion issued by
Deloitte, on behalf of the Auditor-General is included as part of
this document. The full Annual Report received an unmodified
Audit Reportwhich included an emphasis of matter relating to
the COVID-19 pandemic, and was adopted by council on

20 October 2020.

In this summary, ‘council”refers to Northland Regional Council
only. The terms “consolidated” and “group” refer to Northland
Regional Council and Northland Inc. Limited (100% owned),
Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited (53.61% owned) and
Regional Software Holdings Limited (16.75% owned).

All entities are incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand.
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Financial summary

The impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic

Since 31 December 2019, the spread of COVID-19 has
severely Impacted many local economies around the globe.

Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus,
including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing,

and closures of non-essential services have triggered
significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting
in an economic slowdown. Global stock markets have
experienced great volatility. Governments and central
banks have responded with monetary and fiscal
interventions to stabilise economic conditions.

In response to the global pandemic, New Zealand entered a
Government-directed alert level system dictating the level
of business activity and social interaction that can take
place. When NZ went into Alert Levels 3 and 4, council’s
Pandemic Plan was enacted to enable the vast majority of
council staff to work from home, helping to keep them safe
and ensuring business continuity.

The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as
well as the effectiveness of government and central bank
responses, remains unclear at this time. It's not possible
to reliably estimate the duration and severity of these
consequences, as well as their impact on the financial
position and results of the council for future periods.

The pandemic has resulted in Impacts to key estimates

and judgments used In the 2013-20 financial statements
Including:

» Investment property valuations being impacted as at
30 June 2020 as detailed in note 12 of the full 2019-20
Annual Report.

» Owner-occupied freehold land and building valuations
being impacted as at 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 14
of the full 2019-20 Annual Report.

» Infrastructure asset valuations assumptions being
impacted as at 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 14 of the
full 2019-20 Annual Report.

» Provision for uncollectability of rates receivable and
general debtors as at 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 7
of the full 2019-20 Annual Report.

» Forestry asset valuation assumptions being impacted as
at 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 16 of the full 2019-20
Annual Report.

To date, council has undertaken the following steps to
reduce the Impact of COVID-19 on its operations:

» Taken advantage of $1.5M from the central government's
wage subsidy, effectively reducing the labour cost for
Northland ratepayers.

» Reduced, postponed or cancelled work streams and
costs without risking the obligations and duties of the
council in 2019/20, and originally culling close to $2.4M
of work streams and costs from its 2020/21 Annual Plan.

» Maintained a larger allocation of cash assets as a
driver to de-risk and safeguard the value of council's
investment portfolio.

» Set aside $1.7M of cash in a COVID-19 reinstatement
reserve dedicated to fund the reinstatement of
prioritised work streams that were originally culled from
the council's 2020/21 work programme.

» Set aside $1.6M of cash to be called upon and provide
stability should the investment returns from council's
externally managed investment portfolio not eventuate
as anticipated in 2020/21.

» Planned to use an additional $2.3M of cash reserves to
fund operations in the 2020/21.

Events after balance date

Subsequent to balance date, Marsden Maritime Holdings
Limited declared a fully imputed dividend of 9.25 cents per
share to be paid on 25 September 2020.

In August 2020 the council reduced its debt by $6.6M, by way
of repaying a maturing $10M debenture (with a fixed interest
rate of 3.79%) and taking new a new loan of $4.4M from the
Local Government Funding Agency (with a fixed intertest
rate of 1.98% ) that is set to mature in April 2033.

The council agreed a construction contract in August
2020 to construct a building in Dargaville to accomodate
Northland Regional Council and Kaipara District Council
staff, and other commercial tenants. The total budget for
this project is $9.2M.

There were no other significant events after balance date.
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Chairand CEQ's foreword
Nga karere mai i te Heamana, Tumuaki

We've all had to dig deep and draw on reserves we didn't know we had to withstand challenge and upheaval,
both within and outside our organisation, in the last year (July 2019 to June 2020). Welcome to our Annual
Report, which provides a snapshot of some of our activities during this time.

Drought, pandemic, economicuncertainty and politicalchange have punctuated the year, testingourindividual
and collective strengths and catapulting us into new ways of working and thinking.

We've risen to these challenges and are proud that we have continued to achieve goals, reach milestones and
remain true to our mission to create a healthy environment, a strong economy and resilient communities in
our region.

The October local government elections brought four new councillors to our nine-member council. We
acknowledge the leadership and achievements of our outgoing and incoming elected representatives, who've
led with unwavering support during a profoundly uncertain time.

Our region has been tipped into one of the most severe droughts on record, requiring a massive all-of-staff
response for along period of time. Our Natural Resources Monitoring Unit provided essential baseline data to
support critical civil defence work.

Northland's Civil Defence Emergency Management Group, alongwithcommunity groups, welfareand government
agencies, iwi/hapu and volunteers, worked long hoursina collaborative response to the drought and pandemic
crises.

These partnerships helped us get through these challenging events and demonstrated what can be achieved
when communities pull together in times of hardship.

The drought was easingwhen the COVID-19 pandemic hit, requiring a rapid response from the council. Within
days, most of our staff were working from home, marking the beginning of a new way of working and thinking.

Through the combined efforts of staff and councillors, we continued to provide the business-as-usual services
that keep our environment, people and communities healthy and safe.

Among the milestones achieved, the three-year Otuihau-Whangarei Falls project to improve water quality in
the upper Hateariverreacheditsfinal stages. About 20 kilometres of riparian fencingand 18,000 native plants
wentinto the ground as part of this work.

We're in the second year of the eight-year $15million Awanui flood riskreduction programme and are very much
on target with our work to reduce flood risk to Kaitaia township and its surrounding communities. A new spillway
to divert floodwaters away from the town is complete.

The council completed pre-feasibility work for the region’s water storage and use project under budget and
on-time. Reservoir sites have been identified in Kaipara and the mid-North. The intent is to capture more of
Northland’s rain and make it available when its needed, providing greater resilience to climate change and
economic opportunities for our communities. The commercial implementation phase of this project is now
managed by a trust.

Protection of the region’s precious and unique dune lakes is continuing with the most recently-completed work
at Lakes Wahakari and Waiparera in the Far North and several lakes in the Kai lwiand Poutd lakes area. The
work to improve water quality and protect biodiversity includes fencing, pest fishing and the eradication of
invasive water weeds.

Annual Report 2020 | Parongo & tau 2020
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Outstandingsuccess is beingnoted inanimal and weed pest control programmesrun by thousands of volunteers
throughout theregion. This army of passionateand dedicated volunteersis vitalto achieving the environmental
outcomes you've told us are important. Without them, it would be much harder to achieve positive change in
the communities we serve.

We were abletoacknowledge some of these effortsin this year's Environmental Awardsceremony, livestreamed
via Facebook because of the COVID-19 crisis.

We opened a temporary customer service centre in Dargaville staffed by a full time customer services officer
and some of the council's Kaipara-based land and biosecurity staff, who will move to a new shared space with
Kaipara District Council staff next year.

Ehara taku toal te toa takitahi, engari ké he toa takitini

Success is not the work of one, but the work of many

f D) cii/}iés—

Penny Smart Malcolm Nicolson
Chair Chief Executive Officer

Section one: Overview Wahanga tuatahi: Tirohanga whanui
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Your regional councillors
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Annual Report 2020 | Parongo & tau 2020
6

ID: A1370066 50



Audit and Risk Subcommittee

6 October 2020

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Governance structure

People of Northland | Taitokerau

Regional Transport Committee
Joint committee for regional land transport

Other
statutory

Civil Defence Emergency Management Group bodies
Joint committee for emergency management

Te Oneroa-a-Tohé Board
Joint committee for 90 mile beach management

Subcommittees

Investment and Property Subcommittee
Management of investment funds and commercial property

Audit and Risk Subcommittee
Management of risk, financial performance and health and
safety

Te Taitokerau Maori and Council Planning and Regulatory
Governance matters for Maori Governance matters under the

Biosecurity and Biodiversity Water and Land
Matters under the Biosecurity Act Matters for natural resource

and relevant operational plans management

Oversee council's climate change Joint WDC/NRC on Whangarei

Working Parties

participation Resource Management Act

Climate Change Whangarei Public Transport

work programme transportation matters

Section one: Overview Wahanga tuatahi: Tirohanga whanui
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Council committees and advisors

Reg[ional council representation on
statutory committees and boards

Regional Transport Committee

Councillors Bain (Chair), Stolwerk (alternative

Councillor Blaikie)

This committee brings together Northland's four
councilsand the New Zealand Transport Agency, and
oversees strategic transport planning and passenger
transport functions for the Northland region.

Civil Defence Emergency Management Group
Joint Committee (CDEM Group)

Councillor Stolwerk (alternative Councillor Kitchen)

This joint committee brings together Northland's four
councils (with Fire and Emergency and NZ Police in
an observercapacity)and sets the strategicdirection
for the COEM Group.

Te Oneroa-a-Tohé Board

Regional council membership: Councillors Kitchen
and Robinson

This Board is a statutory body as aresult of Treaty
Settlement. The Board is deemed to be ajoint
committee of Northland Regional Council and Far
North District Council (FNDC). The Board is a
permanent committee. The Board consistsof eight
members as follows: one member appointed from
eachof the four Te Hiku iwi(settlement entities), two
members appointed by regional council (being
councillors holding office), and two members
appointed by FNDC(beingthe mayor and acouncillor
holding office).

Council Subcommittees

Investment and Property Subcommittee
Councillors Stolwerk (Chair), Blaikie, Bain, Kitchen,
Smart (ex officio) (alternative Councillor Craw), and

Independent Advisors (x2)

Audit and Risk Subcommittee

Councillors Kitchen(Chair), Bain, Macdonald, Yeoman,
Smart (ex officio)(alternative Councillor Blaikie), and
Independent Advisors (x2)

Council Working Parties

e Climate Change Working Party - comprises
Councillors Macdonald (Chair) Craw, Robinson,
Yeoman, Smart (ex officio), and four membersof Te
Taitokerau Maori and Council (TTMAC) Working
Party

o WDC/NRC Whangarei Public Transport Working
Party - comprises Councillors Bain (Chair), Craw,
Stolwerk, and three Whangarei District councillors

# Planningand Regulatory Working Party-comprises
Councillors Yeoman (Chair), Blaikie, Macdonald,
Kitchen, Smart (ex officio), and four members of
Te Taitokerau Maori and Council (TTMAC) Working
Party

» Biosecurity and Biodiversity Working Party -
comprises Councillors Craw (Chair), Blaikie,
Robinson, Stolwerk, Smart (ex officio), and four
members of Te Taitokerau Maori and Council
(TTMAC)Working Party

e Te Taitokerau Maori and Council Working Party
(TTMAC) - comprises up to 30 members in total
consisting of full council, and 21 Maori
representatives. The working party is co-chaired
by Councillor Robinson and Rudy Taylor (Te
Whakaminenga O Te Hikutu Hapu-Whanau)

e Water and Land Working Party - comprises
Councillors Blaikie (Chair), Craw, Macdonald,
Robinson, Yeoman, Smart (ex officio), and
five members of Te Taitokerau Maori and Council
(TTMAC)Working Party

Councillor memberships
and portfolios

» Appeals on Regional Plan - Councillor Yeoman

e Awanui River Working Group - Councillor Kitchen
(Chair)

# Doubtless Bay Catchment Working Group -
Councillor Kitchen

* |nter-councilworking partyon genetically modified
organisms risk evaluation and management - no
appointment until Regional Plan finalised

» Kaeo-Whangaroa River Working Group-Councillor
Robinson (Chair)

» Kaihd RiverWorking Group - Councillor Bain(Chair)

o Kaipara Moana Working Party - Councillors Smart
and Yeoman

o Kerikeri River Working Group - Councillor Yeoman
(Chair)

» Mangere Catchment Working Group - Councillor
Yeoman

Annual Report 2020 | Parongo & tau 2020
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# Ngunguru Catchment Working Group - Councillor
Macdonald

» Northland Conservation Board - shared across
council

» Northland Sports Facilities Plan (Sport Northland)
- Councillor Stolwerk

» Pouto Catchment Working Group - Councillor Smart

» Ruakaka RiverWorking Group - Councillor Stolwerk
(Chair)

® Shareholderrepresentative for Northland Inc.
Limited - Councillor Bain

» Shareholderrepresentative for Northland Marsden
Maritime Holdings Limited - Councillor Smart(Chair)

» Shareholderrepresentative on Regional Software
Holdings Limited - Councillor Smart (Chair)

» Taumarere River Working Group - Councillor Blaikie
(Co-Chair)

o Upper North Island Strategic Alliance (UNISA) -
Councillor Smart (Chair)

o Urban Whangarei Working Group - Councillor Craw

(Chair)

» \Waitangi Catchment Working Group - Councillor
Robinson

» Whangarei Catchment Working Group - Councillor
Craw

» \Whangarei Heads Pest ManagementWorking Group
- Councillor Macdonald

e 7Zone One (LGNZ)- Councillor Smart (Chair)
(Councillor Yeoman as alternative)

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Advisors
Auditors:

» [eloitte Limited on behalf of the Auditor-General

Bankers:

» ASB Bank
» ANZ Bank
» Bank of New Zealand

Solicitors:

o Atkins Holm Majurey Limited

» Brookfields Lawyers

Buddle Findlay

Chapman Tripp

K3 Legal Limited

Karenza de Silva

Marsden Woods Inskip & Smith
Natural Resources Law Limited
Paul Sills

SBM Legal

e Simpson Grierson

e Thomson Wilson Law

* \Webb Ross McNab Kilpatrick

o Wynn Williams

Independent Advisors:

* Danny Tuato'o - Audit and risk
e Friksens Global - Investments
e Geoff Copstick - Financial

Chief Executive Officer:

The Chief Executive Malcolm Nicolson is responsible
for setting the direction of the council within the
policy framework provided by councillors. The
executive leadership team isaccountable to him and
he is accountable to the council.

Section one: Overview Wahanga tuatahi: Tirohanga whanui
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Council’s strategic direction

Thisis the second Annual Report following the adoption of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028 in June 2018. As part
of developingthe Long Term Plan, councilgave careful considerationto the service we provide to our community,
what we are working to achieve, and our priorities for making this happen. This is outlined as our strategic
direction, which is driven by our vision: 'Our Northland - together we thrive'. Our strategic direction also sets
out council's values and areas of focus, which drive the activities and performance measures set out in the
long term plan, and are reported on in this Annual Report.

OUR AREAS OF FOCUS OUR ACTIVITIES
(Community outcomes) Governance and engagement
Regulatory services
Environmental services
Economic development
River management

Customer services and

OUR VISION community resilience
Our Northland - Corporate excellence
together we thrive

OUR MISSION
Working together to create a healthy
environment, strong economy and

resilient communities. OUR VALUES

Strong, decisive leadership

One high-performing team

Customer-focussed

. Integrity - honest and open
Transparent and accountable
‘ Northland
REGIONAL COUNCIL

ITEM: 5.1
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Quryearinreview

Our Long Term Plan 2018-2028 was our most
ambitious and forward-thinking strategic plan to
date. It laid the foundation for araft of newinitiatives
to tackle the issues of water quality, native species
protection and flood infrastructure.

We've spent the last two years putting words in to
action, and making headway on this essential work
to make Northland really thrive.

Following the adoption of our Long Term Plan
2018-2028, which provided clear direction and
resourcing, we thought about what this work really
meant for the future of Northland and what tangible
results it would achieve in three, 10, and 30 years.

We set out this long-term vision in 'Our Vision
2018-2028] Te Pae Tawhiti 2018-2028', a document
that provides areal feel for whatyour regional council
is doing to achieve outcomes in our areas of focus.

Qur Vision
2018-2028

‘Te Pae Tawhiti
2018-2028 _

Some of this progress is reported in this annual
report, butit'sjust a snapshot -the progressis much
wider. Here are some of our highlights from the year:

Together we thrive

Our strength lies in collaboration with community
groups, iwi and hapt and we have consolidated
existingpartnershipsandforged new ones throughout
the year. Thousands of volunteers work with us on
wide-ranginginitiatives such as pest animal control,
weed busting, riparian and coastal planting, raising
plants inshade housesand fencing to keep stock out

ITEM: 5.1
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of waterways. They are aformidable force and we
were able to acknowledge their passion and
dedicationthroughourannual Environmental Awards,
now in their second year. We've welcomed a new
generation of environmental action with the addition
of 15 Early Childhood Education Centres to our
Enviroschools programme and we now have 126
Enviroschools in our region. Our $20,000
Environmental Leaders Fund assists schools with
some of thisworkwhile a$10,000 allocation from our
biosecurity environment fund supports practical
hands-on environmental projectsthathave a positive
impact on our environment.

Improving freshwater quality

We know that improving freshwater quality is a high
priority for our communities - that's why we're
spending millions of dollars on looking after our
streams, rivers, lakes and wetlands. Much of this work
is collaborative, involving landowners, tangata
whenua, community organisations and government
agencies committed to a common goal. An example
is Waima Waitai Waiora - a unique partnership that
brings together these groups with a shared vision to
improve the mauri(spiritual lifeforce) of the Kaipara
Harbour. The regional council's part in this project
includes: promoting good farming and forestry
principles and restoration practices, supporting
landowners with sustainable land management,
subsidising fencing, planting on highly erodible land,
stock water reticulation and wetland enhancement.
This work combines to reduce the amount of
sediment going into the Northern Wairoa River and
flowing out into the harbour. Protecting our dune
lakes in the Aupouri (Far North)and Poutd/ Kai lwi
Lakes (Kaipara)areas is an ongoing project of
considerable importance, againinvolvingthe regional
counciland communities determined to improve the
water quality in their fragile taonga. Among other
freshwater projects, the three-year
Otuihau-Whangarei Falls project to improve water
quality in the upper Hatea River has reached its final
stages.

Pest control in action

Allover our region, people from all walks of life are
giving of their time to tackle pest plants and animals
in Northland, oftenin harsh country and inhospitable
conditions. Their dedicated effort to restore and
protectourenvironment so that ournative plantsand
animals can flourish is truly astounding. Much of this
work is the result of community partnerships and
collaborations and we are proud to be part of these
efforts to help our environment recover and thrive.
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Kiwinumbers haverisen from80to 900 in Whangarei
Heads since 2002 and there are now 76 Community
Pest Control Areas(CPCAs)covering 130,393 hectares
in Northland. The 155 community groups comprising
“KiwiCoast"have killed 396,634 pests in the last seven
years. We supplied 9,000 predator traps to help with
this work and contributed S196,070 from the
Environment Fund for pest controlin the last year.
Close to 2,050 boat hulls were inspected during our
annual marine biosecurity hull surveillance
programme to prevent the spread of marine pests,
and we're working with 117 landowners to protect kauri
in the region.

A strong economy

Regionaleconomic growthisanimportant partofour
wellbeing. The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and is
likely to continue to place, asignificant constraint on
the Northland economy. Job opportunitiesfor young
people intourismrelated and construction industries
will be severely limited without government
initiatives. To that end we are working closely with
our regional economic development agency,
Northland Inc. Limited, the three district councils and
centralgovernmentagencies to deliverco-ordinated
recovery initiatives in Northland. In the last year,
we've supported, through ourInvestment and Growth
Reserve, the development of a project to build pasture
resilience to pest and disease in Northland, a
pa-based amphitheatre visitor experience project at
Mdkau, and the Northland water storage and use
project. Throughthe same fund, we made an enabling
investmentfundingallocationto the Manea Footprints
of Kupe cultural and education centre at Opononi.

Resilient communities

The region's four councils work together on civil
defence emergency management, along with
emergency services, welfare groups, other agencies
and trained volunteers, to build resilience in our
communities. Storms, flooding and tsunami are
among the highestrisks to Northland and are a focus
for Northland's civildefence emergency management
network. However, it was the arrival of COVID-19
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pandemic overlapping with drought that this year
required the longest continuous response in the
history of the Northland Civil Defence Emergency
Management(CDEM)Group. Bothresponses brought
theirown challenges and led to new ways of working
together with other organisations, and more formal
collaboration with Northland iwi has been a hugely
positive outcome of this time.

Protecting our people

Flooding ranks as one of the highest risks for
Northland so the development of flood protection
infrastructure and various river works are a priority
for the council. Acomprehensive programme of flood
protection work is in progress in the Awanui
catchment where we are in the second year of an
eight-year S15million flood risk reduction programme
to provide ahigherlevel of flood protection for Kaitaia
township and its surrounding communities. Thework
includes a new spillway to direct wateraway from the
Bell's Hill slip site, work on the lower Awanui River
catchment, and stopbank stabilisation behind the Te
Ahucentre. Updatedriver flood maps for Awanui and
Kerikeri catchments are now complete. They are
based on the latest survey data available and the new
modellingis showingreduced floodriskin these areas.
A new 113-metre long flood wall in Woods Road,
Whangarei is increasing the level of flood protection
in flood-prone Commerce Street. The $360,000
project is a small part of a STmillion programme of
flood mitigation works spanning three years.

Disclosure statement

Both the Northland drought and the COVID-19
pandemic have brought significant challenges this
financial year, meaninga number of our performance
measures and targets have not been met. While
council has undertaken measures to reduce the
impact of COVID-19 on its financial operations such
as reduced, postponed or cancelled work streams
and cost-savings across all activities, none of thishas
resulted inareduction in thelevels of service provided
or put atrisk the obligations and duties of the council
inthe 2019/20 year.
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Achievement of key performance indicators

Governance and engagement » Total 12

y |
02N HIE

04 NOT ACHIEVED

Regulatory services » Total 15
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Environmental services » Total 12
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River Management »Total (1

Customer services and community resilience » Total Tl
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Maori participationin council processes

Strengthening Relationships with Mdori|Nau te raurau, naaku te raurau, ka ora ai te lwi

Northland Regional Council is committed to growing
and strengthening its relationship with Maori across
the region and providing opportunities for Maori to
have input into its decision-making processes.

Councilhas a number of obligations to Maori and has
committed to these and more. This commitment is
reflected in our key focus areas articulated in our
Long Term Plan 2018-2018: Enduring relationships
with tangata whenua.

Inrecognising this, councilmade progressinanumber
of areas and continues to work with Maori as well as
building our internal capacity to better understand
and respond to issues of importance to Maori.
Highlights for the 2019/2020 year are:

Powhiri mo nga Kaunihera hou o Te Taitokerau

In partnership with Te Parawhau we welcomed the
new councillors and their whanau at our offices in
Whangarei. This marked a progressive and positive
beginning for the new council and everyone who
attended the event.

The re-establishment of Te Taitokerau Maoriand
Council Working Party

InNovember 2019, the new council met and finalised
itsnew governance structure. Our Te TaitokerauMaori
and Council Working Party (TTMAC)was
re-established, at the same time endorsing the
significant achievements of TTMAC in two previous
trienniums. TTMAC for the first time consists of all
councillors and 21iwi and hapi representatives.
These representatives have been mandated by their
respective iwi authoritiesand hapt entities, and now
tangata whenua members also have equal
membership representedon councilworking parties.
Thisincludes the 50% representation of tangata
whenua on the following working parties:

» Climate Change Working Party

# Planning and Requlatory Working Party

» Biosecurity and Biodiversity Working Party
e Water and Land Working Party

Two formal meetings have been hosted in Whangarei,
however no regional hui were held as a result of the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, with the main
priority to support communities to stay healthy during
these unprecedented times.

TTMAC have identified top strategic priorities, being:

e the development of an overarching water strategy
e the development of a climate change strategy

e the development of an economic development
strategy, including a focus on Maori economic
development

e the development of amarine strategy as it pertains
to Te Taitokerau
» building tangata whenua capacity and capability

» strengthening Maori representation in local body
politics

These priorities will drive the significant strategic
work programme being undertakenwith council. This
includes input and advice on:

e the inter-regional marine pest pathway plan

e the development of Matauranga Maori monitoring
guidelines

e the development of cultural impact assessment
guidelines / template

e the five-year efficiency and effectiveness review
of the Regional Policy Statement

e thelong-TermPlan2021/31and subsequent annual
plans

» the climate change strategy

e the implementation of Mana Whakahono @ Rohe

» the economic development programme of
Northland Inc. Limited

Supporting and participatingin meetings of the Te
Oneroa-a-Tohé Board, a co-governance committee
established through Treaty of Waitangi settlements
of four out of five Te Hiku Iwi for Te Oneroa-a-Tohe /
90 Mile Beach:

e preparation of abeach management planand a
public consultation process to help manage the

Annual Report 2020 | Parongo & tau 2020
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beach is underway as a requirement of the Te Hiku
o Te Ikalwi Treaty of Waitangi settlementlegislation

Participating inthe ongoing discussion pertaining to
possible cultural redress through Treaty of Waitangi
settlement neqgotiations for the Kaipara Harbour,
including:

* ongoing commitment to the agreement with
neighbouring councils to ensure they are informed
of the Treaty settlement process, and

» continuing to work closely with Nga Uri o Kaipara,
providing information and advice to support Treaty
of Waitangi settlement negotiations

The establishment of a co-governance committee
has been confirmed, in partnership with Kaipara Uri,
Auckland Council, and the Crown, to oversee a
significant programme of work over the next sixyears
to remediate the Kaipara Moana, with a focus on
reducing sedimententering the harbour. Thissixyear
programme has attracted S100 million of Crown
co-funding and is the first co-governance
arrangement, between council and iwi and hapa,
within Taitokerau where the focus is on the ground
environmental remediation.

Provision of funding to support the developmentor
review of iwi/hapt environmental management plans.

Provision of funding scholarships Tt I te Orato
support students studying or training in areas that
alignwith the council's focus and mission of "working
together to create a healthy environment, strong
economy and resilient communities”. Also an aim to
build Maoricapacity withinTe Taitokerau and provide
opportunities for further education, with two
earmarked for Maori who whakapapa(share a
genealogical connection)to Te Taitokerau.

Te Whariki Core Cultural Competency Framework

A core cultural competency framework established
andimplemented to build capabilities of council staff
to engage with iwi and hapd has been developed to
implement Te Whariki - council's Maori
responsiveness strategy

Te Whariki Level Tworkshops have beenestablished
anddelivered on Terenga Paraoa Marae and focus on
three core components of competency for staff,
being:
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» tereo Maori - demonstrates basic level of te reo
Maori

o tikanga Maori - shows awareness of tikanga Maori

o the Treaty of Waitangi/Te Tiriti o Waitangi -
demonstrates basic awareness of the historical

significance of the Treaty of Waitangiand its
contemporary applications

In addition:

o the Treaty of Waitangi/Te Tiriti o Waitangi training
for councillors'induction and ongoing workshops
to increase understanding of kaupapa Maori
protocols and practices

>
o

[
s

# increasing staff within Maorirelationships team to
build capacity of council to respond appropriately
to the needs and aspirations of tangata whenua

» respondingtoresource consentissuesbeingraised
by hapt and iwi and how we can work to improve
our responseswhen challenged by hap and iwi
regarding council policies and processes

» attendance at tangihanga, powhiri and significant
events by councillors and staff to show a
commitment to ongoingrelationships with iwiand
hapa

» strengthening relationships and working with Te
Kahu o Taonui, iwigroups, iwi health providers and
Maori organisationsto respond to the impacts of
droughts and the COVID-19 pandemic with positive
and lasting connections made to continue to work
together to sustain the resilience within the Te
Taitokerau region
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Compliance statement

Northland Regional Council
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2020.

Statement of Compliance

The council and its officers are responsible for preparing this report and financial statements, including the
statement of service performance, and confirmthat all statutory requirementsin relation to the Annual Report,
asoutlined in the Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with.

In our view, this Annual Report fairly reflects the financial position and operating results of the council and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Penny Smart Malcolm Nicolson
Chair Chief Executive Officer

Date: 20 October 2020
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Audit report
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Overview of our activities

Northland Regional Council is required by law to

deliver arange of core services, and strives for These services are broken down into activities and

excellence in delivering these services. There are are grouped as follows:

other services that we deliver outside of our legal o

requirements. » Governance and engagement - Governance, Maori
relationships, communication and engagement,

We do this where we can(within legislative mandate) and economic development

to respond to requests from our communities, » Regulatoryservices - Planningand policy, consents,

address issues that arise, and make the most of and monitoring

opportunities, where the service or activity

. o= » Environmental services - Natural hazard
contributes to achieving good outcomes across the

management, hydrology, biosecurity, biodiversity,

region. land and water

In 2018 council approved the Long Term Plan » Rivermanagement - River management
2018-2028, which set out the range of services we » Customer services and community resilience -
intend to deliver during the next 10 years. Customer services, civil defence emergency

management, oil pollution response, harbour safety
and navigation, and transport

Northland E—a » Corporate excellence - Finance, human resources

RECIONAL COUNCIL

andinformation technology managementactivities
Long Term Plan 2018 q (however these are not specifically reported on.
Te Mahere Roa 2018-2028 The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 identified the
significant aspects of each service and set
performance measures and targets for these to
enable the level of service to be assessed

These performance measures and targets are
reported onforthe second time in this Annual Report
2020.

Annual Report 2020 | Parongo & tau 2020
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Governance and engagement
Ratonga whakahaere whakauru

Hei aha te kai o te rangatira? He korero, he korero, he korero

What is the food of chiefs? It is knowledge, it is communication

This group includes the following activities:

e governance
» Maorirelationships

e communications and engagement
e economic development

These activities contribute to the following
council areas of focus (community outcomes):

» continuous improvement in water quality and
security of supply

» enhancement of indigenous biodiversity and
biosecurity

a strong regional economy

safe and resilient communities

enduring relationships with tangata whenua
efficient and effective service delivery
improved returns on council investments

efficient and effective land transport policies and
public transport

Community well-being

The community of Northland is represented by
councillors who make decisions collectively as the
council. In order to make good decisions, council
needs to have an understanding of the wants and
needs of the people of Northland, and must consider
all aspects of Northland - its social landscape,
environment, economy, culture, and the aspirations
of the diverse individual communities that make up
the tapestry of Northland.

This activity group provides for the ongoing flow of
information between council and the people of
Northland. It promotes cultural competency so that
council fulfills its statutory obligations to Maori, and
provides for effective, transparent governance on
behalf of the people of the Northland region. This
activity group also actively promotes sustainable
economic developmentin Northland.

Theactivitieswithin the Governance and engagement
group are considered to have a positive effect on
community well-being.

Changes to level of service

The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 provided for a
‘maintained orincreased"level of service withineach
of the activities in the Governance and engagement
group. This proposed level of service has been
maintained, howeverthe performance measures and
targets have not been well achieved with only five of
12 performance targets met. Of theseven targets not
met, one of these was due to a combination of the
impacts of COVID-19 plus other factors. Additional
non-achievement was partially dueto external factors
outside of councils control, local body elections, and
a shift in focus for improving levels of service
provided.

What we did
Engaging with our communities

The Taite ora Scholarship programme was launched
successfully with four scholarships, each valued at
$3,000, awarded to deserving students chosen from
more than 70 applicants. The scholarships support
students studying ortraining in areas aligned with the
regional council's work and build Maori capability
within Taitokerau.

The environmental awards, now intheir second year,
recognise kaitiakitangain action and attracted entries
from people doing amazingvoluntarywork tohelp our
environment. Because of the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic, the winners were announced at a virtual
event and later presented their awards in person.

As afurtherresult of the COVID-19 pandemic, council
meetings were livestreamed to our Facebook page
from May, increasing our accessibility and attracting
positive community engagement and feedback.

The annual residents’ survey was carried out using
people randomly selected from electoral rolls and
inviting the wider community to have its say. Results
indicate improvementsin overall satisfaction, quality
of service communication, engagement and how well
councilis responding to issues. They also give an
indication of areas where we can look to improve as
an organisation.
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Enviroschools

Of Northland's 126 Enviroschools, seven hold
Green-Gold status, 20 Silver and 42 Bronze. We've
welcomed anew generation of environmental action.
As the first regionto boast a dedicated early childhood
education(ECE)facilitator, we have added 15 new ECE
centers to the programme.

With community groups and local hapa, dune lake
education days were held across the region. Our
WaiFencing and Project Pest Contral NCEA-based
courses have both attracted record numbers of senior
students.

Economic development

An additional funding allocation of $12 million was
secured from the Provincial Growth Fund (PGF) to
continue investigatingwater storage and use options
in three areas located in Kaipara and the Mid-North.
This funding was on top of the $18.5 million secured
in 2018/19 for the project. The Pre-feasibility Phase
investigation was completed in March and indicated
that viable scheme options exist in both Kaipara and
Mid-North areas. Responsibility for the project has
been passed over to the Te Tai Tokerau Water

Trust forcommercialisation and implementation.

We worked with the district councils to lobby central

governmentforincreased infrastructure investment
in the region, such as anew large dry dock facility,

1.1 Governance

Performance measures and targets
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improved transport linkages and better digital
connectivity, which resultedin significant Government
investment.

We also worked closely with the district councils to
develop a proposal for the joint delivery of economic
development activities in Northland, including the
transformation of Northland Inc. Limited into ajointly
owned council-controlled organisation, and increasing
the quantum of funding available for council
investmentintoeconomic development projects. This
may be consulted on at a later date.

Inresponse to the COVID-19 pandemic, Northland Inc.
Limited provided a significant lift in its support to
businesses. Data and analysis on the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Northland economy was
also produced to aid decision makers.

Maori relationships

Ourwork with Maoriis outlined in this report on page
14 titled 'Maori participation in council processes'’

Service delivery review

Inorder to ensure that all services arereviewed every
six years, as required by the Local Government Act,
council maintains a rolling schedule of reviews.
Reviews were undertaken for investment property
and maritime services activities.

1.1.1 Maintain effective, open and transparent democratic processes.

Performance measure

Percentage of official information M requests that
are responded to within 20 working days.

Percentage of time that council receives a
favourable('unqualified’) audit opinion onits Long
Term Plan, Annual Plan, and Annual Report.

Percentage of time that elected members attend 90% compliance

council meetings.

Target

100% compliance

100% compliance

2019/20 result

90% - not achieved

18 out of 193 LGOIMA requests were not
responded to within 20 working days.

100 % - achieved

93% - achieved
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Percentage of the community surveyed that is Improve
satisfied with the way council involves the public
inthe decisions it makes.

1. LGOIMA - Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act

1.2 Maorirelationships

Performance measures and targets

25% - not achieved

(201818 result: 33%)

1.2.1 Establish enduring and robust governance relationships between council and Maori of Taitokerau

Performance measure Target

Ten meetings (Mof the Te Taitokerau Maori and 10 meetings held
Council Working Party are held eachcalendaryear. annually

1. Five formal meetings and five maroe-based meetings

1.2.2 Provide opportunities for Maorito participate in council processes

2019/20 result

Not achieved

Local body elections and re-establishment
of TTMAC saw no meetings between Oct 2019
—March 2020. All April/June marae-based
meetings were cancelled due to the impacts
of COVID-19.

Performance measure Target
Percentage of time council meets all relevant 100% compliance
requirements of Treaty of Waitangi settlement

legislation.

Percentage of time targeted pre-consultation 100% compliance

engagement is undertaken with Maori during
council’s statutory Resource Management Act
planning processes.

2019/20 result

95.6% - not achieved

This measure comprises three elements: the
recording of statutory acknowledgements
inregional plans; attendance and support of
co-governance committees; and circulation
of consentapplications to Treaty settlement
groups.

Council has achieved two of these elements
in full, with the third (the circulation of
consent applications) achieved in part. This
was due to 83 bore consents failing to be
circulated.

100 % - achieved
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1.3 Communications and engagement

Performance measures and targets

1.3.1Support and deliver environmental education initiatives

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of schools and kindergartens Maintain or increase  66% - achieved

participating in the Enviroschools programme.
(201818 result: 62%)

1. Schools include primary, intermediate and secondary schools.

1.3.2 Promote effective community engagement

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Number of subscribers to online and social media  25% annual increase 18,617 subscribers, 14% increase - not
channels achieved
(number and
percentage increase  Thisisduetoashiftinfocusfrom increasing
to be reported) FB likes/followers to improving reach and
overall engagement with our audience.

Freguency of engagement with council's
Collaborative Community Engagement Groups

- Annualengagement 126 groups, 98% - not achieved
(2 with 100% of groups

Engagement was achieved with 123 out of

(actual number of 126 active groups. One instance was due to
groups and limited staff resourcing; one was engaged
percentage with via phone and email but not
compliance to be face-to-face; and the final one was the far
reported) north civildefence group of Moehinuimarae.
1. Includes social media, eNewsletters and web alerts
2. Collaborative Community Engagement Groups are defined as any group that the council engages with at least annually, that contributes knowledge

and resources to achieve outcomes in a defined area. For example - CoastCare groups, catchment management groups, river lioison committees
or civil defence community response groups.

1.4 Economic development

Performance measures and targets

1.4.1Invest in economic development projects and ventures within Northland to improve Northland's economic

performance

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

NorthlandInc'scompliance with Local Government  100% compliance 100% - achieved
Act requiremﬂents relating to its Statement of
Intent(s01) |

Percentage of Northland Inc's SOlkeyperformance 100% compliance 69% - not achieved
indicators achieved by 30 June each year.
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ynomic development pre s and ventures within Northland to improve Northland's

11of the 16 key performance indicators were
achieved. Of the five not achieved, three
were due to the impacts of COVID-18. The
other two have not been reported on due to
lack of data.

1. Requirements are to provide council with a draft Statement of Intent (SOl by 1 March, consider council comments by 1May, and deliver final SO! by
30 June each year.
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Governance and engagement |Ratonga whakahaere whakauru

Funding Impact Statement

Long Term
Plan
201819
5000

For the period ending 30 June

Sources of operating funding

Long Term
Plan
2019/20
5000
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Actual
2019/20
5000

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties - - 53
Targeted rates 2,873 3.017 327
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - 2,379
Fees and charges 60 GO 88
Internal charges and overheads recovered - - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 1,544 1,402 1,382
TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING 4,276 4,478 7.173
Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers T.433 6,560 9,209
Finance costs 253 253 266
Internal charges and overheads applied 798 B43 567
Other operating funding applications - - -
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING 8,484 7,655 10,042
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (4,207) (3.177) (2,869)
Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes - - -
Increase/{decrease)in debt - - -
Gross proceeds from sale of assets - - -
Lump sum contributions - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - - -
TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING = = =
Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand = - -
toimprove levels of service ] - 182
toreplace existing assets 13 - -
Increase/{decrease)in reserves (3.479) (2,44B) (2.167)
Increasef{decrease) of investments (747) (731) (830)
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (4,207) (3.177) (2,869)
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding 4,207 3,177 2,869

FUNDING BALANCE -
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Major variances compared to Year 2(2019/20) of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028
Operational Funding

Sources of operating fundingis $2.42M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

e \Water storage project grants not in the long term plan. This is offset by additional costs incurred.
Application of Operational Funding

Applications of operating funding is S2.37M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» Expenditure on a water storage project not in the long term plan

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Section two: Council activities Wahana tuarua: Nga mahi a te kaunihera

29

ID: A1370066

73



Audit and Risk Subcommittee
6 October 2020

Requlatory services

Ratonga a ture

Whatungarongaro te tangata, toitl te whenua

Asmandisappears, the land remains
This group includes the following activities:

# planning and policy
* consents
* monitoring

These activities contribute to the following
council areas of focus (community outcomes):

» continuous improvement in water quality and
security of supply

safe and resilient communities
enduring relationships with tangata whenua
efficient and effective service delivery

enhancement of indigenous biodiversity and
biosecurity

Community well-being

The natural and physical resources of Northland are
central to our economy, culture and communities.
The regulatory services group of activities aims to
ensure that these resources are well governed and
managed to meet the needs of Northlanders, having
a positive effect on community well-being.

Changesto levels of service

The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 provided for a
‘maintained orincreased'level of servicewithineach
of the activities in the Regulatory services group.
This proposed level of service has been maintained,
however the performance measuresand targets have
not been well achieved with only seven out of 15
performance targets met. Of the eight targets not
met, five of these were due to the drought response
and the impacts of COVID-19. The additional three
were largely due to external factors outside of
council'scontrol. Overall, non-achievement wasminor
and did not impact the level of service provided.

What we did
Regional Plan for Northland
There were 23 appeals to the Environment Court

against the council's decision on the Proposed
Regional Planfor Northland. The council participated
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in 18 days of court-assisted mediation on these
appeals. The parties managed to reach consensus
onalarge number of appeal pointsandin June 2020,
council published an appeals version of the

plan www.nrc.govt.nz/newregionalplan

The Regional Plan includes implementation of
council's obligations for managing freshwater quantity
under the National Policy Statement for Freshwater
Management, with the freshwater quality
requirements intended to be implemented in a plan
change commencing in 2021.

Consents

Decisions on 795 consents were issued during the
year. Of these only one, which covered three consent
activities, resulted inan appeal ona council decision.
The appeal is still before the Environment Court.

Environmental monitoring

Inaddition to the monitoring carried out and recorded
as performance measures in this report, four water
level stations were installed to support the Northland
Water Storage Projectin Kaikohe. Further monitoring
was also undertaken in response to the drought,
including:

» twowater quality buoysdeployed to Lake Omapere
& Whau Valley dam to assist Civil
Defence Emergency Management

e the completion of 106 ecological and low flow
assessments across Northland

Compliance monitoring and enforcement

In addition to the compliance monitoring carried out
andrecorded as performance measuresinthisreport,
councilalso carried out 252 inspections/assessments
of forestryactivities under the National Environmental
Standard - Plantation Forestry.

Council took the following enforcement actions in
relation to non-compliance with resource consent
conditions and/or regional rules:

» 152 infringement notices (187in 2018/19)
® 247 abatement notices(271in2018/19)
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e nilenforcement orders(1in 2018/19)
» 5 prosecutions initiated (3 in 2018/19)

2.1 Planning and policy

Performance measures and targets

op and maintain regional planning documents for the management of Northland's natural and physical

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result
Develop a new Regional By 2018/19 Hold hearings andrelease council decisions Not achieved
Flan. onthe proposed Regional Plan.

Planning for engagement on the
By 2019/20 Engage Maori and stakeholders in plan plan change toimplement NPS

preparation process. Freshwater has started, butnotthe
engagement itself. This is largely
By 2020/21 Notify any plan changes required to due to the delayintherelease of the
implement the National Policy Statement for updated NPS Freshwater, and staff
Freshwater Management (NPS Freshwater). effort focussed onresaolving appeals

on the Proposed Regional Plan.
By 2025/26 Efficiency and effectiveness review of the

new Regional Plan.

Make changestothenew By 2018/19 NPS Freshwater implementation Not achieved

Regional Plan and Regional programme is notified by 31 December 2018.

Policy Statement (RPS) as See explanation above for measure
necessary to implement Regionaltargets to improve water quality at specified “Develop a new Regional Plan™.

national direction and to swimming sites identified and publicly available.

respond to resource
management issues. By 2018/20 Engage Maori and stakeholders in plan
preparation process.

By 2020/21 Notify plan change to identify and protect
signifis:antfreshwaterbiodiversity sitesinthe Regional
Plan (0

By 2025/26 Further necessary changes to RPS and

Regional Plan in response to national planning
standards completed.

1. If not addressed through proposed plan process in 2018.
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2.2 Consents

Performance measures and targets

2

2.2.1 Provide efficient and effective processing and administering of resource consents

Performance measure Target

Percentage of all resource consent applications  98% compliance

that are processed within the statutory
timeframes.

1. This target takes into account that there may be fluctuations in the number and complexity of resource consent applications that council receives.

2.3 Monitoring

ITEM: 5.1
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2019/20 result

100 % - achieved

(2018/18 result: 99.1%)

Our monitoring activity comprises compliance monitoring and state of the environment monitoring

Performance measures and targets

Compliance monitoring:

2.3.1Provide efficient and effective compliance monitoring of resource consents

Performance measure Target

Percentage of monitored resource consents mat 90%
are not graded as significantly non-compliant

Percentage of monitored permitted farm dairy 90%
effluent activities that are n [)graded as
significantly non-compliant™~".

Percentage of consents for industrial, municipal 100%
sewage and farm discharges, and major water

takes requiring monitoring, that are monitored as

per the council’s consent monitoring programme.

2019/20 result

94.4% - achieved

85% - not achieved

30 of 198 permitted activity dairy farms were
inspected and found to be significantly
non-compliant. This measure is dependent
on landowner behaviour which, while
influenced by council activities, is also
influenced by factors outside of council's
control.

90.9% - not achieved

881 of 968 consents were monitored as per
their monitoring programme. Of the 88
consents that were not fully monitored, 69
of them had some monitoring during the
year. Only 19 consents had none of the
required monitoring undertaken. This was
largely due to lack of resources during the
drought 2020 response and the impacts of
COVID-19.

1. To be considered ‘significantly non-compliant' the activity will have, or have the potential to have, a major or significant effect on the environment

2. To be considered significantly non-compliant' the activity willhave, or have the potential to have, a major or significant effect on the environment
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2.3.2 Efficient and effective response to and resolution of reported environmental incidents

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of environmental incidents withmore ~ 80% resolved within  83% - achieved
than minor effects reported to the Environmental 30 working days
Hotline resolved within 30 working days.

State of the environment monitoring

2.4.1 Gather and make available information on the suitability of water bodies for swimming an shellfish collection

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Monitorat least50 popularswimming sites weekly 50 or more sites 60 sites - achieved
during the summer forfﬁsecal indicator bacteria  monitored weekly
and publish the results. during summer

Monitor at least 15 popular shellfish collection sites 15 or more sites 15 sites - achieved
weekly %Jj[ing the summer and publish the monitored weekly
results. during summer

1. Sites are monitored weekly in the summer from late November/early December to late February/early March.
2. Sites are monitored weekly in the summer from late November/early December to late February/early March.

2.4.2 Monitor the life-supporting capacity of water (fresh and marine), uses a

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of sites monitored for At least 90% Data unavailable

macroinvertebrates showing improved or

maintained trend in their Macroinvertebrate Results have not beenreceived from the

Community Indices(MCI). provider due to delays because of the
impacts of COVID-19. Results are expected
in September 2020.

Percentage of fish monitoring sites showing At least 90% Data unavailable

improved or maintained trend in their Index of

Biotic Integrity (1B1). No data to assess due to the drought

response and the impacts of COVID-19, with
no following data expected.

Percentage of lake sites monitored for ecological At least 80% Data unavailable
status showing improved or maintained trend in
their Submerged Plant Indices (SPI). Ecological Survey was booked in April with

NIWA but was postponed until
August/September 2020 due to impacts of
COVID-19.
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2.4.2 Monito ; orti 0 d and values

Percentage of lake sites monitored for level of At least 90% 100% - achieved
nutrient enrichment showing improved or
maintained trend in their Trophic Level Indices

(TLI).
Comprehensivelymonitorat least 40 coastalsites 40 sites monitored Quarters 1to 3: 40+ sites - achieved
monthly for general water quality. annually

Quarter 4: not achieved

Theimpacts of COVID-19 meant that one
coastalsite was not completedin March and
nosampling was completed in April. Allother
months were completed as required.

2.4.3 Monitor the standard of ambient air quality in Northland

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of air sheds meeting the nationalair ~ 100% compliance 100% - achieved
quality environmental standards.
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Regulatory services |Ratonga a ture

Funding Impact Statement

For the period ending 30 June

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties

Targeted rates
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees and charges

Internal charges and overheads recovered

Long Term
Plan
201819
5000

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts -

TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance costs

Internal charges and overheads applied

Other operating funding applications

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING

Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding
Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes
Increase/{decrease)in debt

Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions

Other dedicated capital funding

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Applications of capital funding

Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand

toimprove levels of service

toreplace existing assets
Increase/{decrease)in reserves
Increase/{decrease) of investments
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding
FUNDING BALANCE

Long Term
Plan
2019/20
5000
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Actual
2019/20
5000

- - 109
6,024 5,386 B713
- - 16

1,868 1,909 2.386
7,893 8,296 9,224
5,707 6,094 6,506
3,211 3,398 4,125
8,018 9,493 10,631
(1,025) (1.197) (1,407)
B7 10 58

100 43 243

- = (35)
(1,193) (1,249) (1.673)
(1,025) (1.197) (1.407)
1,025 1197 1.407
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Major variances compared to Year 2(2019/20) of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028
Operating Funding

Operating funding is S928K more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» Higher than planned consent application and monitoring fees

# Prosecutionincome not in the long term plan

Application of Operational Funding

Applications of operating funding is S1.14M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» Higheroverhead allocated to thisarearelating toa change in organisational structure moving staff between
activities.

» Higher than planned legal and consultant costs relating to the regional plan and freshwater National Palicy
Statement (NPS)implementation

» Higher than planned legal fees relating to environmental incidents
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Environmental services

Ratonga i te taiao

Tiakina te Taiao, tiakinate iwie

Protect the environment, protect the people
This group includes the following activities:

natural hazard management
hydrology

biosecurity

biodiversity

land and water

The activities contribute tothe followingcouncil areas
of focus (community outcomes):

» continuous improvement in water quality and
security of supply

» enhancement of indigenous biodiversity and
biosecurity

» enduring relationships with tangata whenua
e efficient and effective service delivery

Community well-being

Managing the natural resources of Northland is a
complex task encompassing social, economic,
environmental and culturalfactors. The environmental
services group of activities focuses onimproving the
natural environment through programmes of
management, protection and enhancement and
protecting Northland from natural hazards. This has
a positive effect on community well-being.

Changesto levels of service

The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 provided for a
‘maintained orincreased'level of servicewithineach
of theactivitiesinthe Environmental services group.
This proposed level of service has been maintained,
however the performance measuresand targets have
not been well achieved with only five out of 12
performance targets met. Of the seven targets not
met, two of these were due to the drought response
and the impactsof COVID-19, with afurther one being
acombination of these events plus other factors. The
additional four were largely due to external factors
outside of council's control. Overall, non-achievement
was minor and did not impact the level of service
provided.

What we did
Biosecurity

The biosecurity team has continued to grow
partnerships, working with community volunteers to
carry outvital pest controlwork. The biosecurity team
received over 5,100 public enquiries during the year,
sold more than 8994 predator traps, and carried out
araft of other work as highlighted below.

Incursions

Kauri dieback remains a major risk to the region, with
the kauri dieback team working quickly to complete
more than 117 management plans to prevent disease
spread onand off private land, sampling 70 sites plus
10 requests from the public, taking 157 soil samples
foranalysis, attended 28 community events and
fencing four at-risk forest blocks on private land. Our
deer response team responded to two deer farm
escapesand two illegal liberations that resulted in 14
deer kills.

Predator Free Whangarei

Predator Free Whangareiwas launched this year and
isa collaborative five-year project that builds on aver
20years of dedicated and successful community
predator controlinthe Whangareiarea. Over the next
five yearsthe projectaims to eradicate possumsfrom
the Whangarei Heads peninsula. Additional aims
include building upon existing predator control
programmes across the Whangarei District, and
focusing on urban and landscape scale predator
control targeting rats, mustelids and possums.

Kiwi Coast

Since getting underway seven years ago, the Kiwi

Coast has continuously expanded, as existing projects
linked in and new groups started. The Kiwi Coast has
grown to operate ataregional scale, linking projects
over 291km from Mangawhai at the southern limit of
the Northland region to the Aupouri Peninsulain the
FarNorth. Asat 30 June 2020, 159 entities have linked
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into Kiwi Coast, 153 of which are community-led
groups andactive projects. Collectively, these groups
and projects manage approximately 198,300 hectares.

Kiwi Coast's main priorities are to reduce threats to
kiwi survival and engage Northlanders in caring for
their kiwi. Kiwi Coast has continued to strategically
support predator controlin key areas tolink projects
and build continuous trapping networks across
landscapes to boost kiwisurvivaland allow their safe
dispersal into new areas.

Monitoring results demonstrate the strength of Kiwi
Coast's collaborative approach. Collated trap catch
datashowsthat 396,634 animal pests were caughtin
trapsbygroups and projectsinvolved in the Kiwi Coast
over the last seven years. An average of 1,800 pest
animals are now trapped on the Kiwi Coast every
week.

Urban pest control

Tiakina Whangarei has entered into its second year
and continues to create momentum in urban
conservation. Tiakina Whangareihas three key aims:
to increase community connections, ecological
knowledge and social well-being; encourage
kaitiakitanga and guardianship of the environment;
and protect and enhance native biodiversity. Traps
for rat and possum control are being distributed
throughout Whangarei as part of this project.

High Value Areas

Councils high value area programme has proven to
be extremely successful, working across large
landscapes to reduce the impacts of introduced
pests. High value pest control areas were
successfully implemented for Whangarei Heads, Mid
North/Bay of Islands, Tutukaka, Kai lwi Lakes and
Piroa-Brynderwyns, funded from the region-wide pest
managementrate.

Land and water

Over §$1.32 million from council's Environment Fund
(including Central Government Investment, MfE and
MPl)was allocated to land management projects
(activitiesinclude fencing, afforestation, soil
conservation planting, and water reticulation), and
162 Farm Environment Plans(FEPs) were completed
via the Long Term Plan 2018-2028 land management
programme, covering more than 32,730 ha of land.

Thisyear was the start of a four year, $3.4 million Hill
Country Erosion Fund project(co-funded by MPI)
focusing on sustainable hill country management
throughout the whole region, concentrating on
retirement of hill country and afforestation flagship
projects, plus important research on testing poplar
timberand developing mitigation regarding eroding
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harbour coastlines. This was the final year of the
Hatea catchment project(co-funded by the MfE).
Meaningful progress was made with stock exclusion
fencing, stock waterreticulation, andriparianplanting
carried out on properties above the Whangarei Falls.

The Waima Waitai Waiora project completed its third
year, withanumberof successfulinitiatives targeting
waterquality inthe Northern Wairoa catchment. The
project(consisting of eight partners including
agencies, iwi and hapd)included initiatives such as
granting funding and advice faor riparian fencing,
water reticulation, wetland restoration, Te Kawa
Wairoa (Maturanga Maori research project),
biodiversity enhancement, education and wananga,
and community and contractor planting achieving
100,000 native plants in the ground.

Biodiversity

Biodiversity work has included the completion of 14
Biodiversity Plans with landowners and iwi, and
submerged weed annual surveillance in Kai lwi lakes.
The annual lakes ecological monitoring with NIWA
was postponed due to the impacts of COVID-19.

Dune lakes

On-the-groundwork on the Freshwater Improvement
Fund (FIF)Year 3 dune lake programme incorporated
netting of pest fish in four lakes. Only two of the five
planned event days for dune lakes education were
able to be held due to the impacts of COVID-19. These
events were held at Waimimiha and Ngatu for more
than 110 students from numerous schools. One hui
was held in conjunction with dune lakes
Kaiwhakahaere (FIF iwirepresentatives)and asecond
hui to work on the matauranga Maori component of
the project was cancelled due to the impacts of
COVID-19. Kaiwhakahaere took the o pportunity to visit
the NIWA freshwater plant growing facilities with
council staff, and also attended a lake symposium in
Hamilton. A programme of continued trainingwas
provided for FIF staff and Kaiwhakahaere, including
water safety, kayaking and electricfishing. Grass carp
removal operations had to be postponed due to the
impacts of COVID-19. Planning is well underway for
earthworks and sediment mitigation scheduled in
summer of Year Four at several dunelakes. A
significant amount of herbicide for aquatic plant
eradication operations in three Far North Lakes was
imported from the USA and is in storage for
deployment in spring 2020(Year Four).

CoastCare

CoastCare staff work with groups and communities
across Northland, as well as local and central
government agencies and iwi, to achieve protection
and restoration of dune systems. This happens
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through support of CoastCare groups and provision
of advice (including restoration plans), plants and
other materials, earthworks, and weed control.

Overthe lastyear 12,962 plants have been provided
throughthe CoastCare programme for 15 sitesaround
the region. Seventeen schooland community events
have been attended by CoastCare staff. Key
CoastCare messages have also been promoted
throughnewsletters, videos, socialmedial campaigns,
posters, brochures and signs with the support of the
council's communications team.

CoastCare staff have again worked alongside the Far
North District Council, the Department of
Conservation, and local iwi to support the
collaborative Far North Kaitiaki Ranger programmes,
which have been expanded this year to include Te
Oneroa-a-Tohé (Ahipara to Hukatere), Kaimaumau,
andDoubtless Bay, as well as continuing on at Karikari
Peninsula.

Flood mapping and models

The Awanuiand Kerikeri models were updated to
include the latest LiDAR and to correct some minor
anomalies found in the mapping. The new Awanui
mapping is being used for the detailed design of the
Awanui scheme upgrade, which willincreasethe level
of service from 1:30 year annual exceedance
probability (AEP) to 1:100 year AEP protection.

3.1 Natural Hazard Management

Performance measures and targets
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The LiDAR digital elevation model has been made
available to the public and is also being used to
generate a hydro-enforced digital elevationmodeland
aregion-wide flood model. The new LiDAR is also
beingused to update the Coastal Flood Hazard maps,
plus multiple internal uses such as identifying slope
stability, Kauridieback and wilding pines, and mapping
wetlands.

Kaipara Moana Remediation Programme

Astrongbusiness case forasignificant cross-regional
programme to help restore Kaipara Moana was
developed in partnership with Kaipara Uri (Te Uri o
Hau, Te Roroa, Nga Maunga Whakahto Kaipara, Ngati
Whatua Orakeiand Te Rananga o Ngati Whatua),
Auckland Counciland Kaiparaand Whangarei District
Councils. The proposed Kaipara Moana Remediation
Programme is a $300 million programme, over a
10-yearperiod, aimed atrestoring waterqualityin the
Kaipara Moana through a range of initiatives planned
to halve sediment loss from the land to the sea. The
programme recently received Crown funding of S100
million for the first six years with co-funding from
Auckland Council and Northland Regional Council to
be consulted on through respective Long Term Plan
processes. A co-governance committee will be
established to provide oversight of this exciting
project that has the potential to make a significant
different to the health and mauri of the Kaipara
Moana.

3.1.1 Identify and make available information on areas potentially affected by natural hazards through mapping

Performance measure Target

Number (and percentage) of river catchments
flood-mapped to identify river flooding hazards.

By 2019/20 - 29

(22.5%)

By 2020/21-129

(100%)

By 2018/19 - 28(21.7%)

2019/20 result

28 catchments(21.7%) - not achieved

The preliminary region-wide LiDAR was only
delivered in March. Awanui and Kerikeri
Catchments have beenupgraded to reflect
new LiDAR.

Theupgraded models betterreflect the best
available data.
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3.2 Hydrology

Performance measures and targets

3.2.1 Provide information on water resources including rainfall, flood levels and ground water

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of time that flood level monitoringis 100% compliance No flood warnings - achieved
accuratetoenablefloodwarningsto be developed.

3.3 Biosecurity

Performance measures and targets

3.3.1 Promote community involvement in pest management

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Increasein hectares of land under Community Pest  Increase by 5000 10,953 haincrease - achieved
Control Area Plans (CPCAs) per annum. hectares annually

Increase in kiwi populatiﬁTs within council Increase by 2% 7.3 kiwi calls per hour - not achieved

supported programmes annually

(2018/19 result: 7.2 calls per hour)

1. monitored in accordance with the standardised Department of Conservation kiwi call count monitoring scheme.

=

3.3.2 Implement measures to slow the introduction and spread of new and established marine pests

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Survey at least 2000 vessel hulls for marine pests 2000 hulls annually 2,048 hulls inspected - achieved
each year as part of the Marine Pathway
Management Plan.

3.4 Biodiversity

Performance measures and targets

3.4.1 Maintain and enhance indigenous biodiversity and eco-systems around our rivers, lakes, wetlands and coastal

margins

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result
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margins

Number of wetlandsmenhancement and
protection projects funded via Efund annually.

Number of plants provided through CoastCare
programme.

Number of objectives metthat are set ouE:} annual
work plan for Freshwater Improvement

1. Includes Top Wetlands

By 2018/18-13
By 2019/20 - 14
By 2020/21-15

By 2027/28 - 20

By 2018/18 - 11,000
By 2019/20 - 12,000
By 2020/21-13,000

By 2027/28 - 20,000

100% of objectives
met

ITEM: 5.1
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3.4.1 Maintain and enhance indigenous biodiversity and eco-systems around our rivers, lakes, wetlands and coastal

13 wetlands - not achieved

One project was withdrawn aslandownerwas
unableto have contractor carry outwork due
to impacts of COVID-19.

12,962 - achieved

60% - not achieved.

Of six objectives, one has been achieved,
three have been largely achieved with some
actions and events delayed due to impacts
of COVID-19. One is not due to start until
2020/21 and one has been repealed.

2. Objectives are set out in Ministry for the Environment project work plans for the Northern Wairca and Dune Lakes Freshwater Improvement Fund

projects.

3.5 Land and water

Performance measures and targets

3.5.1 Promoteimproved water quality by providing advice and funding on sustainable land management, soil conservation,

and biodiversity through farm management and catc

hment management initiatives

Performance measure

Area hectares (ha)of land being actively managed
under a sustainable farm environment plan.

Area(ha) of highly erodible land being actively
managed under a farm environment plan.

Number of subsidised poplar poles provided for
erosion-prone land by the Flyger Road nursery.

Target

Increase 25,000 ha
perannum

Maintain orincrease
(from baseline data)

By 2018/18 - 6000
By 2019/20-7000
By 2020/21-8000

By 2027/28 - 20,000

2019/20 result

32,730 ha- achieved

6,519 ha - not achieved

(2018/19 result: 7,000 ha)

4,616 poles - not achieved

Lower numbers due to the impacts of the
drought response and COVID-19. No subsidy
package provided this year until SHaRP
begins.
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ed water qualit providingadvice andfundingon s i e land management, soil conservation,

and biodiversity through farm management and catchment management

Kilometres of waterway margins protected to Increase (from 181kms - not achieved
reduce sediment, nutrient run-off and general baseline data)
contamination of water, funded by the (2018/19 result: 297 kms)

Environment Fund.
Thisis due to concentrating on hill country

and wetland fencing, which is more
expensive, therefore we were not able to
complete as much.
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Environmental services |Ratongai te taiao
Funding Impact Statement

Long Term Long Term
Plan Plan Actual
2018/19 2019/20 2019/20
5000 S000 5000

For the period ending 30 June

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties - - 130
Targeted rates 7,395 8,196 8,010
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 506 330 2,897
Fees and charges 441 446 567

Internal charges and overheads recovered - - -

Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts - - -

TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING 8,343 8,973 11,604
Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 8,861 9,293 10,898
Finance costs - - -
Internal charges and overheads applied 2,440 2,583 3,168

Other operating funding applications - - -

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING 11,301 11,876 14,067
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (2,958) (2,903) (2,463)
Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes - - -
Increase/{decrease)in debt - - -
Gross proceeds from sale of assets - -

Lump sum contributions - - -

Other dedicated capital funding = = -

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING = =
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand - - -

toimprove levels of service 151 403 158
toreplace existing assets 9 2 1
Increase/{decrease)in reserves (234) - (108)
Increase/{decrease) of investments (2.885) (3,308) (2,516)
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (2,958) (2,903) (2,463)
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding 2,958 2,903 2,463

FUNDING BALANCE = = _
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Major variances compared to Year 2(2019/20) of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028
Operational funding
Operating funding is $2.63M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

o Ministry for Primary Industries grants for the sustainable hill country and regional pricrities project not in the
long term plan.

o Ministry for Primary Industries subsidies for a wilding pine removal project not in the long term plan

e Subsidies for the LIDAR programme not in the long term plan

» Ministry for the enviranment subsides for freshwater improvement fund projects not in the long term plan

Application of operational funding
Applications of operating funding is S2.1M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

Expenditure for the sustainable hill country and regional priorities project not in the long term plan
Expenditure for the freshwater improvement fund projects not in the long term plan

Expenditure for the LIDAR programme notin the long term plan

Expenditure for the wilding pine removal project notin the long term plan
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River management

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Ratonga whakahaere a awa

Ko au te awa, ko te awa ko au
{am theriver; theriveris me
This group includes the River Management activity.

The activity contributes to the following council area
of focus (community outcome):

e Safe and resilient communities;
e Efficientand effective service delivery.

Community well-being

Theriver management group of activities focuses on
managing risk and protecting Northland communities
from flood hazards. This involves the preparation,
implementation and maintenance of risk reduction
plans, flood control works and assets in conjunction
with local river management working groups. The
river management activity has a positive effect on
community well-being by improving community
resilience.

Changesto level of service

The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 provided for an
‘increased" level of service for the river management
activity, which has been achieved as evidenced by
achievement of the performance measure.

4.1 River management

Performance measures and targets

What we did
Awanui upgrade

The Juken New Zealand (UNL)spillway bypass was
almost completed, and on budget, however due to
the impacts of COVID-19 less than 5% of work
remains.

Matangirau

After community consultation, detailed design and
resource consenting, itwas agreed to complete atest
section so that the community could gauge the works
effectiveness and impacton theirland. This was
completed in December2019. The remainder of the
worksarescheduled forcompletioninthe2020-2021
works season. Further community consultation is
scheduled later this year.

Panguru

This work was completed prior to the impacts of
COVID-19, with only grassing and fencing remaining,
however this has now also been completed.

Kawakawa-Taumarere

This workwas scheduled to startin the third week of
March, however had to be postponed due to the
impacts of COVID-19. Work is now scheduled to begin
mid-January 2021.

Whangarei

This work was completed in the 2019-2020 work
season.

4.1.1 Build, monitor and maintain flood protection schemes to protect life and property

Performance measure

Number of flood events occurring as a result of failures of flood protection systems  Zero
forthe Awanui, Whangarei, and Kaeo schemes below specified design levels. !

Target 2019/20 result

Zero failures -
achieved
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1. The number of flood events arising due to the failure of the flood protections systems is considered to be the most direct measure of whether these
systems are repaired and renewed to the standards set out inthe activity management plans.
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River management |Ratonga whakahaere a awa
Funding Impact Statement

Long Term Long Term
Plan Plan Actual
2018/19 2019/20 2019/20
S000 S000 S000

For the period ending 30 June

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties - - 72
Targeted rates 4,630 5,019 4,842
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - ]
Fees and charges - - 7
Internal charges and overheads recovered 34 17 32
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 36 36 40
TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING 4,700 5,072 5,001

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 2,248 2,679 2,569
Finance costs 419 517 445
Internal charges and overheads applied 894 947 305

Other operating funding applications - - -

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING 3,559 4,143 3,319
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 1,141 929 1,682
Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes - - -
Increase/{decrease)in debt 2 BB7 1,445

Gross proceeds from sale of assets - - -
Lump sum contributions - - -

Other dedicated capital funding = = -

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING 2,667 1445
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand - - -

toimprove levels of service 2,277 1471 2,250
to replace existing assets 694 405 &
Increase/{decrease)in reserves 1,542 1,368 (B33)
Increase/{decrease) of investments (705) (871) 261
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING 3,808 2,374 1,682
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding (1.141) (929) (1.682)

FUNDING BALANCE = = _
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Major Variances compared to Year 2(2019/20) of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028
Application of Operational Funding
Applications of operating funding is S824K less than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» | ower overhead allocated to this arearelating to a change in organisational structure moving staff between
activities.

Sources of Capital Funding
Sources of capital funding is $1.4M less than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» Not requiring borrowing on flood infrastructure work during the year. This was due to both delays from
COVID-19 on work until laterin the year and having surplus rates to utilise instead of needing to borrow.

Capital Expenditure
Capital Expenditure is $378K more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

* Some overruns on flood infrastructure capex.
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Customer services and community

resilience

Ratonga manawaroa a hapori

Hei aha te mea nui i tenei Ao? He tangata, he tangata, he tangata

What is the greatest thing in the world? It is people, it is community

This group includes the following activities:

customer services

civil defence emergency management
oil pollution response

harbour safety and navigation
transport

These activities contribute to the following
council areas of focus (community outcomes):

a strong regional economy
safe and resilient communities
efficient and effective service delivery

efficient and effective land transport policies and
public transport

Community well-being

Council is continually working to improve the safety
andresilience of Northlandand itscommunities. This
includes working to keep people safe on the roads
and on the water, preparingthe region foremergency
situations, and ensuring that council provides
professional and timely interaction with the people
of Northland. This group of activities works to ensure
that excellent customer service is delivered across
all activities.

The activities within the Customer Services and
Community Resilience group are considered to have
a positive effect on community well-being.

Changesto levels of service

The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 provided for a
‘maintained orincreased’ level of servicewithineach
of the activities in the Customer services and
community resilience group. This proposed level of
service has been achieved as evidenced

by achievement of nine out of 11 performance targets.
The two instances of non-achievement were minor,
with one being a direct result of the impacts of
COVID-19, and did not impact on the overall level of
service provided.

What we did
Customer services

Thetotalnumber of incoming calls through customer
services was 27,263 with 98.1% of calls being
answered within 30 seconds.

Maritime
Incidents

The total number of maritime incidents far the year
was 261, with 28 accidents including collision,
grounding and near misses. Thirty-eight incidents
were received relating to navigation aids, mostly due
to them being out of position or light failures.
Moorings also featured highly with 35 incidents
reported, most of them related to illegal occupation
and/or placement.

Thirty-four oil spills were reported and responded to
throughout the region.

Offences against the Navigation Safety Bylaw
featured most heavily, with 90 incidents reported.
Offences were largely due to speeding, obstruction
to navigation, and jet skiregistration/identification.

The remainder of incidents were miscellaneous,
ranging from floating obstructions to navigation and
abandoned or derelict vessels.

Shipping

The 2019/2020 cruise ship season was mostly
successfuluntilitwas cutshortby the impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Fifty-four cruise ships
successfully called into the Bay of Islands, with 16
vessel visits lost as a result of the pandemic. Work
has been ongoing to develop a simulator model for
the Bay of Islands to supplement pilot training and
ongoing professional development. The pilottraining
manual is also under periodic review. Navigational
safety was enhanced for the Bay of Islands with the
installation of a wave rider buoy to collate and
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transmit real time data surrounding swell direction
and height. The buoy also serves as a platform for
other departments with a monitoring and sampling
function.

Council vessels

Council'svessel Waikare'underwent majorwork, with
afull main engine replacement. Both engines were
replaced with refurbished units to ensure the vessel
remains reliable and fit for purpose during critical
operations.

Other projects

Work continued on maintenance dredging in the
Hateariver. Hydrographic survey equipmenthas been
successfully commissioned and is being applied to
effectively obtain accurate high density hydrographic
data throughout the region. The successful
application of the equipment has gained significant
interest from third party stakeholders.

Regional Transport
Planning

Work has continued on the 2021-2027 Regional Land
Transport Plan and the Regional Public Transport
Plan. Both documents must be submitted by 30 April
2021inorderfor Northland tobe inapositiontoapply
for national funding assistance for transport
infrastructureand servicesforthe2021-2027financial
period.

The Regional Walking and Cycling Strategy was
completed during this period.

Contracted bus services

Allbus services were severely affected by theimpacts
of the COVID-19 pandemic at the end of the financial
year. Until existing and new passengers consider
public transport to be a safe option, passenger
numbers are likely to remain down during the
2020/2021financial period.

Whangarei CityLink

Following the reduction in fares on the Whangarei
CityLink bus service in October 2018, passenger
numbers continuedtoreflectanupward trendin both
passengers and revenue. This positive trend was
abruptly halted due to the pandemic.

The new electronic ticketing system, the BEE Card,
is now fully operational on this service.

Far North Link

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

The Far North Link bus service carried 4,909
passengers during the year. SuperGold Card travel
concession was introduced in 2018/2019.

Mid North Link

The Mid North bus service carried 1,809 passengers.
This service was reduced in line with

reduced customer demand. SuperGold Card is also
accepted on this service.

The Hokianga Link

This service, which combines with the Mid North Link,
carried 609 passengers during the 20219/2020
financial year. SuperGold Card is now accepted on
this service.

Bream Bay Link trial service

This new once per week service was introduced in
August 2019 and operated between Kaiwaka via
Mangawhai, Waipl, Ruakaka to Whangarei. It has
proven to bemore popularthanoriginally anticipated.
Total passengers carried were 507.

Total Mobility

Our current Total Mobility database has 1,632 active
clients, anincrease of 128. Advertisingand promotion
of the scheme has been increased in an effort to
create greater awareness of the benefits. Thisis
combined with encouraging agencies to be more
proactive inintroducing eligible clientsto the scheme.

Trips declined by 2,997 this year due to the impacts
of COVID-19. A new transport operator was
contracted, which doubled wheelchair-capable
vehicles from two to four.

Regional Road Safety

Regional Road Safety partners continue with
advertising, promoting and initiatives in an effort to
reduce the increased deaths and serious injuries on
the region's roads. Approaches to NZTA for the
installation of centre barriers on the region's state
highways continues.

During the 2019/2020 year, there were 27 deaths and
168 serious injuries on Northland roads.

Civil defence emergency management

This year required the longest continuous response
in the history of the Northland Civil Defence
Emergency Management(CDEM)Group. The arrival
of the COVID-19 pandemic, overlapping with the
ongoing drought, amounted to more than 19 weeks
inresponse, includinga seven-week State of National
Emergency. Both responses brought their own
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challenges (particularly COVID-19 and the need to
continue operating effectively through the lockdown
phase), and led to new ways of working together with
partner agencies, Government departments, iwi,
community groups, and others.

Alasting and highly valued outcome of this time has
beenthe collaboration with Northlandiwi(represented
by Te Kahuo Taonui[TKoT]). Two representatives of
TKoT have been appointed to Northland CDEM’s
Coordinating Executive Group (CEG)and iwiare also
represented on the Narthland Welfare Coordination
Group(WCG) aswellas othergroups associated with
welfare and the ongoing recovery.

Thisyear's drought in Northland has been one of the
most severe on record (and was ultimately classified
by the Government asa large-scale adverse eventfor
most of the country: all of the North Island, the top
of the South Island down to North Canterbury, and
the Chatham Islands).

Working with Northland's four councils, emergency
services and Northland District Health Board, aninitial
priority was to set up emergency water supplies in
case they were required in the locations where town
water supplies came under most pressure - Kaitaia,
Kaikohe and Rawene. Northland CDEM Group
requested assistance from the New Zealand Defence
Force, which provided trucks with water tanks
installed and a team of drivers to deliver water to
community facilitiesand marae, in case it was needed
by the communities they serve. The commitment of
Fonterra and Fire and Emergency New Zealand was
essential to refilling the emergency water supplies if
theyhad beenrequired. Iwienabled alternative water
sourcesto be established, and worked with Northland
CDEM(along with staff contributed from a range of
organisations)to coordinate water deliveries. The
Northland CDEM Group, supported by central
government funding and iwi, established a network
and a process to fill and clean tanks of those in need
(totalling almost 300 tanks).

The rural sector - farmers, growers and supporting
businesses - was heavily impacted and assistance
was coordinated by the Northland Rural Support Trust,
together with the Ministry for Primary Industries.

Looking to the future, representatives of the
Northland DHB Public Health Unit, Te Puni Kokiri and
the Northland CDEM Group have collectively
recognised that there is a vulnerable community of
whanaulivinginrural communitiesin Northland, which
is struggling to access the quantity and quality of
water they need for drinking, cooking, bathing,
handwashing, and growing their kai. This is due to
socio-economic constraints and poor infrastructure
(failing tanks and poorsupply systems). Itis proposed
that a project be established in consultation with the
key partners and iwi, to carry out a scoping exercise
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designed to identify and prioritise the at-risk
communitiesthat would most benefit from assistance
inrepairs, maintenance or water supplyinfrastructure
upgrades.

Meanwhile, the COVID-19response was a CDEM
welfare response for Northland communities. All
CDEM groups nationwide were tasked with the
responsibility for providing emergency household
goods and servicesto thoseunable to accesssupplies
themselves. In Northland, an 0800 numbersetup in
late March received more than 680 calls over seven
weeks.

Other response activities included
Intelligence-gathering and reporting from agencies
and the community to the National Emergency
Management Agency(NEMA) and Northland CDEM
stakeholders.

Central government funding was made available to
support both responses. More than S1.8 millionin
funding from central Government was provided
through the Northland CDEM Group to Northland iwi,
foodbanks, community food organisations and other
welfare providers. Thisfunding supportedthe delivery
of food and welfare assistance, following the
announcementin late April of a nationwide S30 million
support package.(This was in addition to grants from
charitable foundations and other funding providedin
the initial stages of the COVID-19 response via the
Ministry of Social Development and Te Puni Kokiriand
other funding organisations).

Notwithstanding the challenges of the COVID-19
response, new technology platformswere introduced
both nationally and within Northland, including Emi,
aninformation management tool builtusing Microsoft
Teams for use nationally during emergency/event
activations. Thisreplaces the previous EMIS system.

Northland continues to move forward on a shared
services basis and the agreements with all three of
the region’s district councils are in the process of
theirannual renewals.

Other notable events of the yearincluded the
establishment of the new National Emergency
Management Agency(NEMA)-akey component of
the reforms of New Zealand's emergency
management system. NEMA became operational on
1December 2019 and replaced the Ministry of Civil
Defence & Emergency Management.

Northland CDEM Group has begun areview of its
Group plan, which will outline how CDEM will be
delivered in Northland over the coming five years.
CDEM Group plans are arequirement for all CDEM
Groups under the CDEM Act 2002. This will be the
fourth Northland CDEM Group plan, with previous
plans having been adopted in 2004, 2010 and 2016.
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5.1 Customer services

Performance measures and targets

5.1.1 Providing meaningful customer service

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result
Percentage of customers surveyed who are Maintain or increase  58% - achieved
satisfied with the quality of service received (specific targets will

following aninteraction with council. beset once baseline  (2018/19 result: 52%)

established)

5.2 Civil defence emergency management

Performance measures and targets

5.2.1 Provide accurate and timely flood warnings to enable communities to take precautionary measures to protect

life and property

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result
Percentage of time that accurate flood warnings ~ 100% compliance No rainfall events warranting warning -
are issued in accordance with the council's flood achieved

warnings procedures.

5.2.2 Maintain an effective civil defence emergency management system

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of time that emergenciesm
debriefed within one month, and noted
improvements are incorporated into the
appropriate emergency operating procedures and
response plans.

are 100% annually Achieved

1. Emergencies that require the activation of an emergency operations centre.

5.3 Oil pollution response

Performance measures and targets

5.3.1 Maintain an efficient and responsive oil pollutionresponse

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Maintaina regional oil spill response plan, includir}% Maintain a minimum 30 responders - achieved
a minimum of 30 up-to-date trained responders’” of 30 responders at all
times
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1. The numberoftrained respondersrequired is set by Maritime Pollution Response Services, Maritime New Zealand in accordance with anational plan.

5.4 Harbour safety and navigation

Performance measures and targets

4.1 Provide regional navigational safety control of shipping and small craft, provide aids to navigation to ensure the

region’'s navigable waters are safe for people to use, and manage the region’'s moorings.

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Percentage of time that the operational safety 100% compliance 100% - achieved
management system for the pilotage areas of

Whangarei and Bay of Islands cmnplies with the

Port and Harbour Safety Code.

Percentage of time that pilotage in the Bay of 100% compliance 100% - achieved
Islands is provided in aft):ordance with the safety
management system. £

Percentage of reported aids to navigation faults 100% compliance 100% - achieved
that are responded to within five working days.

Percentage of moorings eitherservicedwithinthe ~ 95% of moorings 98.5% - achieved
past three years or booked to be serviced.

1. Operational safety management system compliance with the Port and Harbour Safety Code is measured by conducting an annual self-ossessment
and periodic peer review.
2. Operational safety management system compliance with the Port and Harbour Safety Code is measured by conducting anannual self-assessment.

5.5 Transport
Performance measures and targets

5.5.1 Provide an efficient and effective public bus service

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Number of p'aﬁsengers for the Whangarei urban  Maintain 310,000 per 308,789 - not achieved

bus service. annum
Due to the impacts of COVID-19, passenger
numbers on the CityLink services severely
declined.

Percentage of passenge&s)satisfied with overall ~ 95% compliance 91.8% - not achieved

Whangarei bus service.
Lower satisfaction is due to current

frequency, the need for a better terminal,
and road works causing delays.

1. Other bus services apart from Whangarei not included as they are either minor, temporary or trial services only.
2. Passenger satisfaction rating of six or above on a 10 point scale.
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5.5.2 Plan for the

Performance measure Target 2019/20 result

Develop and maintain statutory transport planning By 2018/19 - Adopt Achieved
documentsincluding the Regional Land Transport RLTP and RPTP

Plan (RLTP) and Regional Public Transport Plan
(RPTP).

Annual Report 2020 | Parongo & tau 2020
54

ID: A1370066

98



Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 4

Customer services and community resilience | Ratonga manawaroa a hapori
Funding Impact Statement

Long Term Long Term
Plan Plan Actual
2018/19 2019/20 2019/20
S000 S000 S000

For the period ending 30 June

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties - - 70
Targeted rates 4,480 4,715 4,872
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 2,539 2,639 4,899
Fees and charges 1.820 1,859 173
Internal charges and overheads recovered ] 8 23
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 221 367 -
TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING 9,079 9,488 11,677

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 8,319 8,566 10,87
Finance costs 221 367 4
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,603 1,691 1,736

Other operating funding applications - - -

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING 10,142 10,624 12,61
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (1,084) (1136) (934)
Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes - - 27
Increase/{decrease)in debt - - -
Gross proceeds from sale of assets - -

Lump sum contributions - - -

Other dedicated capital funding = = -

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING - - 27
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand - - -

toimprove levels of service 434 - 45
toreplace existing assets 185 25 94
Increase/{decrease)in reserves (18) (16) 56
Increase/{decrease) of investments (1,665) (1,144) (1.102)
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING (1.064) (1136) (907)
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding 1,064 1,136 934

FUNDING BALANCE = = _
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Major variances compared to Year 2(2019/20) of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028
Operational Funding
Operating funding is S2.19M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

e Subsidies from the Ministry of Civil Defence relating to drought and COVID-19 responsesnotinthelongterm
plan
» Ashared civil defence function co funded by the district council's not in the long term plan

Application of Operational Funding
Applications of operating funding is $1.99M more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» Costsrelating to the COVID-19 and drought responses not in the long term plan
e Costs for the shared civil defence function notin the long term plan
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Corporate excellence

Ratonga rangapd

Ma e huru huru, ka rere te manu

Adorn the bird with feathers so it canfly
This group includes the corporate services activity.

This activity contributes to all council areas of
focus (community outcomes):

» continuous improvement in water quality and
security of supply

» enhancement of indigenous biodiversity and
biosecurity

a strong regional economy

safe and resilient communities

enduring relationships with tangata whenua
efficient and effective service delivery
improved returns on council investments

efficient and effective land transport policies and
public transport

Community well-being

The corporate excellence group encompasses many
of the corporate and support functions required to
ensure that council business is runin an efficient,
accountable, andlegislatively compliant manner. This
includesmanagement of council'sfinancial operations
and investments, human resources and health and
safety, information management, information
technology, property, and otheradministration.

This service underpins all the work that council
undertakes in the areas of governance and
engagement, regulatory services, environmental
services, and customer service and community
resilience. Without it council could not deliver any of
the levels of service discussed above.

The corporate excellence activity is considered to
have a positive effect on community well-being.

Changesto level of service

The Long Term Plan 2018-2028 provided for an
‘increasing” level of service for the corporate
excellence activity in line with the need to support
increases to all other council activities, and an
increase in service resulting from the Regional
sporting facilitiesrate. Thisproposed level of service
has been achieved, with the distribution of more

than $550,000 of funding from the Regional sporting
facilities rate, however the performance measures
and targets have not been well achieved with only 27
out of 51 performance measures met. Of the 24
targets not met, nine of these were due to the drought
response and the impacts of COVID-19, with afurther
one beinga combination of these events plus other
factors. The additional 14 targets not met were due
toanumber of reasons, many because of external
factors outside of council's control. Overall,
non-achievement did not impact the level of service
provided.
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Corporate excellence | Ratonga rangap
Funding Impact Statement

Long Term Long Term
Plan Plan Actual
2018/19 2019/20 2019/20
S000 S000 S000

For the period ending 30 June

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties - - 21
Targeted rates 1757 2122 1,332
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - 1,683
Fees and charges 120 123 81
Internal charges and overheads recovered 9,059 9,583 10,060
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 8,996 10,629 10,265
TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING 19,932 22,457 23,442

Applications of operating funding

Payments to staff and suppliers 9,145 10,507 9,264
Finance costs 86 89 321
Internal charges and overheads applied 14 121 107

Other operating funding applications - - -

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING 9,345 10,717 9,692
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 10,588 1,740 13,750
Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes - - -
Increase/{decrease)in debt - - -
Gross proceeds from sale of assets - 14,194 731
Lump sum contributions - - -

Other dedicated capital funding = - -

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING = 14,194 731
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand - - -

toimprove levels of service 730 524 5,156
toreplace existing assets 524 14,916 4,580
Increase/{decrease)in reserves 2,106 2,610 12,086
Increase/{decrease) of investments 7,227 7.883 (781)
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING 10,588 25,934 21,061
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding (10,588) (11,740) (13,750)

FUNDING BALANCE = = _
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Major variances compared to Year 2(2020/21) of the Long Term Plan 2018-2028
Operational Funding
Operating funding is S986K more than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» \Wage subsidies notin the long termplan

» Higher than planned overhead recoveries

» Anunplanned vested asset resulting from the Marsden Point Rail Link asset disposal.
» Higher than planned commercial rent income

Offset by:

* | ower than planned council services rates allocated to this activity
o Aforestry harvest planned for LTP year two occurred instead in LTP year one
» | ower than planned externally managed fund gains due to lower fund balances than planned.

Sources of Capital Funding

Sources of capital funding is $6.9M less than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» The sale of commercial properties held for resale did not occur as originally in the long term plan
Capital Expenditure

Capital Expenditure is $56.7M less than the long term plan predominantly due to:

» Expenditure on the Kensington redevelopment being lower than in the long term plan
e Expenditure on the Kaipara Service Centre being lower than in the long term plan
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Financial prudence

Rates affordability benchmarks

The council meets the rates affordability benchmark
if:

e its actual rates income equals or is less than each
quantified limit on rates (no more than 65% total
revenue); and

e ts actual rates increases equal or are less than
each quantified limit on rates increases.

Rates income affordability

The following graph compares the council's actual
rates income with aquantified limit onrates contained
inthe financial strategy included in the council's Long
Term Plan2018-2028. The quantified limit is no more
than 65% of total revenue.
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Rates increase affordability

The following graph compares the council's actual
rates increases with a quantified limit on rates
increases in the financial strategy included in the
council's Long Term Plan 2018-2028. The quantified
limit is 10 %.
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In 2018-19 council decided to breach its quantified
limitonratesrisesinordertoundertake programmes
that allow it to meet community and central
government expectations. This is considered an
exceptional year and an opportunity to position
council for the medium to long term.

Debt affordability benchmarks

The council meets the debt affordability benchmark
if its actual borrowing is within each quantified limit
on borrowing.

The following graphs compare the council's actual
borrowingwith quantified limits on borrowing stated
inthe financial strategy included in the council's Long
Term Plan 2018-2028.

Northland Regional Council has $19.6 million of
external debt.

Net debt to total revenue

The guantified limit for net debt as a proportion of
total revenue is 1775 %.

AL

i

Northland Regional Council carries significant
investments categorised as non-current assets that
could be liquidated if required.
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Net interest to total revenue

The guantified limit for net interest as a proportion
of total revenue is 10%.
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Net interest to annual rates revenue

The guantified limit for net interest as a proportion

of annual rates revenue is 25%.

Council measures liquidity as total externally managed
funds overtotal external borrowings. The quantified
limit for liquidity is set as a minimum of 110%.
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Balanced budget benchmark

This graph shows council's revenue (excluding
development contributions, financial contributions,
vested assets, gains on derivative financial
instruments, and revaluations of property, plant, or
equipment)as a proportion of operating expenses
(excludinglosses on derivative financial instruments
and revaluations of property, plant, orequipment). The
totalsusedinthe graph do include gains orlosses on
disposal of property, plant, or equipment. Council
meets this benchmark if its revenue equals oris
greaterthan its operating expenses. The benchmark
is represented by the black line.
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Essential services benchmark

This graph shows the council's capital expenditure
onnetwork services(flood protection)as a proportion
of depreciation on network services.

The council meets this benchmark if its capital
expenditure on network services equals orisgreater
than depreciation on network services. The
benchmark is represented by the black line.
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2016-17and 2017-18 reflects lower capital expenditure
due to the reclassification of Kerikeriflood protection
works from capital expenditure originally incurred in
2015 -16 to operation expenditure in 2016 -17 and
2017-18 as the project did not continue.

2018-19 and 2019-20 reflect the capital cost
associated with the Flood Infrastucture Schemes
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Debt servicing benchmark

The following graph displays the council's borrowing
costs as a proportion of revenue (excluding
development contributions, financial contributions,
vested assets, gains on derivative financial
instruments, and revaluations of property, plant, or
equipment).

Because Statistics New Zealand projects the
populationserved by the council will grow more slowly
than the national population growth rate, it meets the
debt servicingbenchmarkif it's borrowing costs equal
or are less than 10% of its revenue. The benchmark
is represented by the black line.
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Debt control benchmark

The following graph displays the council's actual net
debtas a proportion of planned net debt. In this
statement, net debt means financial liabilities less
financial assets (excluding trade and other
receivables).

Northland Regional Council has low external debt, so
therefore has planned to have net assets inall the
years represented in the following graph. Financial
assets(excluding trade and other receivables)were
planned to exceed its financial liabilities.

The council meets the debt control benchmark if its
actual net debt equals oris less than its planned net
debt. For the purposes of this measure 100% equals
planned net assets and an amount higher than 100%
represents lower net debt than planned. The
benchmark is represented by the black line.
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2019-20reflects capital works funded by either debt
or reductions in council's externally managed funds
not occurring as planned.

Operations control benchmark

This graph displays the council's actual net cash flow
from operations as a proportion of its planned net
cash flow from operations.

Thecouncilmeetstheoperations controlbenchmark
if its actual net cash flow from operations equals or
is greater than its planned net cash flow from
operations. For the purposes of this measure 100%
equals planned net cash flow. The benchmark is
represented by the black line.
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Statement of comprehensive revenue

and expense

Council

30-Jun-20
For the year ended 30 June 2020 5000

Annual Plan
30-Jun-20
5000

Council
30-Jun-19
5000

Consolidated

30-Jun-19

5000

Revenue

Rates 29,497 29,860 27,203 29,497 27,203
Fees and charges 4,842 4,388 4 487 5,964 6,024
Subsidies and grants 12,008 4,793 4,800 12113 5,005
Revenue from activities = = = 1.816 1,458
Interest revenue 624 1.001 731 B31 753
Otherrevenue 2(ii) 8,306 6,704 7528 9,838 8,216
Other gains 2iii) 3,737 2,339 4,970 2,801 5,574
TOTALREVENUE 1 59,014 49,085 49,820 62,660 54,233
Expenses

Personnel costs 3 17,892 17,623 15,836 20,725 18,680
Depreciation and amortisation expense 14 1740 1,810 1.629 2,231 2,084
Finance costs 930 1,340 903 1.430 1.241
Other expenses 4 33,685 28,681 26,414 38,070 30,080
TOTAL EXPENSES 1 54,247 49,404 44,881 63,456 51,985
Share of associate and joint venture company THilii) - - - 8,748 9,007
surplus/{deficit)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX 4,767 (369) 4,939 7,952 11,255
Income tax expense ) - - - (22) (19)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 4,767 (369) 4,939 7,930 1,236
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Northland Regional Council 4767 (369) 4,939 4,799 6,604
Mon-controlling interest - 313 4,632
Other comprehensive revenue and expense

Items that will be reclassified to surplus/{deficit ):

Net hedging movement (joint venture company) - [18B) (308)
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus/{deficit):

Gains/(loss)on property revaluations (other than 14 522 - 10 (B01) 540
investment properties)

Gains/loss)on carbon credit revaluations 15 156 - 36 156 36
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

Gains/loss)on Infrastructure Asset revaluations 20

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND
EXPENSE

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Morthland Regional Council

Mon-controlling interest in Marsden Maritime Holdings
Limited

Consolidated
Council | Annual Plan Council 30-Jun-19
30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
S000 S000 S000 S000
(BB) - = (66)
- (697) 268
B12 46
5,379 (369) 4,985 7,233 1,504
4,709 6,769
2,524 4,735
7,233 1,504

The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 'Statement of accounting policies and 'Notes

to the financial statements’.

Major variances compared to the
Annual Plan 2019/20 (in thousands)

Revenue

Revenue is $9.9M more than annual plan, mainly due
to:

» Unbudgeted water storage project grantsof $2,235

» Unbudgeted Ministry of Civil Defence subsidies of
52,046 relatingto COVID-19and droughtresponses

» Unbudgeted COVID-19 wage subsidies of $1,521

» Gains of $916 and vested assets of $1,715 resulting
from the annual revaluation of investment
properties.

» UUnbudgeted subsidies for the Sustainable Hill
Country and Regional Priorities project of S531

* Unbudgeted subsidies fora wildingconiferremoval
project of S499

* Unbudgeted LIDAR survey program subsidies of
S352
Expenditure

Expenditure is $4,793 more than annual plan, mainly
due to:

» | IDAR costs of S707 notin the annual plan

e Costsforthe Sustainable Hill Countryand Regional
Priorities project of $405 not in the annual plan

» Wilding conifer project costs of $499

o COVID-19 welfare support payments of $1,647 not
in the annual plan

» Drought support expenditure of S427 notin the
annual plan

» | oss on disposal of $770 associated with the
Marsden Point Rail Link (MPRL)

e Revaluationlossesoninfrastructureassetsof 51,187

» [xpenditure on a water storage project of $2,339
not in the annual plan

Partially Offset by:

» |ower than planned lab testing costs of $326

» | ower than planned biosecurity works of S653 due
to the impacts of the COVID-19 lockdown

» | ower than planned sports rate grants of $791

* | owerthan planned economicdevelopment grants
of §225

e | owerthan planned operational spend on the
Kensington Redevelopment S679 due todelays from
the COVID-19 lockdown

» | owerthan planned expenditure on Freshwater
Improvement Fund projects of $653

» | ower than planned bus facility costs of $494
relating to a delayed bus terminus upgrade

» | ower than planned bus contracts of $230 relating
to Whangareirural bus trials
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Statement of changes in equity

- Accumulated Reserves | Total Council
For the year ended 30 June 2020 Naote e :

funds SO00 S000 S000

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Annual Plan
5000

Council
Balance as at 30 June 2018 123,540 26,549 150,089 150.413
Reclassification of carbon credit asset revaluation reserve (235) 235 - -
Adjustment to infrastructure asset value - (2,907) (2,907) -
Restated Balance at 1 July 2018 123,305 24,877 147,182 150,413
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year 4,985 - 4,985 848
Net transfers in special reserves 20 (8,301) 8,301 = =
Mettransfersin other reserves (46) 4B - -
Balance at 30 June 2019 119,943 32,224 152,167 151,261
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year 5,379 5,379 (369)
Mettransfersin special reserves 20 (8,008) 9,008 -
Net transfers in other reserves 20 (B12) 612 -
Balance at 30 June 2020 115,702 41,844 157,546 150,892
Accumulated Subtotal | Non-controling
Forthe year ended 30 June 2020 funds Reserves Group interest | Total Group
5000 S000 5000 S000 5000
Group
Balance as at 30 June 2018 154,703 53,708 214,47 63,286 277,697
Reclassification of carbon credit asset revaluation (235) 235 - - -
E%Ejsg\{g'lent toinfrastructure asset value - (2,907) (2,907) - (2,907)
Restated Balance at 1 July 2018 154,468 57,036 211,504 63,286 274,790
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the - 6,769 4,735 N.503
year 6,769
Mettransfersin special reserves 20 (8,301) 8301 - - -
Net transfersin other reserves (165) 165 - - -
Dividends paid - - - 3,017) 13.017)
Balance at 30 June 2019 152,77 65,502 218,273 65,004 283,277
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the -
year 4,709 4,709 2,524 7.233
Nettransfersin special reserves 20 (9,008) 9,008 - - -
Net transfersin other reserves 90 (30) - - -
Dividends paid - - - (3,086) (3.066)
Balance at 30 June 2020 148,562 74,420 222,982 64,462 287444

Annual Report 2020 | POrongo a tau 2020
66

ID: A1370066

110



Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 4

The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 'Statement of accounting policies and 'Notes
to the financial statements”.
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Statement of financial position

Council | Annual Plan Council Consolidated
As at 30 June 2020 30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-18
S000 S000 5000 5000
EQUITY
Accumulated funds 20 115,702 137,567 119,943 148,562 152,771
Reserves 20 41,844 13,324 32,224 74,420 65,502
Total equity attributable to Northland Regional Council 157,546 150,892 152,167 222,982 218,273
Mon-controlling interest 20 64,462 65,004
TOTALEQUITY 157,546 150,892 152,167 287444 283,277
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents B 3,907 73 606 4,828 1,758
Receivables 7 7.090 5,285 4,056 7.462 4,792
Inventary 8 483 3.175 3.181 556 3,276
Investment property assets held for sale ] 715 = 2,361 715 2,361
Other financial assets 10 20,298 3,930 8,810 20,298 8,805
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 32,493 12,463 19.014 33,859 20,992

Mon-current assets

Receivables 11 5,900 5,948 = 5,948
Investment property 12 60,361 70,449 53,261 138,357 129,130
Other financial assets 10 47,514 42,922 54,675 47,963 55,137
Investment in subsidiaries (excluding council control 13i) 7.828 7.828 7.828 46,269 46,719
organisations)and joint venture company

Investment in Council Controlled Organisations 13(ii) 863 863 863 810 87
Property, plant and equipment 14 35914 41,376 33,314 66,375 62,624
Capital projects in progress 14 4 - 308 606 538
Intangible assets 15 780 525 B42 790 B42
Forestry assets 16 3,157 2,862 3,264 3,157 3264
TOTALNON-CURRENT ASSETS 156,431 172,724 160,103 304,327 304,873
TOTALASSETS 188,924 185,187 179,117 338,186 325,865
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Council

Asat 30 June 2020 30-Jun-20

Annual Plan
30-Jun-20

Council
30-Jun-19

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables and deferred revenue 7
Employee entitlements 18
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 19

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Mon-current liabilities

Payables and deferred revenue 7
Employee entitlements 18
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 19

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

S000 5000 5000

5000

8,884 4,602 5,000 10,729 7626
2,312 1792 1,866 2,413 1.926
10.000 = = 10.000 =
21,196 6,394 6,866 23,142 9,652
608 806 510 1.476 1.312

16 13 16 16 16
9,558 27.077 19,568 26,108 31,708
10,182 27,901 20,084 27,600 33,036
31,378 34,296 26,950 50,742 42,588
157,546 150,892 152,167 287,444 283,277

The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 'Statement of accounting policies and ‘Notes

to the financial statements’.

Major variances compared to the Annual
Plan 2019/20 (in thousands)

Asset variances
Current

Cash and cash equivalents are $3,834 greater than
the annual plan predominantly due to:

» Higher term deposits at year end than planned

Receivables are $1,805 higher than the annual plan
predominantly due to:

# Having some large grant and subsidy receivables
atyear end mostly for the water storage project.

Inventory is $2,692 lower than the annual plan
predominantly due to:

» The disposal of the Marsden Point Rail Link
inventory asset not in the annual plan

Investment property assets held for sale are $715
more than the annual plan due to:

* Properties not sold during the 2019/20 financial
year as planned

Other financial assets are $16,368 more than the
annual plan due to:

# The funding requirement for council's two
development projects being held in the short term
investment fund

Non-current

Non-Current Receivables are $5,900 less than the
annual plan predominantly due to:

» The disposal of the Marsden Point Rail Link asset
meant that NRC received the balance owing on it's
non-current receivable.

Investment Property is $10,088 less than the annual
plan due to:

# The Kensington and Kaipara Service centre
development projects being delayed due to the
COVID-19 lockdown and other issues.

Other financial assets are $4,318 more than the long
plan due to:

# The proceeds from the sale of the Marsden Paoint
Rail Link Joint Venture were held in the long term
fund at year end

Property, plant, and equipment are 5,462 less than
the annual plan due to:
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» | ower capital expenditure than planned

» | ossesinrevaluation oninfrastructure assets and
council occupied buildings

Intangible assets are $265 more thantheannual plan
predominantly due to:

# Gainsontherevaluation of emisions trading assets.

» Regional ticketing system capital expenditure not
in the annual plan

Forestry assets are $295 more than the annual plan
due to:

e The forestry harvest completed late in the 2018/19
financial year being smaller than anticipated in the
2019/20 contributed to a lower annual plan forestry
asset balance.

Liability variances

Current

Payables and deferred revenue is S4,141more than
the annual plan due to:

» Higherthan planned levels of funding received in
advance for works not yet undertaken

Employee entitlements are $520 more than the
annual plan due to:

» Anincrease in total employees
» Anincrease in employee leave balances

Borrowings and otherfinancial liabilities are $10,0000
more than the annual plan due to:

e Adebenture becoming due within the fallowing
twelve months

Non-current

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are $17,519
less than the annual plan due to:

e Adebenture becoming due within the fallowing
twelve months being classified as current

» Notrequiringas much borrowing for river works as
planned due to earlier delays in capital programs
allowingrates to build up to cover part of the capital
expenditure.
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Statement of cash flows

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

Council | Annual Plan Council
For the year ended 30 June 2020 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

S000 5000 5000

5000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from rates revenue 29,473 28,907 26,273 29,473 26,273
Receipts from customers 3,766 14,503 8,627 N,703 16,402
Interest received 451 3,602 3,139 461 3,160
Dividends received 3,543 - 3,488 8,745 9,180
Subsidies and grants received 14,880 2,144 4,800 14,895 5,005
Payments to suppliers and employees/members (46,418) (48,206) (40,304) (52,098) (46,913)
Interest paid (831) (1.201) (802) (1.330) (1,088)
Income tax paid - - - 122) (18)
Net goods and services tax received/(paid) (235) 3,603 (335) (243) (342)
Met cash from operating activities 4,638 3,350 4,986 11,684 11,668

Cash flows from investing activities

Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment 135 14,194 170 135 170
Receipts from sale of investment property and assets 13,234 - 1,351 13.234 1,351
SR e w e 54,927 (6,300} 39,660 54,927 39,662
Loan repayments received 5 - 558 () 548
Purchase of property, plantand equipment andintangible (5.206) (17,798) (3.182) (7.876) (5,155}
assets
Purchase of investment property |7.793) - (3.821) (13,630} (11.265)
Purchase of financial investments (56,633) - (41,114) (56,638) (41,116)
Net cash from investing activities (1.337) (9,804) (6,378) (9,849) (15,804)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds received from ASB facility - 4,400 6,100
Dividends paid - - - (3,065) 13.017)
Proceeds from borrowings - 6,545 1.000 - 1.000
Met cash from financing activities - 6,545 1,000 1,335 4,083
Net increase (decrease)in cash, cash equivalents and 3,301 (5) (382) 3,070 (53)
bank overdrafts

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the BOB 86 998 1,758 181
beginning of the year

CASH, CASHEQUIVALENTS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS AT 3,907 81 606 4,828 1,758

THEENDOF THE YEAR
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Reconciliation of net surplus after tax to
the cash flows from operations

Council
30-Jun-20 Council

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Consolidated
S000 |  30-Jun-19

S000

30-Jun-19
5000

Surplus/(deficit) after tax 4,767 4,939 7,830 1,236

Add/(less)non cash items

Depreciation & amortisation expense 1,740 1629 2,231 2,084
Vested asset revenue (1,715} - (1,715} -
Divested asset expense 182 - 182 -

Deferred taxation = - - -

Share of associate companies' retained surplus - - (3) 183
Fairvalue adjustments 523 (1,340) 3.377 (1,91)
Non cash gains on externally managed funds and loans (2,675) (3.207) (2,675) (3,207)
Other non-cash items (147) 765 (148) 765
Total non cash items (1,992) (2,153) 1,349 (2,0886)

Add/(less)items classified as investing or financing activities

(Gains)/loss on sale of property plant and equipment (B3) (42) (43) (38)
(Gains)/loss on sale of investment properties and assets held for sale 820 1z 820 12
Totalitems classified as investing or financing activities 757 70 77 T4

Add/(Less) movements in working capital

Decrease(increase)in trade and other receivables (3.071) 1,679 (2,729) 2,144
Decrease (increase) in prepayments 36 (78) 58 (122)
Decrease (increase) in inventory 2,698 (79) 2,721 (133)
(Decrease)increase in trade and other payables 3.7 387 2,776 1,375
(Decrease)increase in revenue received in advance 265 16 490 16
(Decrease) Increase in employee entitlements accrual L46 "7 486 93
Investing capital items included in working capital movements (2,985) 88 (2,174) (929)

1,106 2,130 1,628 2,444
Met cashflows from operating activities 4,638 4,986 11,684 11,668
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Statement of accounting policies

Reporting entity

Northland Regional Council is a local authority
established under, and governed by, the Local
Government Act 2002 and the Local Government
(Rating)Act 2002. The council's group comprises the
council and its subsidiaries, namely:

e MarsdenMaritime Holdings Limited(NZ)Ltd(53.61%
owned};

e Northland Inc. Limited (100% owned).

Northland Regional Council and its subsidiaries and
associates are incorporated, domiciled and operate
in New Zealand.

The primary objective of Northland Regional Council
istoprovidegoodsorservices and perform reqgulatory
functions for the community benefit rather than
making a financial return. Accordingly, Northland
Regional Council has designateditself and the group
as Public Benefit Entities for financial reporting
purposes.

Reporting period

The financial statements of the counciland group are
for the year ended 30 June 2020. The financial
statements were authorised for issue by council on
20 October 2020.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis, and accounting policies have
been applied consistently throughout the period.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the council and group
have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the LGA and the Local Government
(Financial Reporting and Prudence)Requlations 2014
which include the requirement to comply with
generally accepted accounting practice in New
Zealand (NZ GAAP).

The financial statements comply withPBE accounting
standards.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars which is the functional currency of
Northland Regional Counciland all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand dollars (SO00).

Standards issued and not yet effective and not early
adopted

Standards and amendments, issued but not yet
effective and which are relevant to the council :

Financial instruments

InJanuary 2017, the XRB issued PBE IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. PBE IFRS 9replaces PBE IPSAS 29
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
PBE IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021with early application
permitted. The main changes under PBE IFRS 9 are:

» Newfinancial assetclassification requirements for
determining whether an asset is measured at fair
value or amortised cost;

* Anewimpairment modelfor financial assets based
on expected losses, which may resultin earlier
recognition of impairment losses;

» Revised hedge accounting requirements to better
reflect the management of risks.

The council plans to apply this standard in preparing
its 30 June 2022 financial statements. Although the
council has not assessed the effect of the new
standard, it does not expect any significant changes
as the requirements are similar to PBE IPSAS 29.

PBE FRS 48 Service Performance Reporting

PBE FRS 48 replaces the service performance
reporting requirements of PBE IPSAS Tand is
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after
1January 2021. The council has not yet determined
how the application of PBE FRS 48 will affect its
service performance reporting.

Amendmentto PBE IPSAS 2 Statement of Cash Flows

An amendment to PBE IPSAS 2 Statement of Cash
Flows requires entities to provide disclosuresthat
enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changesinliabilities arisingfrom financingactivities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. This amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
with early application permitted. Council does not
intend to earlyadopt the amendment and has not yet
assessed in detail the impact of the amendment.

Section three: Financial statements Wahanga tuatoru: Tauakipiatea

73

ID: A1370066

117



Audit and Risk Subcommittee
6 October 2020

Other changes in accounting policies

There have been no other changes in accounting
policies.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies are included in the
notes to which they relate;

Significant accounting policies that do not relate to
aspecific note are outlined below;

The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently toall periods presented in these
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
by adding together like items of assets, liabilities,
equity, revenue, expenses and cash flows of entities
in the group on aline by line basis. Allintra-group
balances, transactions, revenues and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions (including those for
which forward exchange contracts are held) are
translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
surplus/deficit, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges.

Goods and services tax(GST)

All'items in the financial statements are stated
exclusive of GST, except forreceivables, and creditors
and other payables, which are stated ona GST
inclusive basis. GST not recoverable as input taxis
recognised as part of the related asset orexpense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the Inland Revenue Department(IRD)is included
as part of receivables or payables in the Statement
of Financial Position;

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD,
including the GST relating to investing and financing
activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in
the Statement of Cash Flows:

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
exclusive of GST.
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Budgetfigures

Thebudgetfiguresare those approvedby the council
inits 2019-2020 Annual Plan (AP). The budget figures
have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP,
using accounting policies that are consistent with
those adopted in preparing these financial
statements.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, estimates
and assumptions have been made concerning the
future. These estimated and assumptions may differ
from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and
assumptions are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations or future eventsthat are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Council and group investment property and owner
occupied property(land and buildings) are revalued
annually by independent valuers. The fair value of the
investment propertiesis based on the market values,
being the estimated amount for which a property
could be exchanged between a willing buyerand a
willing seller in an arm'’s length transaction. Due to
the relatively lowlevel of recenttransactionsin some
areas, thesevaluations areinherently subjective. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the fair value
of investment propertyand owneroccupied property
are provided in Notes 12 and 14 respectively.

Council's infrastructure assets arerevalued by an
independentvalueratregularintervals, with the most
recentinfrastructure valuationeffective as at 30 June
2020. There are a number of estimates and
assumptions exercised when valuing the individual
elements (stop banks, floodgates, spillways) of
infrastructure assets, such as estimating the age,
condition, optimisation and remaining life of each
element. Further detail is provided in Note 14.

Council's forestry assets are revalued annually by an
independentvaluer. Thereareanumberof estimates
and assumptions exercised when valuing forestry
assets such as estimating the discount rates to
determine future tree crop cash flows. Furtherdetail
is provided in Note 16.

The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been
predominantly based on historicalexperience. Useful
lives are reviewed onan annual basis and adjustments
are made when considered necessary.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited has determined
that it is appropriate to only recognise tax losses in
the financial statements to alevel that directly offsets
the deferred taxliability. Further detail is provide in
Note b.
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Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Management has exercised the following critical
judgements in applying accounting policies for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

Council has one leasehold propertyitis intheprocess
of selling directly to the lessees or on the open
market. This property has therefore been classified
ascurrent assets investment property(assets held
for sale)as it is assumed this sales will occur within
the next 12 months.

Councils investment in Regional Software Holdings
Limited has been treated as an associate as it is
considered that council holds significant influence
over the financial and operating policies of Regional
Software Holdings Limited due to the fact that
council's CEQ is on the board of directors of Regional
Software Holdings Limited.

Restatement of Infrastructure Asset Value

The Council and group has adjusted its comparative
year financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019.

During 2019/20, the Council discovered thata number
of land parcels associated with the Whangarei
Detention Dam were incorrectlyaccounted forin the
valuation of the dam supplied to NRC by its
independent valuerin 2017 when these assets were
last valued.

Council holds an easement to use the land parcels
that were mistakenly included but does not hold
outright ownership. In 2017 these parcels were
incorrectly valued based on full ownership, while a
small amount ($58K) of valid land was excluded from
the valuation, generating a net overstatementin the
fairvalue of the Dam of $2.9M.

The financial statementsfor 2019 which are presented
ascomparative information in the 30 June 2020
financial statements have been restated to correct
this error. The correction reduces the opening
balance of the Council and group Infrastructure assets
and infrastructure assetrevaluationreserve by $2.9M.

Reclassification Adjustment of Gains on revaluation
of Carbon Credits

Ouring the year, the Council and group have
reclassifiedthe gains onrevaluation of carboncredits
as other comprehensive revenue and expense and
accumulated to a carbon credit asset revaluation
reserve in accordance with Councils accounting
policy. The 2019 gain on the revaluation of carbon
credits of S36K, have been reclassified from Other
gains in surplus and deficit to other comprehensive
revenue and expense. The historical accumulated
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gains prior to 2019 of $235K have been reclassified
from Accumulated Funds to a Carbon Credit Asset
Revaluation Reserve.

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic

Since 31 December 2019, the spread of COVID-19 has
severely impacted many local economies around the
globe. Measures taken to contain the spread of the
virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social
distancing, and closures of non-essential services
have triggered significant disruptions to businesses
worldwide, resultingin an economic slowdown. Global
stock markets have experienced great volatility.
Governmentsand centralbankshave responded with
monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilise
economic conditions.

In response to the global pandemic, New Zealand
entered a Government directed alert level system
dictating the level of business activity and social
interaction that can take place. When NZ went into
Alert Level's 3 and 4, councils Pandemic Plan was
enacted to enable the vast majority of council staff
to work from home, helping to keep them safe and
ensuring business continuity.

The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
as well as the effectiveness of government and
centralbankresponses,remainsunclearatthistime.
Itisnot possible toreliably estimate the durationand
severity of these consequences, as well as their
impact on the financial position and results of the
council for future periods.

The pandemic hasresulted in impacts to key
estimates and judgments used in these financial
statements including:

* Provision for uncollectability of rates receivable
and general debtorsasat 30 June 2020 as detailed
innote 7

* |nvestment property valuations beingimpacted as
at 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 12

» Owneroccupied freehold land and building
valuations being impacted as at 30 June 2020 as
detailed in note 14

» |nfrastructure Asset valuations assumptions being
impacted asat 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 14

e Forestry asset valuation assumptions being
impacted as at 30 June 2020 as detailed in note 16

To date, Council has undertaken the following steps
toreduce the impact of COVID-19 on its operations:

» taken advantage of $1.bm from the central
governments wage subsidy effectively reducing
the labour cost for Northland ratepayers.
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» reduced, postponedorcancelled work streamsand
costs without risking the obligations and duties of
the Council in 2019/20, and originally culling close
toS2.4M of workstreamsand costs fromits 2020/21
Annual Plan.

* maintained a larger allocation of cash assets asa
driverto de-risk and safeguard the value of Councils
Investment portfolio

» setaside S1.7Mof cashina COVID-19 Reinstatement
reserve dedicated to fund the reinstatement of
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prioritised work streams that were originally culled
from the Councils 2020/21work programme.

» set aside S1.6M of cash to be called upon and
provide stability should the investment returns from
Councils externally managed investment portfolio
not eventuate as anticipated in 2020/21.

» planned to use an additional $2.3M of cash reserves
to fund operations in the 2020/21.
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Notes to the financial statements

1: Summary revenue and expenditure for groups of activities

Accounting policy

ITEM: 5.1
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Northland Regional Council has derived the cost of service for each significantactivity of the councilusing
the costallocation system outlined below. Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant
activity. Indirect costs are those costs, which cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner,
with a specificsignificant activity. Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities. Indirect costs
are charged to significant operating activities using appropriate cost drivers such as staff numbers. There

have been no changes to the cost allocation methodology during the year.

Breakdown of summary revenue and expenditure for group of activities:

Council Annual Plan Council
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-19
S000 S000 5000
Revenue

Governance and Engagement 7173 4,543 4,275
Environmental Services 11,604 9,926 10,051
River Management 5,001 5,072 4,691
Regulataory Services 9,224 8,746 8,250
Customer Services - Community Resilience 1,704 10,798 8,794
Corporate Excellence 23,443 22,342 22,022
Total activity revenue and rates as per activity funding impact statements 68,149 61,427 58,083
Internal charges and overheads recovered (10,115) (12,342) (9,814)
Other gains not attributable to an activity 980 - 1,687
Totalrevenue as per statement of comprehensive revenue and expense 59,014 49,085 49,856

Expenses
Governance and Engagement 10,042 8,072 7,188
Environmental Services 14,067 13.M 12,899
River Management 3,318 3,362 3.647
Regulataory Services 10,631 1528 9,246
Customer Services - Community Resilience 12,611 1,803 9,728
Corporate Excellence 9,692 n.510 9,246
Total activity expenses as per activity funding impact statements 60,362 59,986 51,965
Internal charges and overheads recovered (10,115) (12,342) (9.814)
Other expenses not attributable to an activity 2,260 - 1.1
Depreciation and amortisation 1740 1.810 1,629
Total expenses as per statement of comprehensive revenue and expense 54,247 49,404 44,881
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BREAKDOWN OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE BY

GROUP OF ACTIVITY

Governance and Engagement

Council
30-Jun-20
5000

Annual Plan
30-Jun-20
5000
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Council
30-Jun-19
5000

Regulataory Services 404 401 368
Environmental Services = = =
River Management 192 136 191
Customer Services - Community Resilience n 137 147
Corporate Excellence 933 1,136 923
TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 14 1.740 1.810 1,629

Note 2: Revenue

Accounting policy

Revenue is measured at fair value.

Rates revenue: Rates are set annually by aresolution of councilandrelate to afinancial year. Allratepayers
are invoiced within the financial year to which the rates have been set. Rates revenue is recognised and
brought to account when the rates are payable based on the council's best estimate of what is expected
to be collected. Rate penalties arising from late payment are recognised as revenue when rates become
overdue. Rates remissions are recognised as a reduction of rates revenue when the Council has received
an application that satisfies its rates remission policy. These transactions are classified as non-exchange

transactions.

Feesand charges: Fees and charges are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at balance date, based on the actual service provided as a percentage of the total services
provided. The majority of this type of revenue is exchange transactions.

Grants and subsidies: Grants and subsidies are recognised as revenue when the primary conditions of
entitlement have been met. These are non-exchange revenue transactions. Where a transfer is subject
to conditions that, if unfulfilled, require the return of transferred resources, council recognises a liability

until the condition is fulfilled.

Sales of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a product is sold to a customer.

Interest: Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Other revenue - Dividends: Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment has been
established. Dividend income is recorded at the cash amount received, being net of taxation imputation
credits.

Rental revenue: Rental revenue from investment property is recognised in the surplus or deficiton a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Any short term rent relief provided is fully recognised in the
period in which it occurs.

Funds collected for other organisations: Funds are collected for other organisations, including central
government. Any funds held at balance date are included in term and current liabilities. Amounts collected
on behalf of third parties are not recognised as revenue, except for the commissions or fees earned.

Vested assets: Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration, the fair value of the
assetreceived is recognised as revenue. Assets vested in the council are recognised as revenue when
the control over the asset is obtained.

Infringement fees and fines: Infringement fees and fines are recognised when the infringement notice is
issued.

2(i) Rates remission, penalties, early payment discounts and impairments

Ratesrevenueis shown net of rates remissionsand postponements, early paymentdiscounts and an impairment
of $626,882(2019: $561,198) to rates assessed on Maori freehold land in the Far North District (see note 7).

Northland Regional Council's ratesremission policies allow it to remit approved rates asper the Rates Remission
Palicies of the Territorial Authorities that collect Northland Regional Council's rates onits behalf. The Whangarei
District Council offersa 2% early payment discount if rates are paid in full at the first instalment of 20 August.

2(ii) Breakdown of other revenue

Council Council Consolidated

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19

S000 S000 S000

Rental revenue from investment properties 3.048 2,992 8,123 7187
Forestry harvest revenue = 1,048 = 1.049
Vested Asset 1715 = 1715 -
Dividend revenue - Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited 3,543 3,488 - -
Total otherrevenue 8,306 7.529 9,838 8,216

Operating leases as lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be collected under non-cancellable operatingleases at year
end are as follows:

Council Council

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
S000 S000 S000
Mot later than one year 2,521 2,787 5,242 4,730
Later than one year and not later than five years 7,361 9,245 14,778 14,369
Later than five years 5,360 10,615 10,620 18,413
Total non-cancellable operating leases 15,242 22,647 30,640 37,612
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Council

Operatingleasesrelate to investment properties owned by Northland Regional Council. The majority (interms
of numbers) of Councils investment property portfolio is made up of leasehold properties. These leasehold
properties have perpetual lease terms ranging from 5 to21years. The lessee has the optionto renew the lease
at the completion of each term. All leases contain market review clauses at varying cycle's or upon renewal.
The lessee does not have aright to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease. Council owns 2 rural holdings
having lease or tenancy terms between 12 months and 3years, and hastwo urban residential properties. Council
also owns 33 freehold commercial properties, of which five are vacant, two are being redeveloped, and the
remaining 26 have lease terms of between one month and 20 years.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited leases land and buildings to a variety of customers within close proximity
to the port. These non cancellable leases have remaining terms of between one month and 31years. All leases
include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on contractual rent review dates according to
prevailing market conditions.

No contingentrents have been recognised during the year.

2(iii) Breakdown of other gains:

Council Council

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
5000 5000 S000
Gain onrevaluation of investment property 12 916 1,293 - 1.897
Gain onrevaluation of investment property assets held 9 - 142 - 142

for sale

Gainonrevaluation of forestryassets 16 - 29 - 29
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment B3 42 43 42
Total non-financial instruments gains 979 1,506 43 2,110
Externally Managed Investment Funds 2,758 3,419 2,758 3,419
Gain on fair value adjustment of financial investments 10 45 - 45
Total financial instruments gains 2,758 3,464 2,758 3,464
Total other gains 3,737 4,970 2,801 5,574

The fair value gains on investment property arise from the annual revaluation of these investments.

Note 3: Personnel costs

Accounting policy

Personnel costs includes salaries, wages, leave and other employee-earned compensation. Employer
contributions to KiwiSaver and the National Provident Fund; Pension National Scheme, and Lump Sum
National scheme are accounted for as defined contribution plans and are recognised in the surplus or
deficitas incurred.

Breakdown of personnel costs and furtherinformation:
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Council Council Consolidated

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19

S000 S000 S000

Salaries and wages 16,974 15,389 19,721 18,012
Employer contributions to defined contribution plans 472 430 517 475
Increase/(decrease)in employee benefit liabilities 18 446 116 487 93
Total personnel costs 17,892 15,935 20,725 18,580

Chief Executive remuneration

The Chief Executive of the Councilwas appointed in accordance with section 42 of the Local Government Act.

The total remuneration (including any non financial benefits) paid or payable for the year ended 30 June 2020
to the Chief Executive was $319,010(2019: S306,614).

Elected representatives

Elected representatives received the following remuneration:

Total Council Total Council
Remuneration | Remuneration
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

¥ MNon- ¥
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-3

5000 S000 S000 S000

Penny Smart, Chair 08 5 13 30
Justin Blaikie, Deputy Chair T4 ] 82 83
John Bain 70 3 73 i
Jack Craw 48 1 43 =
Colin Kitchen 48 3 57 =
Amy Macdonald 48 ] 56 -
Marty Robinson 48 5 53 -
Rick Stolwarthy 70 9 79 79
Joce Yeoman 70 4 T4 96
Bill Shepherd 36 = 36 116
David Sinclair 24 1 25 80
Paul Dimery 21 5 26 86
Mike Finlayson 21 ] 29 g7
Total elected representatives’ remuneration & 686 B6 752 778

With the enactment of the Local Government Act 2002, the Remuneration Authority isresponsible for setting
the remuneration levels for elected members. The Council monetary remuneration (salary) detail above was
determined by the Remuneration Authority. Councillors are able to claim an allowance for mileage, travel time
and communications. These allowances are set by the Remuneration Authority and paid to Councillors based
on claimsapproved by the council chairand chief executive.
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Council employee remuneration by band

The annual remuneration by band for council employees as at 30 June 2020 is detailed below. Foremployees
receiving remuneration of S60,000 or more, they are grouped into S20,000 bands as presented below. For any
$20,000 bands with five or fewer employees in the band, they are combined upwards with the next banding as
stipulated in the Local Government Act 2002.

Council Council
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-18

< $60,000
SB0.000 - §79,939 106 94
$80.000 - $99,999 31 30
$100.000- 5119,999 18 14
$120.000 - $179,999 10 g9

$300.,000 - $319,999 1 1

Totalemployees 235 224

Total remuneration includes any non financial benefits provided to employees.

At 30 June 2020, the Council employed 194(2019: 189)full time employees withthe balance of staff representing
24.75(2019:17.41)full time equivalent employees. A full time employee is determined on the basis ofa 37.5 hour
working week.

Severance payments

For the year ending 30 June 2020, the Council made 2 (2019: 1) severance payments to employees totalling
$18,000(2019: $26,986). The value of each of the severance payments was $10,000 and $8,000.

Note 4: Other expenses

Accounting Policy
Expenditure is recognised when goods and services have been received.

Grant expenditure: Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded when the grantapplication
meetsthe specifiedcriteriaandare recognised as expenditure when an application that meets the specified
criteria for the grant has been received. Discretionary grants are those grants where the council has no
obligation to award the grant on receipt of the grant application and are recognised as expenditure when
the grant conditions have been satisfied.

Operating leases: An operating lease isa lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of anasset. L ease paymentsunderanoperating lease are recognised as anexpense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. All the leases of the council and group are operating leases.
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Breakdown of other expenses and further information:

Council
30-Jun-20

5000

Fees to external auditors:

Council
30-Jun-19
5000
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Consolidated
30-Jun-19

5000

Fees to Deloitte for audit of financial statements 120 ns 151 150
Fees to Deloitte for other services® 18 20 18 20
Fees to OAG for audit of financial statements 1 12 n 14
Fees to EY for the audit of the Marsden Maritime = = 87 72
Holdings Group
Fees for other services provided by the auditor of - B 5
Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited**
Directors’Councillors fees and trustee remuneration 3 752 778 1,150 1,160
Donatians 1,460 1.077 1.461 1.080
Operating lease payments 79 30 238 185
Impairment of receivables 7 478 602 477 B72
Impairment of loan - 820 - 820
Operating grants to Northland Inc. Limited 1,336 1,307 - -
Other payments to Northland Inc. Limited 467 B77 - -
Divested Assets 182 - 182 -
Loss on disposal of investment property assets held - 50 -
for sale 50
Loss on disposal of MPRL Joint Venture Tia 12 770 12
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - - - 3
Lossonrevaluation of investment propertyassetsheld 9 - 18 -
for sale 18
Loss on revaluation of forestry assets 16 107 - 107 -
Loss on revaluation of infrastructure assets 1187 = 1187 =
Loss on revaluation of buildings and amenities 14 127 165 - 34
Losson fair value adjustment of financial investments - - 13 167
Loss on revaluation of investment property assets 2,052
Otheroperating expenses 26,525 20,692 31.092 25,586
Total other expenses 33,685 26414 39,070 30,080

* The fees paid to Deloitte for other services for the year ending 30 June 2020 were for a maturity assessment
review of Cyber governance, areview of the Waima Waitai Wairoa project and other documentation pertaining
to councils 2020-21Annual Plan, and for the auditcompliance report prepared inrespect of councils debenture

trust deed.

**The feesfor other services provided by the auditor of Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited were for taxadvice.
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Operating leases as lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellation operating leases existing at
year end are as follows:

Council Council Consolidated
- - 30-Jun-
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 0-Jun-19
S000 S000 $000
Not later than one year 105 49 162 140
Later than one year and not later than five years 143 105 17 191

Later than five years - = - -

Total non-cancellable operating leases 248 154 Ty 331

Note 5: Taxation

Accounting policy
The income tax expense includes both current and deferred tax.

Current taxis the amount of income tax payable based on the taxable profit for the current year, plus any
adjustments to income tax payable in respect of prior years.

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future periods inrespect of temporary
differences and unused tax losses.

Temporary differences are differences between the carryingamount of assetsand liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred taxis not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
orfrom the initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that affects neitheraccounting profit
nor taxable profit.

Current tax and deferred tax are measured using tax rates (and tax laws)that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by balance date.

Current tax and deferred taxis recognised against the surplus or deficit forthe period, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense or directly in equity.
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Breakdown of taxation and further information:

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

5000

Components of tax expense

Current tax expense/(credit) 22 19

Tax expense 22 19
Relationship between tax expense and accounting surplus

Surplus/|deficit)before tax 7,852 1,255

Taxation at 28% 2,227 3,151

Flus(less) tax effect of:

Mon-deductible expenditure 1.829 957
Recognition of temporary differences 7 -
Imputation dividend receipts (3.826) (3,930)
Non-taxable income (398) (512)
Tax paid onjoint venture company earnings (14) 55
Carried forward losses derecognised/(recognised) 187 247
Tax expense/(benefit) 22 19

Council's netincome subject to income tax consists of its assessable income net of related expenses derived
from the Marsden Maritime Holdings Group, and any other council controlled organisations. All other income
currently derived by NRC is exempt from income tax.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to tax losses in NRC of S11,620,843 (2019 $10,143,588)
ascouncil considers it unlikely that the benefit of these losses will be utilised against future taxable income.

As at 30 June 2020 Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited group has taxation losses amounting to $7,055,992 of
which the tax effect is $1,975,569 (2019 losses $6,600,901 tax effect 51,848,252 ) subject to Inland Revenue
Department confirmation. Due to the timeframe in which assessable income is anticipated to be available to
offsetsuch losses, MMH has determined that it is appropriate to onlyrecognise lossesinthe financial statements
to alevel that directly offsets the deferred tax liability.

Note 6: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Council Council Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 -Jun-19
S000 5000 S000
Cash on hand and at trading banks * 1,140 B0B 2,061 1,758
Term deposits, held as part of the Short Term Fund - with 2,000
maturities of less than 3 months acguisition 2,000
Other Term deposits - with maturities of less than 3 months at 767
acguisition 787
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,907 606 4,828 1.758
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* The Council holds unspent funds included in cash at bank of $225,831that are subject to restrictions. $6,230
relates to marine farmand commercial bonds. $219,601relates todeposits heldinrespect to tenancy agreements.

Note 7: Current receivables

Accounting policy

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Short-term receivables and other receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for

impairment.

Areceivable is considered to be uncollectible when there is evidence that the amount due will not be fully
collected. The amount that is uncollectible is the difference between the amount due and the present

value of the amount expected to be collected.

Prepayments comprise significant items of expenditure having a benefit to more than one accounting

period and are written off over the period to which they relate.

Breakdown of receivables and furtherinformation

Council Council Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19
5000 5000 5000
Rates receivables 3445 3,287 3,445
Otherreceivables 5,248 2,257 5,663
GSTreceivable B43 582 686 707
Receivables from subsidiaries and associates 7 14 - -
Prepayments 7 308 437 485
Gross debtors and otherreceivables 9678 B.448 10,121 7,254
Less provision for uncollectibility of receivables (2,588) (2,392) (2.659) (2,462)
Total current receivables 7.080 4,066 7462 4,792
Total current receivables comprise:
Receivables from non-exchange transactions - thisincludes
outstanding amounts for rates, grants, infringements and fees 5,788 3,296 6.039 3.936
and charges that are partly subsidised by rates
Receivables from exchange transactions - thisincludes
outstandingamounts for commercial salesand feesand charges 1302 760 1,423 856
that have not been subsidised by rates
7,080 4,066 7462 4,792

Assessment for uncollectibility

Thereisno concentration of credit risk outside the group, as the group has a large number of customers which

spreads the risk.

Due to the historical experience of non-payment of council rates, council can make a reasonable estimate of
the amount that will not be paid. The estimated amount of non-collectible Maori freehold land hasbeen deducted

from the gross revenue and rates receivable.
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The estimated amount of uncollectible Maori Freehold Land rates for 2020 was based on the 2019-20 non
collection rate adjusted for the arrears collected in 2019-20 and amounted to $626,882(2019: $561,198). Rates
revenue and the rates receivable have been reduced by $626,882 (2019: $561,198). Similarly the impairment of
receivables expense in Note 4 and the balance of the provision for the impairment on rates receivables in this
note have also been reduced by $626,882 (2019: $561,198).

Outstandingrates(other than rates assessed on Maori Freehold Land as detailed above)are usuallyrecognised
in full when the rates become payable due to the fact that the value can be measured reliably, it is probable
that Council is going to receive payment, and there is not expected to be a significant delay in receipt. Rates
revenue is recognised immediately because there are no conditions arising from the transaction.

The overallresult is there is no impact on the total comprehensive revenue and expense.

The ageing profile of receivables at year end is detailed below:

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic
Provision for Uncollectability

The provision for uncollectability of general receivables has been based on a review of specific overdue
receivables and a collective assessment.
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» The evaluation of specific overdue receivables paid particular attention to debtors who have contacted
council expressing an issue of unaffordability due to the impact of COVID-19, and debtors who historically
have paid onatimely basis yet are outstandingat 30 June 2020 and have not contacted council. Theincrease
in the specific provision for collectability due to the impact of COVID-19 for 2019/20 is S21K.

» The collective assessmentis based on an analysis of past collection history and debt write offs.

The provision for uncollectability of rates receivables has been assessed based on an analysis of council's
historical non-collection rate from each district. In additional, any reduction in the collection of rates due to
the negative financial impact of COVID-19 on the community was taken into consideration in 2019/20. The
increase in the 2019/20 provision for uncollectability due to the impact of COVID-19 was S49K.

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

Council Council
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

5000 5000

5000

Movementsinthe provision for uncollectibility ofreceivablesare

as follows:

Balance at 1July 2,392 2,736 2,462 2,736
Additional provisions made during the year 476 602 477 B72
Receivables written off during the period (280) (946) (280) (946)
Balance at 30 June 2,588 2,392 2,659 2,462

The Council and Group holds no collateral as security or any other credit enhancements over receivables that
are either past due orimpaired.

Note 8: Inventory

Accounting policy

Inventories such (as stores, chemicals and materials) held for distribution or for use in the provision of
goods and services that are not supplied ona commercial basis are measured at the lower of cost, or cost
adjusted when applicable, for any loss of service potential.

Inventories held for use in the provision of goods and services ona commercial basis are measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Marsden to Oakleighrail corridor designation is accounted for at the council's share of the rail corridor
component of the acquired land designation costs.

Breakdown of inventory and further information:

Council Council Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 un-19
S000 S000 S000

Stores and materials 483 116
Marsden to Oakleigh Rail Corridor Designation = 3.065 = 3.065
483 3,181 556 3,276
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There has been no write-down of inventory. No inventory is pledged as security for liabilities.

Joint Venture - between Council and NZ Railway Corportion

During the year, the Council sold its ownership inanumber of investment properties(note 12} alongthe proposed
Marsden point rail corridor to NZ Railways Corporation (NZRC). NZRC also paid the Council forits outstanding
share of historicalfinancingcosts and operational property management costs(note 11). The Council transferred
its share of the inventory asset representing the cost to attain the rail corridor designation (Note 8)to NZRC.

Note 9: Assets held for sale

Accounting policy

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction, notthrough continuinguse. Theyare measured at the lower of their carryingamount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Any impairment losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Any increases in fair value (less costs to sell)are recognised up to the level of any impairment losses that
have been previously recognised.

Assets held for sale (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale.

Investment property classified as assets held for sale are recognised at fair value. Any gains/losses on
investment property held for sale are recognised in surplus/deficit.

Breakdown of assets held for sale and furtherinformation:

Council Council Consolidated

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19

S000 S000 S000

Balance at 1July 2,381 N.248 2,361 11,248
Transfers from/(to) investment properties 12 (747) (9,029) (747) (9,029)
Disposals (881) - (881) =
Fairvalue gains/{loss) on valuation &/2(iii) (18) 142 (18) 142
Total assets held for sale 715 2,361 715 2,361

During the year 1 property held for resale was reclassified as an Investment property and 2 properties were
sold, leaving Tinvestment property asset held for sale at 30 June 2020. Councilinvestment properties held for
sale are valued at Fair Value under PBE IPSAS 16. The valuation wasundertaken by Telfer Young Northland Ltd
asat 30 June 2020.
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Note 10: Other financial assets

Accounting policy

Financial assets(other than shares in subsidiaries)are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs unless they are carried at fair value through surplus or deficit in which case the transaction costs
are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value through surplus or deficit include financial assetsheld
fortrading. Afinancial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
forwhich there is evidence of short term profit taking. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated in a hedge accounting relationship for which hedge accounting is applied.

Financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or part of a portfolio
classified as held for trading are classified as a current asset unless council intends to hold the funds
beyond 12 months.

Afterinitial recognition, financial assets in this category are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
on re-measurement are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Council's external managed funds are classified in this category as they are evaluated and reported on a

quarterly basis against the corresponding statement of investment policy and objectives. Theyareincluded
in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the

balance date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted inan active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance date, which are included in non-current assets.

After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment. Gains or losses when the asset is impaired or de-recognised are recognised in the surplus or
deficit.

At year end the assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. Impairment is established when there
is evidence that the Council and group will not be able to collect amounts due according to the original
terms of thereceivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor willenter
into bankruptcy, receivership orliquidation and default into bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation and
default in payments are indicators that the asset is impaired.

If assets are impaired, the amount not expected to be collected is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense are those that are
designated into the category atinitial recognition orare not classified inany of the other categories above.
They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within
12 months of the balance date.

This category includes:

» |nvestments that are intended to be held long term but which may be realised before maturity; and
» Shareholdings that are held for strategic purposes.

Afterinitial recognition, theseinvestments are measured at their fairvalue, with gainsandlosses recognised
directlyin othercomprehensive revenue and expense except forimpairmentlosses, whichare recognised
in the surplus or deficit.
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On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive revenue and
expense is reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit.

Ifimpairment evidence exists, the cumulative lossrecognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense
is transferred to the surplus or deficit.

Impairment losses on shares recognised in the surplus or deficit are not reversed through the surplus or
deficit.
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Breakdown of other financial assets and further information:

Council Council Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19
S000 S000 S000

CURRENT PORTION
Term deposits, and other securities * 1,480 2600 1,480 2,600
Loans to subsidiary = 5 = =
Shaort term investment fund 18.818 6,205 18,818 6,205
Total current portion 20,298 8,810 20,298 8,805

NON-CURRENT PORTION

Loans to subsidiary = - - -

Otherloans 3.050 3.0086 3.050 3.0086
Term deposits, corporate and local 153 153 B15
government bonds, and other securities 602

Long Term Fund 443N - 44,311 -
Community Investment Fund - 14,347 - 14,347
Property Reinvestment Fund - 16,958 - 16,958
Infrastructure Investment Fund = 20,21 - 20.21n
Total non-current portion 47,514 54,675 47,963 55,137
TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 67,812 63,485 68,261 63,942

*includes S85k of term deposits held as retentions and subject to restrictions
Fair value
The carrying amount of term deposits approximates their fair value.

Fundsof S3,750,000 were advanced to Northland Emergency Services Trust(NEST) on 8 May 2018 to assist
with the purchase of a helicopter. The NEST Loan is secured over the newly purchased helicopter by way of a
General Security Deed and has an applicable fixed interest rate of 4.77% pa. Alump sum repayment of $548,786
was received from NEST during the 2018-19 year. The carrying amount of the NEST loan is $3,050,245 (2019:
S3,006,470) reflecting a non-cash fair value adjustment of S150,969(2019: S§194,744)to account for the fact the
interest rate isbelow an assessed market interest rate of 6.5%. The fair value adjustment of $150,969 will be
unwound through profit and loss over the term of the loan.

Fonterra Cooperative Group Limited Shares

As at 30 June 2020, Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited and its Group held 119,935 co-operative shares in
Fonterra Co-operative Group Ltd having a disclosed fair value of $3.74 per share (2019: total holding of 119,935
shares at an average of $3.85 per share)recognising a total fair value decrease for the year of $13,193(2018:
fairvalue increase $190,696).

Externally managed investment funds

Eriksen and Associates Limited are appointed as council's investment advisors for 2 externally managed
investment funds (Nov 2019: 4 funds were rationalised into 2 funds) providing independent overarching
investment guidance for these funds. Council's externally managed funds are classified as financial assets at
fairvalue through surplus or deficit as Eriksen and Associates Limited evaluate and report the performance
of eachfund onafairvalue basis(monthly)in accordance councils Statement of Investment Policy and Objectives
(SIPO). This designationis consistent with the investment strategyin council'sfinance strategy, as the managed

Annual Report 2020 | POrongo a tau 2020
92

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

ID: A1370066

136



Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 4

funds are managed prudently against the SIPO with a view to prudently maximising and managing returns over
the long term within a diverse portfolio that preserves and maintains the capital value of each fund. The Long
Term Fund is presented as non current as council does not expect to dispose of it within 12 months of the
balance date.

The fair value and carrying value of each fund is calculated using the net market values based upon the listed
market values at Balance Date adjusted for any realisation expenses.

Atyearend, Council had uncalled committed capital relating to its investment in private equity fund managers
of $4,407,394.

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic

Since 310ecember 2019, the outbreak of COVID-19and related globalresponses hascaused materialdisruptions
to businesses around the world, leading to an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have experienced
significant volatility and weakness. While governments and central banks have reacted with monetary
interventions designed to stabilise economic conditions, the duration and extent of the impact of the COVID-19
outbreak on councils' financial assets remains uncertain.

During the year, council's investment portfolio maintained a higher allocation to cash as a driver to de-risk, and
further safequard, the council's investment portfolio. Forthe 12 months to 30 June 2020 the actual returns,
net of fees, generated by councils 2 externally managed investment funds, in comparison to their respective
targetreturn objective were:

Long Term Investment Fund: Actual 5.1% pa; Target6.0% pa
Short Term Investment Fund: Actual 4.5% pa; Target 4.2% pa
Counciland Counciland

Consolidated Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

Externallymanagedinvestment fund performance (12 month returnto 30 June 2020,

net of fees)

Long Term fund (established Movember 2019) 5.10%
Short Term fund(established November 2019) 4.50%
Community investment fund (disestablished October 2019) 10.7% 6.30%
Property reinvestment fund (disestablished October 2019) 11.10% 7.00%
Infrastructure investment fund (disestablished October 2018) 9.60% 6.70%
Short term investment fund -formerly working capital fund (disestablished October 5.40% 5.50%
2019)
.. . Council and Consolidated Counciland Consolidated
Weighted average effective interest rates - - -
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
Term deposits 0.92% 4.32%
Other securities 4.29% 4.29%
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Note 11: Non-current receivables

Breakdown of non-current receivables and furtherinformation:

Council and Counciland
Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
S000 S000
Mon-current Receivables - 5,948
There isno impairment provision for non current receivables.

Note 12: Investment property

Accounting policy

Propertiesleasedto third parties under operating leases are classified as investment property unless the
property is held to meet service delivery objectives rather than to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.

Afterinitial recognition, all investment property is measured at fair value at balance date. Fair Value is the
price at which a property could be exchanged by knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm's length
transaction. Fair Value is determined annually by the valuation undertaken by independent valuers that
hold recognised and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location and
category of the investment properties being valued. Values for investment properties valued under PBE
IPSAS 16 have been assessed primarily on a market related basis where sufficient data is available. For
commercial properties, rentals, investment return rates and land improvement levels have been related
directly to awide range of Northland sales evidence, while for rural blocks direct sales analysis has been
used.

Gains or losses arising from achange in the fairvalue of investment property are recognised in the surplus
or deficit.

An
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Breakdown of investment property and further information:

Council Council Consolidated

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-18

S000 S000 5000

Balance at 1July 53,261 41,100 129,130 107,997
Additions 7.891 3,697 12,897 11,944
Vested Assets 20 1715 - 1715 (1.463)
Disposals and Divested assets (4,044) (1,4B3) (4,044) (1,483)
Transfers from/{to) assets held for sale ] 747 9,029 747 9,029
Transfers from/(to) property plant and equipment - freehold land 14 (75) 85 (75) 205
Transfers from/(to) property plant and equipment - buildings 14 (50) 70 (50) 70
Transfers from/{to)infrastructure assets 14 - (550) - (550)
Movement in lease incentives - - (11) 1
Fairvalue gains/[losses) on valuation W 96 1,293 (2,052) 1,897
Balance at 30 June 60,361 53,261 138,357 129,130

Investment properties valuation - Council

The annual valuation of council's investment properties was performed by Telfer Young (Northland) Limited.
The valuation is effective as at 30 June 2020.

Council's investment properties are valued at fair value comprising of ground leases of $20,198,000 (2019:
$24,165,000), freehold investment properties(land and buildings) of $40,163,000(2019: $25,555,000). $3,438,000
of properties along the proposed MPRL corridor were included in the 2019 comparative, and these properties
were disposed of during the year.

The fair value of council’s investment property has been determined in accordance with PBE IPSAS 16 using
the income capitalisation method for freehold properties, the discounted cashflow method for leasehold
properties, the market based comparison approach for two properties in the vicinity of the Kotuku Street
Retention Dam and the residual developmentapproach fora commercial development currently in progress.
These methods are based upon assumptions including capitalisation rates, future ground lease rental rates,
future land value, and an appropriate discount rate.

Capitalisation rate range 4.86% to 10.33% (2019: 5.57% t0 10.16%)

Future marketrents

+5.10% for five-yearly ground lease rent reviews (2019: 5.60%)

+5.35% for seven- yearly ground lease rent reviews (2019: 5.85%)

+6.65% for 21-yearly ground lease rent reviews (2019: 7.15%)

Annual inflation on land values: 1.5% (2019: 1.75%)

Discount rate: 8.0% (2019: 8.25%)

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic - Council
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Asat 30 June 2020, the real estate markets to which the Council investment properties belong were impacted
by severe market disruption and lack of transactional data as a result of the COVID-19 lockdown from mid to
late March 2020. This created a greater degree of uncertainty on the value of investment property as at 30
June 2020, however itis important to note that uncertainty doesn’t necessarily imply value changes but rather
there may be a wider than average value range to the individual ascribed valuations for each property.

The valuation uncertainty could affect key inputs, assumptions and processes used in the revaluation of the
Council and the Groups investment properties such as:

Estimating and analysing the ground rental rates and net income that a property can generate, and
Estimating and analysing the discount rate to convert the net income into a properties investment value
Estimating and analysing the relevant rates of return/capitalisation rates that affect a property's value
Projections of rental growth in the short to medium term

Investment properties valuation - Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

Fair value has been determined based on valuations performed as at 30 June 2020 by Seagar & Partners,
industry specialists in valuing these types of assets.

Fair Value has been determined by using the discounted cash-flows method, income capitalisation method,
and market based comparison approach for freehold properties, and the discounted cash-flows method for
the Marsden Cove marina and commercial complex.

These methods are based upon assumptions including lease values, years to full tenancy, appropriate discount
rate, capitalisationrates, exit yieldsand annual rental cashflows. The assumptions forthe valuation of Marsden
Cove Marina changed for the year ended 30 June 2020 to reflect current practice. This years valuation was
basedonfuture cashflows fromberth rentaland reversion of existinglicenses rather thana sell down of available
berths via license agreement over a period of time.

Land available for lease range*: ~ $75-S110 per square metre (2019: $80-S115 per square metre)

Discount rate range: 8.5% -9.75% (2019: 9.0% - 10.25%)
Capitalisationrate: 7.50% (2019: 7.50%)
Exit yield range: 7.25% -7.5%(2019: 7.25% - 7.75%)

Berthlicence sell down period: ~ NA(2019: 8 years)

Annual Rental cash flow: $299,000- 5354,000(2019: $288,000- S344,000)

*excludes undeveloped land and land designated for a transport corridor which has a value of S30 to S100 per
square metre (2019: $35 to $110 per m?)

With the exception of a portion of land designated for a transport corridor, the Group has no restrictions on
the realisability of its investment property.

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic. Marsden Maritime Holding Limited

Due to the uncertainty related to COVID-19 that hasled to a reduction in the number of real estate transactions
and has impacted the availability of market data as at 30 June 2020, the independent valuation of the Group's
portfolio as at 30 June 2020 have been reported on the basis of 'valuation uncertainty’, meaning less certainty
and a higher degree of caution should be applied to the valuations. The opinion of value has been determined
at the valuation date based ona certain set of assumptions used by the valuer, however these could change in
a short period of time due to subsequent changes in the property market.

Capital Commitments
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Council Council Consolidated

30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-19

S000 S000 S000

Investment Property 3,130 - 3,819 1567
Total capital committments 3,130 - 3,819 1,667

Note 13(i): Investments in subsidiary (excluding CCOs)and joint venture company

Accounting policy

Northland Regional Council consolidates as subsidiaries in the group financial statements all entities over
which the council may direct the governance policies so as to obtain benefits from the activities of the
entity. This power generally exists where Northland Regional Council has an interest of 50% or more of
council-controlled organisations or more than one-half of the voting rights on the governing body.

The investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the council's parent entity financial statements.

Ajoint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. The group recognises its investment inits jointly controlled entity(North Port
Limited)using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in a jointly controlled entity
is initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the group's
share of the surplus or deficit of the jointly controlled entity after the date of acquisition. The group’'sshare
of the surplus or deficit of the jointly controlled entity is recognised in the surplus or deficit. Investments
in jointly controlled entities are carried at cost in council's parent entity financial statements.

Forjointly controlled assets the councilrecognisesinitsfinancial statements its share of jointly controlled

assets, the liabilities and expenses it incurs, its shares of liabilities and expenses incurred jointly, and
revenue from the sale or use of its share of the output of the joint venture.

Breakdown of investments in subsidiary (excluding CCOs) and joint venture company:

Council Council Consolidated

30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-19

S000 S000 S000

Investmentinjoint venture company - - 46,269 46,719
Shares in Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited (22.74 million shares) 7.828 7.828 = =
Totalinvestments in subsidiaries (excluding CCOs) and joint venture company 7,828 7.828 46,269 46,719

Council - Investment in Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited is alisted company. The fair value of these shares, as per the market price
at 30 June 2020 is $6.50 per share (2019: $5.30 per share). The shares are held at historical cost of $0.35 cents
per share. Council shareholding in Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited is 53.61%.

Summarised financial information of the joint venture company, Northport Limited, is presented below:
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Consolidated

30-Jun-18

5000

Current assets 5,366 4,766
Non-current assets 141,676 131,516
Current liabilities 6,696 5,461
Non-current liabilities 45,144 34,692
Net assets 85,202 96,128
Group share of net assets (50%) 47,601 48,064
Other consolidation adjustments (1,332) (1,345)
Total Investment in joint venture company 46,269 46,719
Opening carrying value 46,719 47,050
Share of after tax surplus 8,808 9,008
Dividends paid (8.745) (9,180)
Share of land revaluation movement (327) 160
Share of hedge reserve movement (186) (309)
Closing carrying value 46,269 46,719
Revenue 38,840 42,622
Met surplus 17.590 17.980
Current period write back inrespect of previous inter-entity asset sales 13 13
Total share of joint venture company net surplus (50%) 8,808 9,008

Joint venture commitments and contingencies

Details of any commitments and contingent liabilities arising from the Group's involvement in associated
companies are disclosed separately in Notes 14 and 21.
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Note 13(ii): Investments in council-controlled organisations

Accounting policy

The council's associate investmentis accounted for in the group financial statements using the equity
method. An associate is an entity over which the council has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. The investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost
and the carrying amountin the group financial statements is increased or decreased to recognise the
group's share of the surplus or deficit of the associate after the date of acquisition. Distributionsreceived
from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

If the share of deficits of an associate equals or exceeds its interestin the associate, the group discontinues
recognising its share of further deficits. Afterthe group’s interest is reduced to zero, additional deficits
are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the council has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports surpluses, the group will resume recognising its share of the surpluses only after its share of the
surpluses equals the share of deficits not recognised.

When the group transacts with associate, surpluses or deficits are eliminated to the extent of the group's
interestin the associate.

Dilution gains or losses arising from investments in associates are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The investment in the associate is carried at cost in the council’s parent entity financial statement.

Breakdown of investments in council-controlled organisations and further information:

Council Council Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19
5000 5000 5000
Investment in Regional Software Holdings Limited (associate) 863 863
Totalinvestments in council controlled organisations 863 863 810 87

Northland Inc. Limited

Northland Inc. Limited is a Limited Company incorporated and registered under the Companies Act 1993 and
isacouncil controlled organisation as defined insection6 of the Local Government Act. Northland Inc. Limited
is a subsidiary of council with a primary objective to develop the economy of Northland and review funding
opportunities for the Investment and Growth Reserve. Council'sinvestment in Northland Inc. Limited is carried
at cost of $200 in the council's parent entity financial statements.

Regional Software Holdings Limited

Regional Software Holdings Limited ("RSHL")is a Limited Company incorporated and registered under the
Companies Act 1993 and is a council controlled organisation as defined in section 6 of the Local Government
Act. RSHL was established on 1January 2013 with a primary objective to provide a framework for collaboration
between theshareholdersand support the procurement ordevelopment of shared softwareresource products
and servicesin a manner that provides a more cost effective alternative than individual councils can achieve
on their own. Council has a 16.75% shareholding.

Summarised financial information of Regional Software Holdings Ltd presented on a gross basis:
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Council

30-Jun-18

5000

Assets 5,258 5,651
Liabilities 422 353
Revenue 1.662 1.480
Surplus/(deficit)for the year (362) (B)
Share capital 5,149 5,149
Council's interest 16.75% 16.75%
Council'sinvestmentin Regional Software Holdings Limited in council parent 863

financial statements 863

Regional Software Holdings Limited is an associate of council as the council's CEOQ is on the Board of directors
of Regional Software Holdings Limited and as such it is considered that council has significant influence over
the operating and financial policies of Regional Software Holdings Limited. For the year ended 30 June

2020 Regional Software Holdings Limited had a deficit of $361,545(2019: $6,351deficit), and councilrecognised
its 16.75% shareholding being a deficit of S60,559(2019: $1,064 deficit) on consolidation.

The total share of associates and Joint Venture company surplus in comprehensive revenue and expense is
S$8,747,640(2019: $9,007,040) being councils share of the Regional Software Holdings Limited deficit S60,559
(2019: $1,064)Note 13(ii), and Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited share of surplusin theirjoint venture company,
Northpaort Limited, $8,808,199(2019: $9,008,104) Note 13(i).

Note 14: Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy
Property, plant and equipment consists of:
Operational assets - these include land, buildings, plant and equipment, vehicles and vessels.

Infrastructure assets - infrastructure assets are the assets that comprise the Awanui River flood
management system and other river management schemes as they are developed, including stopbanks
and floodgates.

Buildings and infrastructure assets are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation. Forest land
subject to the Emissions Trading Scheme is the land under the forestry asset and is valued at historical
cost. All other land is measured at fair value.

All other asset classes are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Revaluation: Owner occupied freehold land and buildings and infrastructure assets are re-valued with
sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying value does not differ materially from fair value and at
least every three years.

Net revaluation results: Net revaluation results are credited or debited to other comprehensive revenue
and expense and are accumulated to an asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset. Where
this would result in a debit balance in the assetrevaluationreserve, this balance is not recognised in other
comprehensive revenue and expense but isrecognised in the surplus or deficit. Any subsequent increase
on revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be first
recognised in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously expensed, and then recognised in other
comprehensive revenue and expense.
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Additions: The costof anitem of property, plant and equipment isrecognised asan asset whenitis probable
that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and
exceeds S2000(GST exc), and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Capital projects in progress
are recognised at cost less impairment and are not depreciated.

In most instances an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is
acquired at no cost, or for nominal cost, itis recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Costsincurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and group and the cost of
the item can be measuredreliably. The costs of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred.

Disposals: Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses on disposals are reported in the surplus or deficit. When
re-valued assets are sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of those assets
are transferred to accumulated funds.

Depreciation: Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other
than land, at rates that willwrite off the cost(orvaluation) of the assets to their estimated residual values
overtheirusefullives. The useful lives and associated depreciation and amortisation rates of major classes
of assets have been estimated as follows:

- Buildings 5-50 years 1-20%
- Plant, equipment, vehicles and vessels 2-100 years 1-50%
- Infrastructure assets 20-190 years 0.5-5%

The residual value and useful life of an asset isreviewed, and adjustedif applicable, at each financial year
end.

Infrastructuralassets components include gates, pipes, outletsand stopbanks. Depreciation is not provided
for on stopbank components of the infrastructure assets. An asset management plan has been prepared
for these schemes.

Impairment of property. plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment that have a finite useful life
arereviewed forindicators ofimpairment at each balance date. When there is anindicator of impairment,
theasset'srecoverableamountisestimated and animpairmentlossis recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value, less costs to sell and its value in use.

If an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the carrying
amountiswritten down to therecoverableamount. Forrevalued assets, theimpairmentlossis recognised
against therevaluation reserve for that class of asset. Where that results in a debit balance inthe revaluation
reserve, the balance is recognised in the surplus or deficit. For assets not carried at a revalued amount
the total impairment is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Value inuse for non cash generating assets: Non cash generating assets are those assets that are not held
with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.

For non cash generating assets, value in use is determined usingan approach basedoneitheradepreciated
replacement costapproach, restoration cost approach, ora service units approach. The mostappropriate
approach used to measure value in use depends on the nature of the impairment and availability of
information.
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Value in use for cash generating assets: Cash generating assets are those assets that are held with the
primary objective of generating a commercial return. The value in use for cash-generating assets and
cash-generating units is the present value of expected future cash flows.

Movements in the carrying value for each class of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Freehold

COUNCIL

Year ended 30 June 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals® and divested assets
Transfer between asset classes
Revaluation movement
Transfer to operations

Depreciation expense

Land

5000

5000

Buildings
5000

Infrastructure
5000

Plant, Capital

equipment, TOTAL work in
progress

5000

5000 5000

Closing net book value

At 30 June 2019

Assets at cost/valuation
Accumulated depreciation

MNet book value

Year ended 30 June 2020
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals*® and divested assets
Transfer between asset classes
Revaluation movement

Depreciation expense

Closing net book value

At 30 June 2020
Assets at cost/valuation
Accumulated depreciation

MNet book value

2,165 707 5,155 18,012 4,684 31723 206
- - 339 1,030 1,629 2,998 190
- - - (30) (38) (128) -
(85) - (70) 550 - 395 (88)
10 - (169) - - (159) -
- - (105) (163) (1,247) (1,515) -
2,090 707 5,150 20,399 4,968 33,314 308
2,090 707 5,150 20,762 13,312 42,021 308
- - - (363) (8,344) (8,707) -
2,090 707 5,150 20,399 4,968 33,314 308
2,090 707 5,150 20,398 4,958 33,314 308
B73 - 380 2,265 1,426 4,944 4

_ _ . (72) (72)
50 - 75 - 125 (308)
522 - (127) (1.254) - (859) -
- - (108) (165) (1,265) (1.538) -
3,535 707 5370 21,245 5,057 35,914 4
3,536 707 5,370 21,245 14,074 44,931 4
: . : (9.017) (8.017) -
3,535 707 5370 21,245 5,057 35,914 4
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Council Council

Depreciation and amortisation expense 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

Property, plant and equipment 1,538 1515
Intangibles MNote 15 202 114
Total 1,750 1,629

*disposals are reported net after accumulated depreciation

Section three: Financial statements Wahanga tuatoru: Tauakipiatea
103

ID: A1370066 147



Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 4

_ Plant, _
Freehold Forestry Freehold Buildings equipm;:t Work in
Land Land | Land-Port and | hfesnce | “°0 0 " | TOTAL | progress
amenities 5000 : ' 5000

S000 S000 5000 5000

CONSOLIDATED
S000

5000

Year ended 30 June 2019

Opening net book value 2,165 707 19,320 11,191 19,012 6,496 58,891 291
Additions - - 515 1.613 1,030 1,985 B,163 396
Disposals*® and divested = = = = (30) (102) (132) =
assets

Transfer between asset (8E) - 18 (68) 550 (79) 336 (143)
classes

Revaluation movement 10 - 370 (34) - - 346 -

Transfer to operations - - - - - - - -

Depreciation expense - - - (334) (163) (1.473) (1,970} -
Closing net book value 2,090 707 20,223 12,368 20,399 6,837 62,624 538
At 30 June 2019

Assets at cost/valuation 2,090 707 20,223 12,685 20,762 16,041 72,518 538
Accumulated = = = (327) (363) (9,204)  (9.894) =
depreciation

Net book value 2,090 707 20,399 12,368 20,399 6,837 62,624 538
Yearended 30 June 2020

Opening net book value 2,080 707 20,223 12,368 20,399 6,837 B2.624 538
Additions 873 - 291 217 2,265 1,705 7.251 400
Disposals® and divested - - - - - (81) (91) -
assets

Transfer between asset 50 - 23 75 - - 148 (332)
classes

Revaluation movement 522 - (B14) 18 (1,254) - (1,528) -
Depreciation expense = = = (387) (185) (1477)  (2,029) -
Closing net book value 3,535 707 19,723 14,191 21,245 6,974 66,375 606
At 30 June 2020

Assets at cost/valuation 3,535 707 19,723 14,798 21,245 17.054 77,062 606
Accumulated - - - (BO7) -
depreciation - (10.080)  (10.687)

Net book value 3,535 707 19,723 14,191 21,245 6,974 66,375 606
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Depreciation and amortisation expense

Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles

Total

Consolidated

30-Jun-19

2,029 1,870
MNote 15 202 N4
2,231 2,084

*disposals are reported net after accumulated depreciation
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Valuation of freehold land and buildings

The most recent valuation of council's freehold land and buildings was performed by Telfer Young (Northland)
Limited, and iseffective as at 30 June 2020.

During the year, one freehold property was transferred from council's investment property portfolio.

Council's land and buildings are valued at fair value of 58,905,000 (2019: §7,240,000) using a market- based
approach based on a highest and best use approach, whereby the potential market rentals are capitalised to
derive a market value of the property. Significant assumptions in the 30 June 2020 valuations include market
rentals and capitalisation rates.

» Market rents range from: S$131to S191 per square metre.
o Capitalisation rates are market based rates of returns, ranging from 6.63% to 11.36%.

If council's freehold land and buildings were measured at depreciated replacement cost, the carrying amount
would be 7,790,000 (2019: $7,420,000). Council has no restrictions on the realisability of its freehold land and
buildings.

Valuation of Freehold Land and Buildings - Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

The most recent valuation of Marsden Maritime Holding Limited's freehold land was performed by independent
registered valuers, Seagar & Partners, and is effective as at 30 June 2020.

MarsdenMaritime Holdings Limited freehold land is valued at fair value of $19,722,933(2019: $20,222,933)using
a market comparison method based on a highest and best use approach considering various market outcomes
for land in the Marsden Point area, together with limited, recent sales evidence for the area. Significant
assumptions inthe 30 June 2020 valuationsinclude estimated prices perhectare of freehold landin the Marsden
Point area.

» Price per hectare: $100,000 to $205,000

If Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited's freehold land and buildings were measured at depreciated replacement
cost the carrying amount would be 7,425,553 (2019: §7,111,248).

Withexception of a portion of land designated for atransport corridor, Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited has
no restrictions on the realisability of its freehold land.

Valuation of Buildings - Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

The most recent valuation of Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited's buildings was performed by independent
registered valuers Telfer Young(Northland) Ltd and is effective as at 30 June 2020.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited buildings are valued at fair value of $2,100,000(2019: $2,010,000). As there
is no general market to assist in determining the market value of the buildings, the optimised depreciated
replacement cost approach methodology was used to establish the cost toreplace the buildings having regard
to current costings, and then an allowance for depreciation was deducted.

Valuation of Infrastructural assets - Council

The most recent valuation of council'sinfrastructural assetswas performed by independent registered valuers
Aon Valuation Services. The valuation is effective as at 30 June 2020.

Flood protection assets are valued using the depreciated replacement cost(DRC)method. Inusing the DRC
methodology, age, condition, remaining life, optimisation and modern equivalent replacement cost information
were collated onindividual elements of the flood protection assets(i.e. stopbanks, floodgate, spillway, retaining
wall, culverts and bridge). Replacement costs were derived from recent contract prices or in-house databases
before assigning modern equivalent replacement costs and assessing values.
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Indeterminingthe fairvalue of associated infrastructure land, land has beenvalued as vacant with assessments
to comparable market evidence taking into consideration adjustments for size, contour, location, zoning and
designation, current and potential uses. Whereit is identified that the land is designated reserve, an appropriate
adjustmenthasbeenmade toreflect the retrieved nature of any future development potential. The basis when
valuing designated land is that the land many not be used for any other purpose than is designated with an
adjustment made to reflect the value of the chance of any permission being obtained for some otheruse at
some future time.

The remaining life of elements is based on a standard expected economic life for each element type with
adjustments dependent on age and condition for each individual element, which may vary from one asset to
another.

For the purpose of this valuation, the assets have been classed as being fully optimised and no discount has
been applied to account for any spare capacity.

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic on infrastructure Assets

Councils infrastructure assets are specialist in nature and revalued on a cost approach with an allowance for
depreciation. Construction costs have surpassedinflation since the last fullrevaluation in 2017. The vast majority
of the land associated with council's infrastructure assets is on reserve zoned land, which largely follows the
trend of valuation appreciation similar to the residential property sector, albeit at a lower level. Given the
residential property sector has recorded an increase in values since 2017, it is assumed that reserve land has
also seen value appreciation which is unlikely to be eroded due to the global pandemic.

The infrastructure valuation key inputs, assumptions and processes used in the revaluation of the council
infrastructure assets are not materially impacted by COVID-19 pandemic.

Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic on Owner Occupied Freehold Land and Buildings:

As at 30 June 2020, the markets relating to the Council and the Group’s owner occupied freehold land and
buildings were impacted by severe market disruption and lack of transactional data as a result of the COVID-19
lockdown from mid to late March 2020. This created a greater degree of uncertainty on the value of owner
occupied freeholdland and buildings as at 30 June 2020 howeveritis important to note thatuncertainty doesn't
necessarily imply value changes but rather there may be a wider than average value range to the individual
ascribed valuations for each property.

The valuation uncertainty could affect key inputs, assumptions and processes used in the revaluation of the
Council and the Groups owner occupied properties being:

Estimating and analysing the ground rental rates and net income that a property can generate, and
Estimating and analysing the discount rate to convert the net income into a properties investment value
Estimating and analysing the relevant rates of return/capitalisation rates that affect a property's value
Projections of rental growth in the short to medium term

Core infrastructure disclosure

Included within the Council infrastructure assets are the following core council assets:

Whangarei Awanui Kaeo-Whangaroa Punguru Total
2020 208 2020 208 2020 208 2020 2019 2020 208
s000 s000 s000 s000 5000 s000 s000 s000 s000 s000
Closing book value 7z B 871 12,142 12,658 BEG B6O 506 = 21,245 20,398
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Acquisitions made by way of -
Constructed by Council 440 - B53 1.030 BO = 506 1,859 1,030
Transferred to Council = = 407 5RO = 407 550
Total Acguisitions 440 - 1,260 1,580 BO = 506 2,266 1580
Most recent cost estimate for 7.387 6,587 15,419 16,426 849 3 506 24,27 23,936

revalued assets

Capital Commitments

Property plant and equipment

Total capital commitments

Capital Commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at year end but not yet incurred.

Council Council Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-19
5000 5000 5000

B1 380 76 380

B1 380 76 380
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Note 15: Intangible assets

Accounting policy
Software acquisition and development

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software.

Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use are recognised as an
intangible asset. Direct costsinclude the software development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Staff training costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit when incurred.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Costs associated with development and maintenance of the councilswebsite are recognised as an expense
when incurred.

Carbon Credits

Compensation unitsreceived at no cost from the Crown are recognised at fair value at the date of receipt.
The credits are recognised when they have been received and are recognised in the surplus.

New Zealand Units are revalued annually with reference to market prices. The net revaluation resultis

credited or debited to othercomprehensive revenue and expense and accumulated to an asset revaluation
reserve in equity. Where this would result in a debit balance in the asset revaluation reserve, this balance
is not recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense but is recognised in the surplus of deficit.

Gainsand losses on disposal are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds withthe carryingamount
of the NZU. Gains and losses on disposals are reported in the surplus or deficit.

If at the end of any financial year there has been some deforestation (such as harvesting) that is yet to be
replanted, a contingent liability will be disclosed until such time as replanting has occurred. Council's
Forest Management Plan prescribes that replanting will always take place subsequent to any harvest
Easements

Easements arerecognised at cost, being the costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to itsintended
use. Easements have anindefiniteuseful life and are notamortised, but are instead tested forimpairment
annually. The cost of an easement is capitalised as part of the asset to which they relate.

Amortisation

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment

The carrying value of anintangible asset with afinite life is amortised on a straightline basis overits useful
life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is
derecognised. The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit

The useful lives and associated amortisation rates for major classes of intangible assets have been
estimated as follows:

Computer software 3-byears 20-33%
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Breakdown of intangible assets and further information:

Computer software

Cost -opening balance

Accumulated amortisation

Computer software opening carrying amount
Additions

Net disposals*

Amortisation charge

Total computer software closing balance
Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Total computer software closing balance

Intellectual Property

Opening balance

Additions

MNet disposals* and divested assets

Total intellectual property closing balance

Emission Trading Scheme - New Zealand Units(NZU's)

Opening balance

Gainfloss) on revaluation of Emission Trading Scheme - NZU's

Total Emission Trading Scheme - NZU's - Closing Balance

Total Intangible Assets

Council and

Note C ated

30-Jun-20
3000

C

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Council and
dated
30-Jun-19
3000

3,758 3,638
(3.520) (3.408)
238 232
194 120
(202) (m4)
230 238
3,962 3,758
(3.722) (3.620)
230 238
182 =
(182) -
404 368
20 156 36
560 404
790 642

*Disposalsarereported net afteraccumulated depreciation. There are no restrictions overthe title of intangible
assets and no intangible assets are pledged as security for liabilities.

There are norestrictions over the title of intangible assetsand no Intangible assets are pledged as security for

liabilities.

Emission Trading Scheme - New Zealand Units (NZU's)

The Council has 291 hectares of pre 1990 forest land. This land is subject to the provisions of the New Zealand
emissions trading scheme (ETS). Council will recognise credits received at fair value at balance date. At the
end of the financial year council held 17,460 NZ units (2019: 17,460) at $32.10 per unit (2019: $23.15 perunit) with

atotal market value of S560,466 (2019: S404,199).

Carbon credits have been assessed as having an indefinite life because they have no expiry dateand will continue
to have economic benefit for as longas the Emissions Trading Scheme is in place.
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Note 16: Forestry assets

Accounting policy

Forestry assets are independently revalued, annually, at fair value less estimated point of sale costs.
Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of forestry assets at fair value less estimated point of sale
costs, and from a change in fair value less estimated point of sale costs, are recognised in the surplus or
deficit.

Forestry maintenance costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit when incurred.

Breakdown of forestry assets and further information:

Council and Counciland
idated Consolidated
un-20 30-Jun-19

S000 S000
Balance at 1July 3,264 3,235
Decrease due to harvest 2(ii) - (B4B)
Gain/(Loss)arising from changes in fair values less estimated &4,2(ii) (107) 675
point-of-sale costs
Balance at 30 June 3,157 3,264

Northland Regional Council owns 295 hectares (2019: 295 hectares)of radiata pine forest which are at varying
stages of maturity, ranging from 3 to 25 years.

Valuation assumptions

Independent registered forestry industry consultants, Jenksmax Consulting Ltd, have valued forestry assets
atfair value less estimated selling costs as at 30 June 2020.

In2020 (and 2019) Jenksmax Consulting Limited derived the fair value of the forest using an expectation value
method. Under the expectation value approach, the netpresent value of the forest is calculated by discounting
the projected future net cash flow of the tree crop to the valuation date (30 June 2020). The calculated net
presentvalueis linked to sales evidence through the application of adiscount rate of 8.0%(2019: 8.0% )derived
with consideration to discount rate surveys, reporting rates from NZ forest growers and recent transactions.
Inapplying thisapproach PBE IPSAS 2 7requires exclusion of financing, funding and costs related to subsequent
crops. Costs and prices are held constantin 2020 NZ dollars, i.e. the net impact of inflation is assumed to be
zero.

Forestry assets Impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic:

The short-term outlook for NZ export logs is uncertain as the world comes out of Covid-19 to varying degrees
and timeframes. Both demand and prices are likely to come under pressure due to lower internal demand in
China and the general worldwide economic downturn as it rebuilds after Covid-19.

The current 1year average base log price is significantly lower(12-13% ) than last year, but reflects the volatile
past year and the initial Covid-19 impacts and is considered unrepresentative of longer term expected export
log prices.
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Going forward, most sources seem to believe that the log export market may fall further, but then stabilise and
rebuild as the world returnsto normality. The underlying Asia-Pacific longer-term market fundamentals remain
the same, and there will be solid future demand for NZ logs. Log prices will likely average out longer-term
somewhere around previous levels, perhaps not as high as early 2019, but in line with historic averages.

As the next planned harvest at Councils Mt Tiger forestry holding is not until after 2024, this year's valuation
uses a 3-year average base log price of $138/ Jasm3 AWG. Last year's valuation, prior to the volatile past 12
months, used a 1year average base log price at around S144/Jasm3 AWG.

Itis too early to say how Covid-19 willimpact on discount rates used in the forestry valuation. On the one hand
(suggesting possible higher discount rates), there is now increased uncertainty in the export log market and
how this will fair post Covid-19. On the other hand (suggesting lower discount rates), given the post Covid-19
impactsonfinancialmarketsandlow current interest rates for most investments, forestry is often considered
favourable as a solid and diversified investment. What is likely is some combination of the above, which may
balance out.

Therefore, a market discount rate of 8.0% was used in this year's valuation. This is maintained from last year,
noting that whilst there is uncertainty post Covid-19, at this point in time it is too early to have any robust
prediction on where discount rates will settle in future.

Note 17: Payables and deferred revenue

Breakdown of payables and deferred revenue and further information:

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

Council Council
30-Jun-20 | 30-Jun-18

5000 5000

5000

CURRENT PORTION

Payables and deferred revenue under exchange transactions

Payables and accruals 5,160 3.160 6,238 4,825
Revenue received in advance 808 543 808 543
Amounts due to subsidiaries and associates 280 45 - =

6,248 3.748 7.046 5,368

Payables and deferred revenue under non-exchange transactions

Grants payable 192 206 192 206
Other grants and deferred revenue received subject to conditions not yet met 2,427 854 3,430 1,868
Other taxes 17 192 1 184

2,636 1,252 3,683 2,258
Current total payables and deferred revenue 8,884 5,000 10,729 7,626

NON-CURRENT PORTION
Payables and deferred revenue under non-exchange transactions

Other grants received and deferred revenue subject to conditions not yet met 608 510 1.476 1,312

Non-current total payables and deferred revenue 608 510 1476 1,312

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms varying between 7 days
and 20th of the month following the invoice date. Therefore, the carrying value of trade and other payables
approximates their fair value.
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Accounting policy
Short-term employee entitlements

Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured at
nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.

These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken
at balance date, retiringand long service leave entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and
sick leave.

Council recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year are anticipated
to be taken. The amount is calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried
forward at balance date, to the extent that council anticipates it will be used by staff to cover those future
absences.

Council recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged, or where there is
a past practise that has created a constructive obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Long-term employee entitlements

Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of the year in which the
employee provides the related service, such as retirement have been calculated on an actuarial basis. The
calculations are based on the presentvalue of the estimated future cash flows.

Presentation of employee entitlements

Retirement gratuities for employees up to the age of 60 are classified as a non-current liability. All other

employee entitlements are classified as a current liability.

Breakdown of employee entitlements and further information:

Council
30-Jun-20

5000

Council
30-Jun-19
5000

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

5000

Annual leave 1,538 1,288 1.592 1,323

Accrued salaries and wages 450 295 497 320

Otherleave 340 299 340 238
2,328 1,882 2,429 1,942

Represented by:

Current benefit liabilities 2,312 1,866 2,413 1,926

Non-current benefit liabilities 16 16 16 16
2,328 1,882 2,429 1,942
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Note 19: Borrowings

Accounting policy

Borrowings on normal commercial terms are initially recognised at their fair value plus any transaction
costs.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Afterinitial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the council or group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance date.

Breakdown of borrowings and further information:

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

Council Council
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

5000 5000 5000

Current
Debentures 10,000 10,000
Total current borrowings 10,000 - 10,000 -

Mon-current

Debentures = 10,000 - 10,000

Local Government Funding Agency - Bond Issuance 9,658 9,568 9,558 9,558
Secured Loans - - 16,550 12,150
Total non-current borrowings 9,658 18,558 26,108 31,708
Council

As at 30 June 2020 Council has 1debenture(2019:1)of S10,000,000(2019: $10,000,000)issued undera debenture
trust deed, being a fixed rate note at a fixed annualinterest rate of 3.79%, maturingon 13 August 2020. Also at
30 June 2020, Council has four bond issuances (2019: 4)with the Local Government Funding Agency. The first
being a $2,800,000 fixed coupon bond issued at a fixed annual interest rate of 4.86%, maturing on 13 August
2032. The second a $3,811,000 fixed coupon bond issued at a fixed annual interest rate of 4.77%, maturing on
14 February 2033. The third a $1,931,000 fixed coupon bond issued at a fixed annual interest rate of 4.72%,
maturing on 14 February 2033 and the fourth a $1,016,000 fixed coupon bond issued during the year at a fixed
annual interest rate of 4.0%, maturing on 14 February 2033. Council secures its fixed coupon bonds and its
fixed rate note by granting a security interestinitsratesrevenue. Rates revenue is set and assessed under the
Local Government Rating Act 2002.

The totalfairvalue of council'sdebentures and bond issuances at 30 June 2020 is $23,393,5695(2019: §22,334,521).

There are a number of covenants included within the loan agreement with LGFA. No breach of these loan
covenants has occurred during the year.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

As at 30 June 2020 Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited has a secured loan facility of $20,000,000 (2019:
$20,000,000)with §16,550,000(2019: §12,150,000) being drawn down. The facility maturity dates range from
31August 2021to 31March 2022.

Annual Report 2020 | POrongo a tau 2020
14

ID: A1370066 158



Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 4

Theremainder of the loan facility isable to be drawn down on request subject to the company being in compliance
with undertakings in respect of the facility.

Interest rates are determined by reference to prevailing money market rates at the time of draw-down plus a
margin. Interest rates(excluding establishment and line fees)paid during the year ranged from 1.27% to 2.86%
(2019: 2.58% to 3.18%.)

The loan facility is secured by a first ranking mortgage overall of Marsden Maritime Holdings Ltd's property
interests.

Note 20: Equity
Accounting policy

Equity is the community's interest in the Council and is measured as the difference between total assets and
total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of reserves.

» Accumulated funds
® Reserves
e Assetrevaluationreserve;
e Fairvalue through other comprehensive revenue and expense reserve;
e Hedging reserve;
e Specialreserves.

Reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity
have been assigned. Reserves may be legally restricted or created by the council.

The Assetrevaluationreserverelates to the revaluation of property, plantand equipment and intangible assets
to fairvalue.

Thefair value through othercomprehensive revenue and expense reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in fair value of assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense.

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of derivatives
designated as cash flows hedges.

Special reserves include reserves established by the council (and may be altered at the discretion of council)
toisolate funds put aside for a specific purpose, and other reserves restricted by law and reflect targeted rates
that must be applied to the specific activities for which the rates were collected.
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Breakdown of equity and further information:

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

Council Council
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

5000 5000 5000

Accumulated funds

Asat 1July 119,943 123,305 152,771 154,468
Surplus/(deficit)foryear 4,767 4,938 4,798 6,604
Net transfers from/(to) special reserves (9,008) (8,301) (9.008) (8,301)
Asat 30 June 115,702 19,943 148,562 152,77

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

Council Council
Reserves 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

S000 S000 5000

Assetrevaluation reserve

Asat 1July 1,337 1,291 35,105 34,775
Revaluation gains/(losses)- buildings and amenities - - 10 -
Revaluation gains/(losses)- land 522 10 (90) 294
Revaluation gains/(losses) - infrastructure assets (BB) - (BE) -
Revaluation gains/(losses) - carbon credits 156 36 156 36
Asat 30 June 1,948 1,337 35,115 35,105

Asset revaluation reserve attributable to:

Land 1522 1.000 34,678 34,768
Buildings and amenities - - 10 -
Infrastructure assets = 66 = 66
Carbon credits 427 27 427 n
Total Asset revaluation reserve 1:949 1,337 356,115 35,105

Special reserves

Asat 1July 30,887 22,586 30,887 22,586
Transfers from/{to) accumulated funds 9,008 8,301 9,008 8,301
Asat 30 June 39,895 30,887 39,895 30,887

Cashflow hedge reserve

Asat 1July = = (490) (325)
Fairvalue gains/{losses) recognised - - (100} [165)
Asat 30 June = = (590) (490)
Total Reserves 41,844 32,224 74,420 65,502
Mon-controlling interest - - 64,462 65,004
Total Equity 157,546 152,167 287444 283,277

Mon-controlling interest
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Reserves

Balance at 1July

Share of total comprehensive revenue and expense
attributable to the non controlling interest in

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

Dividends paid

Balance at 30 June

Information about reserve funds held for a specific purpose is provided below:

Mote 20 continued

Land management reserve

Awanui river reserve

Kaihd river reserve
Kaeo-Whangaroa riversreserve
Whangarei urban rivers reserve
Kerikeri-Waipapa rivers reserve
Infrastructure facilities reserve
Property reinvestment fund reserve
Eqgualisation fund reserve

Hatea river maintenance reserve
Investment and growth reserve
Infrastructure investment fund reserve
Whangarei transport reserve

Emergency services reserve

Approved carry forwards reserve
Lidar projectreserve

Flood infrastructure reserve

Council Council
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

5000 5000

ITEM: 5.1
Attachment 4

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

5000

65,004 63,286

2,524 4,735
(3.085) (3.017)
64,462 65,004

Activities to which the reserve relates

Civildefence and emergency management,
natural

hazard management, river management,
land and

water, hydrology, biodiversity and
biosecurity

River management

River management

River management

River management

River management

Economic development
Economic development

All

Harbour safety and navigation
Economic development
Rivermanagement/Economicdevelopment
Transport

Civil defence and emergency management

All
Matural hazard management

River management

30 June 2020
5000

516

(660)
40
233
(8.618)
430
(166)
21,434
1463
165
BO1
21,083
(40)
82

256
1
(1.770)

1July 2018
$000

267

(B42)
32

176
(9.078)
455
(2,532)
16,748
1,463
222
1.249
20,915
(74)

58

72
367
(537)
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Balance at Balance at

Activities to which the reserve relates

30June 2020 1July 2018
Mote 20 continued 5000 5000

Kaeo River flood infrastructure reserve River management 23 21
Awanui River flood infrastructure reserve River management (188) (134)
Whangarei River flood infrastructure reserve River management 113) 1]
FarNorth transport reserve Transport 221 152
Regional Sporting Facilities reserve Economic development 1407 621
Opex reserve All 1620 1131
Capital Subsidy reserve All 65 T
COVID-18 Reinstatement Reserve All 1700

Total Special Reserves 39,895 30,887

Purpose of each reserve fund:

Land Management reserve

Thisreserve was created to set aside Land Management rates collected but not fully used in any given year. While the land
managementreserve maintains a positive balance, it can be usedto fund emergency eventssuch asremedialstormexpenditure
on acase-by-case basis.

River and Flood Infrastructure reserves

The Awanui, Kaihd, Kaeo-Whangaroa, Kerikeri-Waipapa and Whangarei urban river reserves and flood infrastructure reserves
hold targeted river management rates and targeted flood infrastructure rates collected and unspent in any given year to cover:

® any future funding shortfallsinrespect to the maintenance and operation of existing river flood management schemes(River
Reserves)

® any future funding shortfalls inrespect to the development, maintenance and operation of new flood infrastructure schemes
(Flood Infrastructure Reserves)

Thiskeepsthesurpluses/deficitsinthe appropriate activity separate from other activities. Anydeficit balance inthesereserves

will be repaid from future targeted river management and flood infrastructure rates collected from the rate payers within the

area of benefit identified in the respective flood management plans.

Infrastructure Facilities reserve

The Infrastructure facilities reserve was created to set aside any targeted Infrastructure rates collected and not fully used in
any given year for the purpose of funding the holding costs associated with the Marsden Point Rail link project, the capital costs
of securing the rail corridor designation, and other activities relating to the development and/or completion of future regional
infrastructure projects. The deficit balance of this reserve will be repaid from future targeted regionalinfrastructure rates
collected from ratepayers in all three Northland districts.

Property Reinvestment Fund reserve

Thisreserve was established torepresent the proceeds of commercial property salesand acquisitions and includes the proceeds
of a special dividend (capital) payment made by the Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited. The funds are general funds and are
set aside to bereinvested in income producing assets. The fund invests monies in separate managed funds which have been
earmarked to hold the funds pending the identification of approved property investments.
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This reserve was created to hold any targeted flood infrastructure rates relating to new flood protection capital programmes,
identified in the infrastructure strategy, that were collected and unspent in any given year. These unspent rates will cover any
future funding shortfalls in the new flood protection capital programmes.

Regional Sporting Facilities reserve

This reserve holds any targeted regional sporting facilities rates collected and unspent in any given year to contribute to any
future funding shortfalls of regional sporting facilities funding.

Opex reserve

This reserve was established to ensure the stability of work programs, employment and ongoing day to day operations of the
Council by ensuring that the portion of annual operating costs that is intended to be funded from gains derived from Council's
managed funds is in reserve to cover any unanticipated loss in council funding arising from adverse economic condition's or
volatility in financial markets.

Capital Subsidy reserve

Thisreserve currently holds capital subsidies received from the NZ transport agency that will be used to offset the future costs
associated with the Regional Integrated Ticketing Information System (RITIS).

COVID-19 Reinstatement reserve

This reserve was established to set aside funding that can be used to fund the reintroduction of priortised work programmes,

salaries and projects that were originally deferred or abandoned fromcouncils 2020/21 Annual Plan as aresult of a deficit arising
from the impact of COVID-19. Funding of new projects from this reserve is permitted subject to a council resolution.

Note 21: Contingencies

21(i): Contingent liabilities

Council Council Consolidated Consolidated
30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

5000 5000 S000 5000

Bonds = = 75 75

Council

At year end, council was involved in an Environment Court proceeding regarding a contaminated site. Council
is not arespondent in these proceedings, however the court adjourned the issues of the respondents' liability
and apportionmentof liabilityanditis uncertain if council will be able to recoverany costs from the respondents
that it may contribute towards the clean-up of the site.

Other Legal Claims

At year end council was defendant in a number of other legal claims that had not been heard before the court
or ruled upon which may result in a liability should council not successfully defend the claims. The amount
claimed or the maximum potential exposure forthe council is not considered material and excludes any interest
or costs that may be be claimed if these cases were decided against council.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited
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At Balance Date, Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited was aware of the following Contingent Liabilities:

1. To the Bank of New Zealand for a $75,000(2019: $75,000) Bond given by them to the New Zealand Stock
Exchange.

Northland Inc. Limited and Regional Software Holdings Limited do not have any contingent liabilities at year
end.

21(ii): Contingent assets

At 30 June 2020 the council and the group has no contingent assets (2019: Nil).

Note 22: Related party transactions

Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are within a normal
supplier or client/recipient relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those that it
is reasonable to expect the council and group would have adopted in dealing with the party at arm’s length in
the same circumstances.

Related party disclosures have also not been made for transactions with entities with the Council group (such
asfunding and financing flows), where the transactions are consistent with the normal operating relationships
between entitiesand are on normal terms and conditions for such group transactions.

There are no related party transactions with any associate, subsidiary or key management personnel requiring
disclosure.

Key Management Personnel Compensation

Keymanagement personnel includes all the elected and inde pendent (non-elected) representatives of council,
the chief executive and senior management leadership team. Due to the difficulty in determining the full time
equivalent for councillors and the independent member of council, the full time equivalent figures are taken
asthe number of councillors and independent members.

Council Council
30-Jun-20; 30-Jun-1

Councillors
Remuneration 3000 752 778
Full time equivalent members 9 9

Independent(non elected) members of Council
Remuneration 3000 25 27
Full time equivalent members 2 1

Senior management team including the Chief Executive

Remuneration S000 1,156 1.135
Full time equivalent members 5.4 ]
Total key management personnel remuneration S000 1,933 1,940
Total full time equivalent personnel 16.4 16

Note 23: Events after balance sheet date

Subsequent to balance date, Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited declared afully imputed dividend of 9.25 cents
per share to be paid on 25 September 2020.

The Councilagreed a construction contract in August 2020, to constructa building in Dargaville to accommodate
Northland regional and Kaipara district council staff, and other commercial tenants. The total budget for this
projectis $9.2m.
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In August 2020 the Council reduced its debt by S6.8M, by way of repaying a maturing S10M debenture (with a

fixed interest rate of 3.79%) and taking a new loan of $4.4M from the Local Government Funding Agency (with
afixed interestrate of 1.98%) that is set to mature in April 2033.

There were no other significant events after balance date.

Note 24: Financial instruments

Note 24A: Financial instrument categories

FINAMCIAL ASSETS

Loans and receivables:

Cashon hand and at trading banks

Term deposits

Local government funding agency borrower notes
Debtars and other receivables

Loans to subsidiary

Otherloans

Other receivables (long term)

Totalloans and receivables

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit
Other financial assets:

Income funds

Equity Funds

Listed shares

Total financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Creditors and other payables

Borrowings:

Debentures

Local government funding agency - bond issuance
Bankloan

Total financial liabilities measured at cost

Note 24B: Fair value hierarchy disclosures

For those instruments recognised at fairvalue in the statement of financial position, fairvaluesare determined

according to the following hierarchy:

Council
30-Jun-20

5000

Council
30-Jun-19
S000

Consolidated
30-Jun-19

5000

1,140 606 2,061 1,758
4,247 2,600 4,247 2,600
153 153 153 153
7.090 4,056 7,462 4,792
- 5 - -
3.050 3.006 3.050 3.006
= 5,948 = 5,948
15,680 16,374 16,973 18,257
31,140 27.807 31,140 27.807
31,888 29,914 31,888 29,914
= = 448 462
63,129 57,721 63,578 58,183
9,492 5,510 12,204 8,938
10.000 10.000 10.000 10.000
9,558 9,558 9,558 9,558
= = 16,550 12,150
28,050 25,068 48,312 40,646
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» Quoted market price (level 1)- Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active
markets.

» Yaluation technigue using observable inputs(level 2) - Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and
financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

» Valuation technigues with significant non-observable inputs (level 3)- Financial instruments valued using
models where one or more significant inputs are not observable.

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive revenue and expense are classified as level 1.

Note 24C: Financial instrument

The council's and group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks including market risk,
creditrisk and liquidity risk. The Counciland group has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with
financial instruments and its treasury activities.

The council has an approved liability management policy and an investment policy for its investments. These
policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into and manages council's
exposure inrespect to liquidity risk, credit risk, price risk and interest rate risk.

The Council also has investments in externally managed funds and administers these funds with overarching
independent investment advice from Eriksen and Associates Limited. These two funds are administered in
accordance with the relevant Statement of Investment Policies and Objectives(SIP0). The two SIPOs and any
changes to them are approved by council. Monthly performance reporting on the two funds is prepared by
Eriksen's and Associates Limited, and any breach of compliance with any SIPO is also reported monthly to
council's investment subcommittee.

Price risk

Price riskis the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as aresult of
changes in market prices. Equity securities price risk arises on listed share investments. For council this only
includessecurity investments in itsexternally managed funds. Price riskcan be minimised through diversification.
At 30 June 2020 council's externally managed investment funds were diversified over 13 fund managers. The
use of awiderange of fund managerswith differentmandates and different asset allocations mitigates council's
price risk.

Currency risk

Currencyriskistheriskthat the value of a financial instrumentwill fluctuate due to changesin foreign exchange
rates. Council has some exposure to currency risk is provided below:

o Consolidated
Consolidated

30-Jun-20
5000

30-Jun-19
5000

Community Investment Fund: Investments in

MLC Private Equity Fund(Il) - B58
Schroders Real Return Fund +5% = 2,271
Infrastructure Investment Fund: Investmentsin

Blackrock Fixed Income Global Opportunities Fund - 1,138
Schroders Real Return Fund +5% = 1,276
Long Term Fund: Investmentsin

Blackrock Fixed Income Global Opportunities Fund 1,183 -

Section three: Financial statements Wahanga tuatoru: Tauakipiatea
123

ID: A1370066 167



Audit and Risk Subcommittee ITEM: 5.1
6 October 2020 Attachment 4

Consolidate
Consolidated S

30-Jun-20 - o
30-Jun-19

5000

5000

Continuity Capital 2,229 -
MLC Private Equity Fund(Il) 988 -
Schroders Real Return Fund +5% 3.0N1 =
Total exposure to currency risk 7,472 5,350

Advice is sought from an independent investment advisor to determine when it is appropriate to take a hedge
out to protect council against risk of adverse movements.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited foreign exchange risk is considered minimal.
Fairvalue interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changesin
market interest rates. Northland Regional Council's exposure to fair value interestrate risk is limited to its
interest-bearinginvestments within the portfolio and its $19.6 million borrowingsin the form of fixed rate notes
of $S10 million and Local Government Funding Agency bonds of $9.6 million.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from afinancial instrument will fluctuate because
of changesin marketinterest rates. Investmentsissued at variable interest rates expose the council and group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

Councilslongtermborrowing andlong termdepositinvestments areata fixed rate. Marsden Maritime Holdings
Limited's exposure to cash flowinterest rateriskis limited toits $20,000,000loan facility of which $16,550,000
was drawn down at year end with BNZ. Interest rates on this loan facility are determined by reference to the
prevailingmarket rates at the time of draw down plusamargin. During the yearinterest ratesranged from1.27%
t02.86%.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited has anindirect exposure to variable interest rate risk via its holding in joint
venture company Northport Limited. This entity periodically enters into cashflow hedges to hedge the risk
associated with fluctuations in interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the council and group, causing it to incur
aloss. Dueto the timing of council's cashflows and outflows, surplus cashis invested into term deposits, local
authority and corporate bonds and externally managed funds.

The council'sinvestmentsin term deposits, local government and corporate bonds are invested inaccordance
withits Treasury Management Policy as determined by the Standard and Poor’s credit ratings. Where relevant,
the minimum longterm credit rating can be no lower than BBB and the maximum exposure of council'sportfolio
rated less than A-can not exceed 20%.

The credit risk associated with council's externally managed funds is minimised by setting maximum portfolio
limits oneach class of investment and specific limits on each Fund Manager. Council's SIPO ensures credit risk
of each fund manager and the overall fund is managed within acceptable parameters.

Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited manages its credit exposure by only trading with recognised, credit-

worthy parties and by limiting the amount of funds placed with any one financial institute at any one time.
Accordingly, the group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
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The council and group's maximum credit risk exposure for each class of financial asset is the carrying value
set outinthe table in Note 24A.

Debtors and other receivables arise mainly from the council's statutory functions. Therefore, there are no
procedures in place to monitor or report the credit quality of debtors and other receivables with reference to
internal or external credit ratings. Other than rates owing on Maori Freehold Land(see Note 7for the impairment
applied to these debtors)the council has no significant concentrations of credit risk in relation to debtors and
other receivables, asit has a large number of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and the council has powers
under the Local Government(Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debts from ratepayers.

Liquidity risk
Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty raising liguid funds to meet commitments as
they falldue. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and availability of funding
through the investment portfolio. The council's treasury management policy limitsthe level of investments
that must mature within the next 12 months to a minimum of 15% of its investment portfolio.

MarsdenMaritime Holdingsmanages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaininga balance continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank loans, overdrafts and committed available credit lines. As at 30 June
2020 Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited had access to BNZ funding totalling S20.5 million of which $16.55
million was drawn down at year end (2019: S12.15 million)

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities

The table below analyses council and group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings, based on the
remaining period at balance date to the contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating rate
debtarebased onthe floatingrate on theinstrument at balance date. Theamountsdisclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and include interest payments.

Amount Iijontr':;::rl:;lL:i Less thiena l1 > Years | 2-5Years M 0;-:152
000 o S[I.[IE‘l 5000 $000 AL S[I[IEl
Council 2020
Creditors and other payables 9,492 9,492 8,884 BO8 - -
Debentures 10,000 10,046 10,046 = = =
Local Government Funding Agency - Bond Issuance 9,558 15,169 450 899 1,348 12,47
Total 29,050 34,707 19,380 1,507 1,349 12,471
Group 2020
Creditors and other payables 12,204 12,204 10,729 1,476 - -
Secured bank facility 16,550 17.090 380 16,710 = =
Debentures 10,000 10,046 10,046 = = =
Local Government Funding Agency - Bond Issuance 9,558 15,169 450 898 1,349 12,47
Total 48,312 54,508 21,605 19,085 1,349 12,471
Council 2019
Creditors and other payables 5,510 5,510 5000 510 - -
Debentures 10.000 10,425 379 10,046 = =
Local Government Funding Agency - Bond Issuance 9,558 15,169 450 898 1,349 12,921
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Contractual S Maore than

Amount | Flows o ?Years | 2-b Years 5 Years

' - " S000 $000 i

S000 S000 5000 5000

Total 25,068 31,554 5,829 11,455 1,349 12,921
Group 2019

Creditors and other payables 8,938 8,938 7626 1.312 - -

Secured bank facility 12,150 12,880 470 12,410 = =

Debentures 10,000 10,425 379 10,046 = =

Local Government Funding Agency - Bond Issuance 9,558 15,619 450 899 1,348 12,921

Total 40,646 47,862 8,925 24,667 1,349 12,921
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Sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the potential effect on the surplus/deficit and equity (excluding accumulated funds)
for reasonably possible market movements with all other variables held constant based on the council's and
group’s financial instrument exposures at balance date.

Sensitivity analysis 2020 2019
+100bps -100bps +100bps -100bps
Suro| Other Surol Other Surpl Other Surol Other
urplus e urplus e urplus Equity urplus B
S000 $000 S000 $000 S000 $000 S000 $000
COUNCIL
Total sensitivity to interest rate risk 687 = (687) = B1 - (611) -
2020 2019
+100bps -100bps +100bps -100bps
Other Surplus Other Surplus Other Surplus Other
Surplus Equity P Equity P Equity P E quity
S000
S000 =000 S000 3000 S000 3040 S000
GROUP
Total sensitivity to interest rate risk 530 = (530) = 501 - (501) -
Borrowings

Council has $19.6 million of external borrowings in the form of a fixed rate note of $10 million and Local
Government Funding Agency bonds of $9.6 million. The rate of interest payable is fixed for the life of the
borrowings and is not affected by rising or falling interest rates.

Note 240: Capital management

The council's capital isits equity (or ratepayers’' funds), which comprises accumulated funds and reserves.
Equity is represented by net assets.

The Local Government Act 2002 (the Act)requires the council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets,
liabilities investments and general financial dealings prudently and ina manner that promotes the current and
futureinterestsof the community. Ratepayers fundsare largely managedas a by-product of managing revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings.

The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which isa principle promoted in
the Act and applied by the council. Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of
using the council’s assets and not expecting them to meet the full costs of long term assets that will benefit
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ratepayers in future generations. Additionally, the council has in place asset management plans for major
classes of assets, detailing renewal and maintenance programs to ensure ratepayers in future generations are
not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.

The Actrequiresthe council to make adequate andeffective provisioninits Long Term Plan(LTP)and its annual
plan(where applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identifiedin those plans. The Act also sets out thefactors
that the council is required to consider when determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of
its activities. The sources and levels of funding are set out under funding and financial policies in council's
Long Term Plan.

Reserves fordifferent areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct
fromthe generalrate. Anysurplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefitisapplied to the specific
reserves. Refer to Note 20 for alist of council's reserves. Self-insurance reserves are built up annually from
regional-wide or sometimes targetedrates and are made available for specific unforeseen events. Therelease
of these funds is approved by council.
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Rating base information

The following rating base information for Northland Regional Council is disclosed based on the rating base
information at the end of the preceding financial year:

The number of rating units within council's region at 30 June: 97,998 97,124
The total capital value of rating units within council's region at 30 June: $54,439,612,940 $45,355,396,350
The total land value of rating units within council's region at 30 June: $27,943,969,900 $23.110,228,420

Insurance of assets

At 30 June 2020 council had assets covered by full replacement insurance of S86,967,089(2019: $82,125,250)
and indemnity insurance of $70,000(2019: $70,000). At 30 June 2020 there are no assets self insured.

Internal borrowings

S112(b)(iii) of the Local Government Act defines borrowing as the use for any purpose, of funds received or
invested by the local authority for any other purpose. Schedule 10(27)requires council to disclose internal
borrowing, including the amount of the borrowings, funds borrowed and repaid during the yearand the amount
of any interest paid (if any)in relation to the internal borrowing by each group of activity.

A'summary of internal borrowing by each group of activity is provided in the following table:

Change to
Opening Funds Funds ) ' Closing Interest
balance borrowed repaid I : a
1 10 NG /9 T 2019/20 | £ n
1-Jul-19 208/20 2018/20 30-Jun-20
S000 S000 S000 S000
5000
Transport T4 - (34) 40 4
TOTAL T4 = (34) 40 4
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Council funding impact statement

Period ending 30 June 2020

Long Term Annual

Plan Report [ Annual Plan Actual

2018118 2018118 2019/20 2019/20
S000 S000 5000 5000

Sources of operating funding

General rates, uniform annual general charges, and rates penalties - 418 - 456
Targeted rates 27,169 26,785 29,860 29,041
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 3,046 4,890 4,793 11,981
Fees and charges 4,310 4,487 4,388 4,842
Interest and dividends from investments 8.021 7.638 7.048 6,924
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees and other receipts 2,575 4,041 2,996 4,763
TOTAL OPERATING FUNDING 45,121 48,259 49,085 58,007

Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff and suppliers 417 41,248 46,304 49,317
Finance costs 936 303 1.340 931

Other operating funding applications - - - -

TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING 42,847 42,151 47,644 50,248
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 2,474 6,108 1441 7,758

Sources of capital funding

Subsidies and grants for capital purposes - 10 - 27
Increase/{decrease)in debt 2,667 1,016 6,545 -
Gross proceeds from sale of assets - 1,521 - 7.312

Lump sum contributions - - - -

Other dedicated capital funding - = - -

TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING 2,667 2,547 6,545 7338
Applications of capital funding
Capital expenditure:

to meet additional demand = - - -

toimprove levels of service 3,666 5,801 15,470 7.849
to replace existing assets 1;525 1.0B65 1.274 4,922
Increase/(decrease) in reserves (83) 8,301 (B16) 9,008
Increasef{decrease) of investments 33 (6.512) (8142) (B.681)
TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING 5,141 8,655 7,986 15,088
Surplus/{deficit) of capital funding (2.474) (6.108) (1.441) (7,759)

FUNDING BALANCE = - _ -
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Reconciliation to the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
Period ending 30 June 2020

Long Annual
Term Plan Report | Annual Plan Actual
2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20
S000 S000 S000 S000
Capital expenditure included above, not in comprehensive revenue and 5,190 6,866 16,744 127N
eXpense
Investmentmovementsincluded above notincomprehensive revenue and 33 (B,512) (8.142) (6,681)
eXpense
Other gains included in comprehensive income not above - 10 -
Gross proceeds included above, but notin comprehensive revenue and - (1,621) - 7.31)
eXpense
Gains on asset disposals included in comprehensive revenue and expense - (70) - (757)
Revaluation adjustmentsnot included above, butin comprehensive revenue - 1,376 - a0

and expense

Impairment onan economic development loan included in comprehensive (820) -
revenue and expense

Transfers to/from special reserves included above, but not in (B3) 8,301 (B16) 9,008
comprehensive revenue and expense

Increased decrease)indebtincluded above butnotin comprehensive income (2,B67) (1.018) (B,545) -

Depreciation and amortisation expense not included above, but in (1,628) (1,6293) (1.810) (1,740)
comprehensive revenue and expense

Total comprehensive revenue and expense per the statement of 848 4,985 (369) 5378
comprehensive revenue and expense
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Group structure

ol i

A council-controlled organisation(CCO)is acompany This section providesthe information required under
or organisation in which a council or councils hold the Local Government Act 2002 for Northland Inc.
50% or more of the votingrights or can appoint 50% Limited and Regional Software Holdings Limited.

or more of the trustees, directors or managers. A MarsdenMaritime Holdings Limitedisalsoa subsidiary
council-controlled trading organisation (CCTO)is a organisation but is exempt from the CCO provisions
company or organisation that operates a trading ofthe LocalGovernment Act 2002 andis not required
operation for the purpose of making a profit. to publish a Statement of Intent.

CCOs and CCTOs are required to complete a
Statement of Intent and report against their policies,
objectives and performance in their annual reports
unless an exemption has been granted.
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Marsden Maritime Holdings Limited

Company operations and ownership

Marsden Maritime Holdings Ltd (known as Northland
Port Corporation (NZ) Ltd until August 2014) is a
designated port company formed under the Port
Companies Act 1988, which required harbour boards
to form companies to take over commercial,
port-relatedassets of the Boards. In Northland’s case,
the companys assets include substantial
land-holdings at Marsden Point.

The company is registered under the Companies Act
1993 and is domiciled and incorporated in New
Zealand.In 1992 the company's shares were listed on
the New Zealand StockExchange. Northland Regional
Council currently holds 53.61% of the share capital,
whilst Ports of Auckland Ltd holds 19.9%. The balance
of shares is held by members of the public. The
council may review its shareholding in the company
as part of its triennial long-term planning process.

In2002,inab0/50joint venture with Port of Tauranga,
associate company Northpart Ltd was formed and a
new cargo terminal at Marsden Point was developed.
Northport Ltd operates the deep water commercial
port facility situated at the entrance to Whangarei
Harbour, making it the northern-most multi-purpose
port in New Zealand, and the closest port to the
majority of New Zealand'sinternational markets. More
information about Northport Ltd is available
at www.northport.co.nz

In 2014, the company purchased the Marsden Cove
Marina, comprising 223 berths, adjoiningcommercial
buildings, and land. Marsden Maritime Holdings Ltd
(MMHL) is a stakeholder of Marsden Cove Canals
Management Ltd (MCCML), which administers the
waterways within the Marsden Cove marina
development. MCCML is an IRD approved charitable
entity with budgeted expenditure met by dividing
costsacross all canal users. Due to the nature of this
entity it has not been consolidated with MMHL in its
financial statements.

The Board of Directors of MMHL is elected by the
shareholders to supervise the management of the
company and its associates in the best interests of
shareholders. The Board has several key functions
which are:

» The establishment of business objectives,
strategies and policies.

» The approval of annual capital and operating
budgets.

» The appointment of a Chief Executive to manage
the day to day operations of the company within
the established framework.

# The ongoing monitoring of management
performance in relation to the goals established
for that purpose.

The Board currently has seven members. Under the
company's constitution, one-third (or the number
nearest toone third)of thedirectors retire by rotation
each year. Northland Regional Council participates
inthe process of appointing directors by:

» |dentifying potential candidates;
» Nominating candidates for election; and

» \oting for preferred candidates at the company's
annual general meeting.

Currentinformation about the company's Board of
Directors, governance structure and its organisation
framework is available

at www.marsdenmaritime.co.nz/about-us/

Company financial data

MMHL isdeemed a“strategic asset” of the council, as
providedforinsection5ofthe Local Government Act
2002, but the Act also specifically provides that
designated port companiesand theirsubsidiaries are
not council-controlled organisations. MMHL is
therefore not required to provide to the council a
statement of corporate intent nor submit budget
estimates.

Company Holding at 30 Main activity
June 2020

Northland 50.0% Port operating
Port company
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Marsden Maritime Holdings Ltd

53.61% Northland Regional Council

19.90% Ports of Auckland Ltd i =
...

26.49% other Shareholders - -
Northport Ltd

50% Marsden Maritime Holdings Ltd

"
50% Port of Tauranga Ltd .
North Tugz Ltd - -
50% Northport Ltd
50% Ports of Auckland Ltd SHL G s | .
FLOWCHART NOTES : " LI
> Ownership [in whole or part) POTL* MMHL® | |
------» Customer relationship
Abbreviations

BOPRC = Bay of Plenty Regional Council
QHL = Quayside Holdings Ltd

QSL = Quayside Securities Ltd

ACIL = Auckland Council Investments Ltd
POTL = Port of Tauranga Ltd .
MMHL = Marsden Maritime Holdings Ltd j

POAL = Ports of Auckland Ltd - """""" -
NRC = Northland Regional Council

Percentages shown indicate how much the

parent entity owns of the connected entity.
Not all minor shareholders are shown.

* Designated port companies
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Northland Inc. Limited

About this council-controlled
organisation(CCO)

Northland Inc. Limited, established in July 2012, is
the region’'s economic development agency and
regional tourism organisation.

Northland Inc. Limited is primarily funded by an
operational contribution from Northland Regional
Council and is project funded through other public
and private agencies, with central government being
the next largest contributor. The organisation has a
governance board of professional directors, each
appointed by the council. Operational activity is led
by a chief executive officer.

Policies and objectives

Council's Long Term Plan 2018-2028 establishes the
framework for Northland Inc. Limited. The mission
of Northland Inc. Limited is to strengthen, diversify
and grow the Northland economy. This is delivered
through four work programmes: investment and PGF;
engagement, collaboration and visibility; Maori
economic development; and destinationmanagement
and marketing.

The following objectives for the economic
development arganisation were established in its
2019-22 Statement of Intent.

» Advocate and promote the establishment and
development of infrastructure that underpins
regional economic growth.

e Attract, facilitate and support investment
opportunities in regionally strategic sectors.

» Promote Northland as a progressive and positive
place to visit, do business and live.

» Provide and facilitate business support services
that enable Northland businesses to grow.

* |ncrease innovation and entrepreneurship in
Northland.

e Partner with Maori to develop and implement
economic development projects for the benefit of
Northland.

Key performance measures and targets

e Support and facilitate the implementation of the

Tai Tokerau Northland Economic Action Plan.

e Support tourism product development and

infrastructure asenablers of Northland's tourism
sector.

Investment and Growth Reserve

Northland Inc. Limited's activities include a focus on
finding economic development projects that qualify
for funding through council's Investment and Growth
Reserve(IGR). The objective of the reserve is provide
afund that enables council to make strategic
investments that lift the long-term growth of the
Northland economy. In August 2018 counciladopted
new criteria and procedures for allocating funding
fromthe reserve. The main points are as follows:

e The reserve provides operational expenditure for
Northland Inc. Limited inline with what isbudgeted
in council's Long Term Plan.

» Up to S300,000 perannum can be used for project
development funding.

» Responsibility for allocating project development
funding of up to $100,000is delegated to the Board
of Northland Inc. Ltd.

» The reserve can be used to provide enabling
investment funding for projects that lift the
economic performance of Northland through the
construction of public orcommunity held
infrastructure or the development orregionally
strategic sectors. Council has determined these
sectors to be agriculture and horticulture, marine,
tourism and digital.

e Any project that is determined to potentially have
significant adverse impacts on social,
environmental, economic, or cultural well-being
will not be eligible for funding, regardless of the
positive impacts.

# Decisions on enabling investmentfundingare made
by council and must have been considered and
evaluated for funding by the Board of Norhland Inc
Ltd.

e Applicationsfor enabling investment funding must
be accompanied by a robust business case.

The following section provides a summary of the activities carried outin each of the five work programme
during 2019/20, including reporting against the 16 key performance indicator

Investment and PGF
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The intent of this work programme is to leverage economic growth in the region through the strategic
co-ordination, management and allocation of available public and private sector funding, including council's
Investment and Growth Reserve, promoting the region for investment and supporting the implementation of
the Tai Tokerau Northland Economic Action Plan.

The 2019/20 key performance targets and results for this work programme are:

Measure 2019/20

performan ce target

Percentage of IGR business case decisions(by the Board) made 100% Achieved, 100%
within 90 days of receiving application

Number of inward delegations hosted 4 Not Achieved, 0

Investment recommendations are accompanied by a robust 100% Achieved, 100%
business case

Number and value of high impact projects thatare implemented 3 Achieved, 3

There were no enabling investment projectrecommendations received from the board of Northland Inc. Limited
during2019/20. Three projects received project development fundingtotalling $144,334. The spread of COVID-19
during 2020 and the resulting travel restrictions putin place limited the ability of Northland Inc. to host inward
investment delegations.

Engagement, collaboration and visibility

The purpose of this work programme is to assistin growing the performance, productivity and profitability of
Northland businesses. Business capability funding (New Zealand Trade & Enterprise)and research and
development funding(Callaghan Innovation)isdelivered in Northland through the Regional Business Partnership
(RBP) at Northland Inc. Ltd. The Northland Chamber of Commerce partners with Northland Inc. Ltd to deliver
the NZTE contract for small businesses.

The 2019/20 key performance targets and results for this work programme are:

Measure 2019/20

performance target

Number of unique businesses assisted (by TA and industry) 230 Achieved, 624
Value of NZTE and Callaghan Innovation grant funding facilitated S1.0m Achieved, $2.3m
Client satisfaction (as measured by Net Promoter Score) 90% Achieved, 97%
Orchard occupancy rate 85% Achieved, 120%

The significant over achievement of the performance targets relating to business engagement and grant
funding facilitated was due to the COVID-19response service putin place to assist businesses. This included
a dedicated 0800 phone line, additional staff resources(including secondments from the district councils)and
new central government funding.
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Maori economic development

The broad scope of activities within this work programme are to engage with Maori to advance their aspirations
for economic development, support Maori business and partner with Maoriin investment, and economic
development projects.

The 2019/20 key performance target and result for this work programme is:

Measure 2019/20 Result

performance target

Number of unique Maori businesses assisted 50 Achieved, 118
Numberand value of high impact projectsthatareimplemented 1 Achieved,1
Value of NZTE and Callaghan Innovationgrant funding facilitated $25,000 Achieved §426,157

for Maori businesses

Client satisfaction (Net Promoter Score for Maori businesses) Data no longer Not Achieved
available

The smallnumber of clients and thelack of responses mean that there was notenough datato calculate aclient
satisfaction score for this activity.

As commented above, the significant over achievement of the performance business engagement and grant
funding facilitated was due to the COVID-19 response to assist businesses.

Destination management and marketing
The intent of this work programme is to promote the region by hosting and performing the functions of a
Regional Tourism Organisation in partnership with Tourism New Zealand and TIANZ, promoting investment

and market developmentin Northland's strategic growth sectors, increasing the value added from visitors and
promoting and marketing conferences and events in Northland.

The 2019/20 key performance targets and results for this work programme are:

Measure 2019/20 Result

performance farget

Visitor spend from target markets S1.175m Not Achieved,
S$1.014m

Value of industry investment in regional promotion activity $350,000 Not Achieved,
$175,808

Equivalent Advertising Value achieved from destination S16.5m Achieved, $19.2m

marketing

RTO Net Promoter Score Could not be Not Achieved

determined
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The value of visitor spending in the region and industry investment targets were not met due to the impact of
COVID-19 lockdown restrictions, whichfor example resulted in the postponement of TRENZ and the cancellation
of allfamils. Afinal end of June year net promoter score is not available as Northland Inc. no longerreceive this
data. Forthe nine-month period through to March 2020, Northland Inc recorded a RTO Net Promoter Score of
44,
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Regional Software Holdings Limited

Council isalso ashareholder of Regional Software
Holdings Limited (RSHL), being a major shared
services undertaking by the Northland, Waikato,
Taranaki, Horizons, West Coast and Southland
regional councils. Hawkes Bay Regional Council is
also a customer of Regional Software Holdings Ltd.

RSHL is responsible for the long-term maintenance
and enhancements of the IRIS (Integrated Regional
Information System)productand developedforanby
the shareholding councils. The software solution is
designed for the regional council specific functions
undertaken by those councils and has been a
remarkable success.

2019/20 was a year of accelerated growth and
development for Regional Software Holdings Ltd.

ForthelRIS product, the focus was on consolidation.
Fourreleases of new functionality were delivered over
the year with a total of six major enhancements and
16 minor enhancements. The focus during 2019/20
was onrolling out a new and improved mapping
interface, along with technical changes that have
resulted in significant performance improvements
for users.

As noted in previous annual reports, there is a need
to undertake areinvestment in the IRIS solution to

ensure the underlying technology remains current

and fit for purpose

Regional Software Holdings Ltd has identified
development of the roadmap for the next generation
of IRIS(IRIS Next Generation)as a key strategic
priority. Significant stepstowardsthis goal were taken
in 2019/20.

Thisinitiative is called IRIS Next Generation. The
scope of the work includes selection of a software
vendorand partner to deliver the software solution.
In conjunction with this, RSHL intends to lead the
development of consistent good practice processes
for the regional council sector. This approach builds
on a key lesson learnt from the IRIS programme, that
having councils agree on consistent good practice
processessignificantly reduces the cost of developing
and operating IRIS software.

Theintentionisthat IRIS NextGen will be cloud based
with better online and mobile features. IRIS NextGen
will be more efficient for staff and customers.

In2019/20 RSHL worked with 10 councils toshort-list
potential partners to help us deliver IRIS Next
Generation. RSHL has commenced a formal Request
for Proposal process identify a future partner and

solution. 12 councils are participating in this process.
We intend for IRIS NextGen to be a sector-wide
initiative.

RSHLs strategic priorities for IRIS Next Generation
are:

e Tocomplete the RFP to find a new solution and
partner.

» Obtain the necessary buy-in from sector leaders
for the development of consistent good practice
process.

e Toattractnew councilstothe IRIS Programme and
engage them in the development of good practice.

» Develop consistent good practice process for the
sector, including a governance framework

Regional Software Holdings Ltd.'s philosophy is to
develop only that softwarewhichis necessary deliver
a complete solution for regional councils. With IRIS
NextGenitis expected thatcommercial software will
be a greater proportion of the solution than is the
case with IRIS. RSHL is also aware of the need to
createa transition plan for existingIRIS councils from
IRIS to IRIS NextGen.

It willalso be necessary to develop long-term financial
projections for Regional Software Holdings Ltd and
consider the appropriate future structure for the
company.

We have previously noted that Regional Software
Holdings Ltd is working with the regional council
sector toroll out the Regional Council Collaboration
(ReCoColinitiative.

There is a focus in the sector on collaboration,
development of shared services and more use of
Council Controlled Organisations. RSHL and its
shareholding councils are aligned with this direction.

ReCoCo facilitates unitary and regional councils
enteringinto collaborative initiativeswhere there are
overlapping or shared objectives, covering areas of
common interest or joint responsibility. Regional
Software Holdings Ltd is the delivery vehicle used to
facilitate and administer ReCoCo.

The ReCoCo programme became fully operational
from Ist July 2018.

RSHL receives funding from across the regional
council sector to deliver collaborative projects that
are put forward by the Regional Council Special
Interest Groups (SIGs).
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ReCoCo is now well established with more than 10
projects in flight, and an established funding model
in place. Inthe 2020 financial year, more than
S160,000 has beeninvested into collaborative projects
for the sector. Notably, the sector implementation
plan adopted by the CE Forum includes several
projects which are tagged specifically for ReCoCo.

In addition to this RSHL has an agreement with the
RCEOsGroup toassistwith the management of sector
work programmes, including:

* Funding management,
* Procurement and payment, and
e Qutcome tracking.

The sector recognises the benefits of collaboration
between councils, as a result the number and size of
collaborative projects is growing each year. As the
volume of shared initiatives increases, councils face
administrative challenges with paying invoices and
recouping costs from other councils. It is also
increasingly important that the sector can
demonstrate the outcomes achieved from
collaboration.

Extendingthe ReCoCo model to support sector-wide
work programmes helps toaddress these issues and
opportunities.

To support accelerated growth and development
RSHL has continued with the establishment of
independent business infrastructure.

In 2019 the Board awelcomed Mark Donnelly as the

full-time General Manager. The benefits of having a

full-time general manager can clearly be seenin the
accelerated progress of the company.

In2019 RSHL transitioned it's financial services from
Horizons Regional Council to West Coast Regional
Council. However as the activities of the company
continue to expand, it is no longer sustainable for a
council to provide financial services in a part time
capacity. Accordingly, in June 2020 ONLA were
engaged todeliveryfinancial services for RSHL. ONLA
are based in Palmerston North and have previous
experience supporting Council Controlled
Organisations.

RSHL has completed a branding project to create a
brand and supporting collateral for RSHL. The results
of this can be seenin thisreport. As we seek to
increase our engagement and involvementin the
sector it was essential that we have a recognisable
and engaging brand.

Over the past 12months, RSHL hastransitioned away
from Waikato Regional Council for records
management, RSHL business records are now
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maintainedin Microsoft-365. This has made it easier
to collaborate and reduced our dependence on
Waikato Regional Council. The necessary Information
Technology and Information Management policies
are in place.

Financially, the company continues to be in a sound
position, as planned. Regional Software Holdings
Ltd.'srevenue comes from license charges and fees
from the shareholding councils. This funding is used
forthe maintenance and development of the IRIS
product. Therefore, the company does not trade to
make a profit. Rather, it charges to coverits planned
level of expenditure.

The growth in the user base of IRIS allows the
companytoreducethe license charges andfees. This
is a real tangible financial benefit to the regional
councils involved in IRIS.

The success of IRIS and Regional Software Holdings
Ltd is due to the collaborative approach of the six
regional councils and the wider sector. The success
andrichness of the IRIS productisareflection of the
contribution, expertise, and commitment of ateam
of well over 100 people from all the shareholding
councils, inavariety of roles.

The outlook for Regional Software Holdings Ltd and
the IRIS product is bright and there are significant
opportunities to support the activities and
achievements of New Zealand regional councils and
unitary authorities.

Shareholding

Environment Waikato 32.75%
Northland Regional Council 16.75%
Horizons Regional Council 15.50%
Taranaki Regional Council 15.50%
Southland Regional Council 15.50%
West Coast Regional Council 4.00%

Our council’s experience

This council continues to maximise the benefits of
the IRIS solution and the high level of integration
achieved with other core application such as
Document Management, Geographic and Financial
Information Systems. For Northland, the collaborative
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approach to the project continues to bring together
the bestideas, practises and experiencesinto a
solution that is fit for purpose, performs well and is
well received by users.
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Statement of Intent and performance targets
RSHL has prepared a Statement of Intent ending 30 June 2019. The following table summarises the performance
targets and results for the 2019/20 financial year.

Level of achievement [Comment

Undertake an annual survey of usersand  Complete In Progress Thefirstannual survey wasundertaken

shareholder/customer Councils in relation to in July 2019.
product performance, Datacom support and
RSHL support. The next survey will be in August 2020.

Baseline to be developed following the
completion of the first survey

Develop, approve, communicate and refine Complete  Achieved The productroadmap for IRIS was

the annual roadmap for RSHL major presented, dicussed and agreed at the

enhancement projects. board meeting in December 2019 and
the roadmap for the year was approved

Draftannual roadmap presented to the Board as part of the business plan.

by 31 December of each year for the following

year.

Adoption by the Board by 30 June of eachyear.

Majorenhancement projectsidentified onthe Complete Achieved There were four releases of new
annual road map are completed on time and functionality were delivered with a total
within approved budget or (for itemsin of six major enhancementsin 2019/20.
progress) on track against their agreed

timeline and budget at 30 June of each year.

Budgets and processesfor support and minor Complete  Achieved
enhancements are approved by the Board by
30 June each year and delivery is within these
budgetsiseffectively managed by the Advisory

Group (AG).

User Groups and business representatives Complete Achieved Representatives from all IRIS councils
are engaged in the development of the Major have been actively involved in
Enhancement Annual Roadmap developing the enhanced roadmap.
RSHL will operate within 5% (plus or minus) Achieved Not Spend on capital development has been
of its overall annual budget. Achieved reduced in favour of operational spend

toidentify the eventual replacement for
IRIS. ReCoCo activity continues to be
unpredictable, although this does not
impact on RSHL balance sheet.

All variations to budget have been
approved by the board.

Annual charges will be kept to a maximum of Complete Achieved
2% increase year on year

Monitor the Regional Council sector market Complete Achieved ReCoCo has helped to extend the

and explore/respond to opportunities to customer base of RSHL with all 16
expand the customerand/or shareholderbase councilsinthesectorengagedinoneor
of RSHL
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Performance target evel of achievement [Comment

Non-financial 2019/20 2018/19

more projects. In addition, 11 councils
are working with RSHL to identify the
eventual replacement for IRIS.

Consider, evaluate and if appropriate, Complete Achieved Thisis beingachieved through the
implement new serviceareasorareas outside ReCoCo initiative.
of the current scope of IRIS

Be a service delivery agent for wider regionalComplete  Achieved RSHL currently has 10 ReCoCo

council sector and related bodies information initiatives under management and
management projects (ReCoCo)and related several initiatives in development with
shared services. the SIGs.

Projects to bedelivered on time and on budget RSHL has been engaged to manage the
as agreed in each of the Statements of Works delivery of all sector shared work
between RSHL and the Regional Council programmes under the Sector Shared
Corporate Services. Finance System initiative.

ltshould be noted that the achievementof some of the above performance targetsare dependenton decisions
to be made by parties over which the board of directors has limited influence.
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TITLE: Risk Management Activity- Update
ID: A1356751
From: Kym Ace, Corporate Systems Champion

Executive summary/Whakarapopototanga

The Risk Management Activity Update Report outlines the summary of Council’s progress in risk
management related activities including updates on Corporate and Group Risks and deep dives into
Corporate Risk RC00015 Core IT applications/systems, RC00014 Cyber security attack and RC00012
Noncompliance with Health and Safety at Work Act.

Recommendation

That the report ‘Risk Management Activity- Update ' by Kym Ace, Corporate Systems
Champion and dated 26 August 2020, be received.

Background/Tuhinga

Risks Register

1. The corporate and group risk registers have now been migrated from the excel spreadsheets
into the Promapp risk module.
2. The risks and their treatment/s (mitigation action/s) are being managed by staff through the

Promapp risk module. Risk reporting will be provided quarterly to the Audit and Risk
Subcommittee. The monitoring of the corporate and group risk registers will be performed
by the Corporate Systems Champion on a monthly basis.

3. The corporate and group risks, their risk types, pre-control (inherent) and post control
(residual rating) are summarised in Appendix 1.

Deep Dives

4. The Corporate System Champion facilitates risk owners to provide deep dives into each

corporate and or group risk in accordance with the following schedule (Table 1), initially

focussing on the corporate risk with the highest pre-controls risk rating e.g. Health and

safety, core IT applications/systems and cyber security refer Appendix 2. The number of risks

that would require deep dives will depend on the risk appetite set in the framework i.e. all

risk that exceed council’s post-control moderate risk appetite for implemented controls.
Table One

# | Corporate Risk Sept 2020 Dec 2020 March 2020
1 | Core IT applications/systems v
2 | Climate change v
3 | Treaty Settlements v
4 | Investment Portfolio financial risk \
5 | Non-Compliance with Health and Safety v

at Work Act 2015
6 | Poor State of Sustainable Solvents Site \4
7 | Changes in central government policy v

impacting council’s budgets and activities
8 | Cyber Security attack v
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9 | Changes in political direction v

10 | Inability to deliver on councillor \
expectations

Attachments/Nga tapirihanga
Attachment 1: Corporate and Group Risk § T
Attachment 2: Corporate Risk Deep Dives § &

Authorised by Group Manager

Name: Bruce Howse, Group Manager - Corporate Excellence,
Title: Group Manager - Corporate Excellence
Date:
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Appendix One.

1.0 Corporate Risk Scores
Printed Monday, September 21, 2020 11:05 AM

INHERENT RISKS RESIDUAL RISKS

Residual Likelihood

Likalihood

Consequence Resldual Consequence

Core IT applications/systems are not designed and/or implemented to support all organisational processes

1. RESIDUAL
@ There is a risk that our core IT applications/systems are not designed and/or implemented to support all organisational processes as an 20.0
@ integrated single solution. There are gaps in our core systems such as People & Capability, Enterprise Assets, Customer Relationship EXTREME

Management, and Contract Management. Current systems are unable to support organisational needs and we cannot deliver the tools that are
required by staff to support them in delivering the LTP activities. Systems will break if nothing is dene. For all documents: hitps:// IMHERENT
thehub:8443/documents/fA108896 20.0

Corporate Risk Register, Financial, Reputation, Service Delivery EXTREME

Owner: Bruce Howse

2. TreatySettlements RESIDUAL
8 There is a risk that Northland Treaty settlements will resultin take-on 16.0
EXTREME

costs for NRC Corporate Risk Register, Financial, Service Delivery

Owner: Ben Lee INHERENT

16.0

EXTREME

Climate Change Risk - extreme weather resulting in flood

NRC does not provide the necessary response to an extreme weather resulting in floeding im pacting council's infrastructure and the community.

@@w

Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

INHERENT
Owmer: Jonathan Gibbard 15.0

EXTREME

Climate Change Risk - extreme weather impacting CDEM responsiveness

There is a risk that CDEM responsiveness will be impacted by an extreme weather event resulting in the

(OIGIS

community being compromised. Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Tony Phipps INHERENT

15.0

EXTREME
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Cyber security attack

There is a risk of cyber security attack causing disruption to Council systems

and possible loss of data Corporate Risk Register, Financial, Reputation,

Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Core IT Systems / Applications will stop working

There is a risk that our core IT systems/applications will stop working and vendors will cease support as they are end of life resulting in productivity and

security issues.

Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Investment portfolio financial risk

There is a risk councils investment performance will be impacted by:
-financial Investment market volatility

-Marsden Maritime Holdings dividend diversion

-Falling fees and charges in economic recession

- Dependency on commercial returnsin

volatile time, resulting in revenue and service

delivery being impacted. (Note: 40% of

revenue is non-rates)

Corporate Risk Register, Financial

Owner: Bruce Howse

Noncompliance with Health and Safety at Work Act2015

There is a risk that council does not provide a safe and health work environment for staff, contractors or visitor events that may result in loss of life
or permanent disability therefore not complying with Health and Safety at Work Act 2015

Corporate Risk Register, Health and Safety

Owner: Bruce Howse

Climate Change risk - Council's policy and planning controls do not manage the risks adequately resulting

in the community being compromised

There is a risk that Council's policy and planning controls do not manage the risks associated with climate change adequately (e.g. coastal inundation

due to sea level rise) resulting in the community being compromised
Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery
Owner: Jonathan Gibbard

Changes in central Government policy impacting council's budgets and activities.

There is a risk to NRC that central government policy could change at any time outside the legislative process, which can potentially impact Council's
budgets and operational activities. These changes can cause significant costs to ratepayers with little consultation and no useful rights of appeal.

Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Inability to deliver on councillor expectations
There is a risk that NRCis unable to deliver on councillor
expectations Corporate Risk Register, Reputation, Service
Delivery

Owner: Ben Lee

ITEM:

5.2

Attachment 1

INHEREMT

20.0

EXTREME

INHEREMT

12.0

INHEREMT

15.0

EXTREME

RESIDUAL

10.0

HIGH

INHEREMT

15.0

EXTREME

RESIDUAL

INHEREMT

12.0

HIGH

RESIDUAL

INHEREMT

12.0

HIGH

RESIDUAL

8.0

HIGH

INHEREMT

9.0

HIGH
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OQs

14.

®

O@s

@@

GO

Changes in political direction

There is a risk that changes in political direction will result in activity resources (5, people, etc.)
having to be redirected. Corporate Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Ben Lee

Keeping on top of / Resourcing legislative changes

There is a risk that we don't keep on top of legislative changes because of lack of resources or information. This may result in us being

challenged and potentially judicial review Corporate Risk Register, Legislative

Owner: Colin Dall

Personnel - Loss of knowledge and skills

There is a risk of loss and skills caused by staff leaving or absent (e.g. on leave) or a lack of succession and developments plans that may result in gaps

in knowledge and information. Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Procurement

There is a risk that council fails to comply with best practice procurement activity as a result of:

Not following AOG guidance

Not following policy and procedures
This may result in:

Sub-optimal procurement decisions

Legal challenge

Risk of fraud

Corporate Risk Register, Reputation, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Employment documentation not being saved to EDRMS

There is a risk of incomplete employment documentation (especially signed agreements and signed variations to contracts) because Managers are not

saving these in the EDRMS. This may result in incorrect decisions.
Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Information assets stored outside of core business systems

There is a risk that NRC information assets is stored outside of core business systems (EDRMS, network drives) and are therefore not

easily discoverable or protected. Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Data loss through theft, unauthorized access or distribution

ITEM:

5.2

Attachment 1

RESIDUAL

INHEREMT

10.0

HIGH

RESIDUAL

8.0

HIGH

INHEREMT

16.0

EXTREME

INHEREMT

INHEREMT

INHEREMT

9.0

HIGH

INHEREMT

12.0

HIGH

There is a risk of data loss through theft, unauthorised access or unauthorised distribution of information resulting in damage to reputation and informat

Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

INHEREMT
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@

Capability and operational capacity to manage events and directives
There is a risk that Northland Regional Council does not possess the capability and operational capacity necessary to provide the required response to

events (including natural hazard, pollution, biosecurity and emergency events, or Government direction) that may result in us being unable to deliver
our LTP activities and services.

INHEREMT

Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Climate Change Risk - changes in Government Policy - impacting council's strategies, plans, policies and

Service delivery (e.g. national risk reduction plans)

There is a risk that council's plans, policies and service delivery will be impacted by changes in govermment

climate change policy. Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery INHERENT

Owner: Jonathan Gibbard 12.0
HIGH

Operational capacity of NRC buildings in the event of a fire or otherdisaster
There is a risk that the operational capacity of NRC buildings would be impacted in the event of a
fire or other disaster. Corporate Risk Register, Health and Safety, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

5.0

MODERAT
E

Maritime operational risks: ship grounding/ collision, major shipping incident and failure of system
There is a risk of a maritime incident (including a ship grounding / collision ora major shipping incident) caused by an accident or system failure
that may result in unlimited liability or action being brought against NRC.
Corporate Risk Register, Financial

) INHERENT
Owner: Tony Phipps 10.0

HIGH

Fraud Corruption and Dishonesty

There is a risk that NRC does not mitigate exposure to fraudulent, corrupt or dishonest activities that may result in negative multi-media coverage
requiring significant additional work to repair stakehelder confidence.
Corporate Risk Register, Financial, Legislative, Reputation

INHERENT
Owner: Bruce Howse 10.0

HIGH

Contract Management

There is a risk that contract management activities do not deliver the objectives caused by not having a system and adequate processes to
manage contracts. This may result in compromised service delivery, cost overruns, or actions taken that don't align to the project
Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

INHERENT
Owner: Bruce Howse

Divisions in Council
There is a risk that divisions develop in council that result in council not working as one team
with a common purpose Corporate Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Ben Lee INHERENT

12.0

HIGH
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®

CICH

Ocs

Councillors influenced/captured by local interest group
There is a risk that council will be influenced/captured by a local interest group that could effect their ability

to make regional decisions Corporate Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Ben Lee INHERENT

12.0

HIGH

Policy and procedures inconsistently applied effecting decision
There is a risk that if policies and procedures are inconsistently applied decision will be effected that may resultin
dissatisfied staff and stakeholders. Corporate Risk Register, Reputation, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Decision being made which breaches delegated authority
There is a risk that a decision is challenged caused by a breach in delegated authority. This may resultin a judicial or audit review with associated
reputational and political exposure. Corporate Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Ben Lee INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Investment level in RSHL do not sustain IRIS product
There is a risk that the IRIS product maintenance and development cannot be maintained because of the investment levels
required into sustain RSHL Corporate Risk Register, Financial

Owner: Malcolm Nicelson INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Climate change - Greenhouse gas emission
There is a risk that council is perceived to be inadequately addressing green house gas emissions
from its own operations Corporate Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Jonathan Gibbard INHERENT

Northland Transport Alliance (NTA) triangular employment issue

There is a risk that NRC will be implicated in a NTA triangular employment issue should a PG claim be made by a non NRC employee. This may result
in potential reputation damage and/or reputational damage.
Corporate Risk Register, Reputation
ow B H INHERENT
ner: Bruce Howse
6.0

MODERAT
E

Variation to employment agreements having incorrect/inappropriate wording

There is a risk of variation to employment agreements having incorrect/inappropriate wording caused by Managers not consulting with HR resulting
in non-compliance with legislation. Corporate Risk Register, Legislative

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E
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Breach of legislation because of lack of knowledge of wider legislative requirements
There is a risk of breach of legislation caused by a lack of knowledge of wider legislative requirements resulting in potential
legal challenge and/or litigation Corporate Risk Register, Legislative

Owner: Bruce Howse

Non-compliance with the Vulnerable Children's Act

There is a risk of nen-compliance with the Vulnerable Children's Act caused by having a molester interacting with children or being unaware of the
requirements resulting in potential legal challenge and/or litigation

Corporate Risk Register, Legislative

Owner: Bruce Howse

Organisational capability and continuity would not be maintained because of a lack of succession planning.

There is a risk that either organisational capability and continuity would not be maintained because of a lack of succession planning. This may result
in loss of knowledge, no backup, increased atfrition costs, work streams being compromised.

Corporate Risk Register, Reputation, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Managers not following proper disciplinary procedures

There is a risk that managers do not following proper disciplinary procedures caused by lack of knowledge and robust processes resultingin a
personal grievance payout and bad publicity.

Corporate Risk Register, Reputation, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

Contractor vs Employee

There is a risk of a service provider being taken on as a contractor vs an employee caused by processes not being followed. This may result in Council
being taken to the Employment Authority and potentially having to pay costs (including annual and sick leave).

Corporate Risk Register

Owner: Bruce Howse

Disclosure of private information
There is a risk that private information is disclosed cause by accidental or malicious acts which may result in NRC breach of legislation
and potentially costs incurred. Corporate Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Bruce Howse

Legal risk

There is a risk that NRC does not comply with legislation that may result in a breach of legislation that cannot be resolved internally and may rise
to ajudicial review or action and potentially penalties.

Corporate Risk Register, Legislative

Owner: Bruce Howse

ITEM: 5.2
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41. Organisational culture - silo mentality

('D There is a risk of service inefficiencies caused by organisational culture and sile mentality which may result in:
@ -double up activities
-not the best solution implemented

-adverse effects on other departments INHERENT

Corporate Risk Register, Financial, Service Delivery 4.0
MODERAT

Owner: Ben Lee E

Loss of physical information due to natural disaster

There is a risk that physical information assets are lost due to a natural disaster (flood, etc.) that may result in us being unable to

Ol0/5

answer information requests. Corporate Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

10.0

HIGH

1.1 Group Risk Scores

Printed Monday, September 21, 2020 11:05 AM

INHERENT RISKS RESIDUAL RISKS

litkdkalihood
d widiifiedineme ihood

Consequence ,  Residual Consequence

Biosecurity could not defend an enforcement action that was challenged because of a lack of
documented process controls

OIO

There is a risk to council that Biosecurity could not defend an enforcement action that was challenged, because there is a lack of clear
documented processes that are consistently followed.

) ) INHERENT
Group Risk Register 20.0
Owner: Jonathan Gibbard EXTREME

Poor state of Sustainable Solvents Site

There is a potential risk to Council regarding the Sustainable Solvents Ltd site in Ruakaka because of the poor state of the site. Potential further
enforcement costs, with no chance of cost recovery from offender.

@@

Group Risk Register, Financial, Reputation, Service Delivery

INHEREMT

20.0

EXTREME

Owner: Colin Dall
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Spatial data storage integrity and management RESIDUAL

There is a risk that the storage, integrity and management of spatial data doesn't follow acceptable information management practices and 9.0
HIGH

OIOM

standards this can result in duplication of data.

) ) ) ) INHERENT
Group Risk Register, Service Delivery 16.0

Owner: Bruce Howse EXTREME

Hydrometric network

There is a risk that hydrometric data will not be available caused by the loss of a hydrometric network site which may result in us not knowing

@G@»

what is happening (ties into civil defence). Group Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Colin Dall INHERENT

9.0

HIGH

Hilltop database support

There is a risk that we will be unable to get adequate support for the Hilltop database caused by the product being sold to Hill Laboratories.
This may result in data issues and product instability.

@@

Group Risk Register, Service Delivery
INHERENT
Owner: Colin Dall 12.0

HIGH

Hilltop data integrity

There is a risk that the Hilltop data integrity could be compromised by system errors and intreduced issues (setup and bugs) which could result in data
loss/error and subsequent reporting issues.

e

Group Risk Register, Service Delivery
INHERENT
Owner: Colin Dall 16.0

EXTREME

Kensington redevelopment H&S Construction Site

There is a health and safety construction site risk associated with the

@O~

Kensington redevelopment. Group Risk Register, Health and Safety

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Dargaville redevelopment H&S construction Site

There is a health and safety construction risk associated with the Dargaville

ek

construction site Group Risk Register, Health and Safety

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Information incorrectly stored and therefore not complying with the Public Records Act

There is a risk that information is stored incorrectly and therefore doesn't comply with the Public Records Act and/or Information Management

@e@*

Standards

INHERENT
Group Risk Register, Service Delivery 9.0
Owner: Bruce Howse HIGH
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Marine Farm abandoned structures

There is an environmental risk that abandoned marine farm structures will cause navigational safety issues and resulting

@3

cleanup costs (Kaipara Harbour) Group Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Colin Dall INHERENT

16.0

EXTREME

Dam Failure

=y
-y

01

There is a risk of dam failure as a result of the dam register not actively being managed. This may result in potential impact to councils resources to
investigate any resulting event. This mainly relates to non-consented dam structures.

Group Risk Register, Reputation
Owner: Colin Dall

INHEREMT

Access issues to field sites

There is a risk that landowners might not allow access across private

oS

land to field sites Group Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Colin Dall INHERENT

15.0

EXTREME

Advising public on environmental incidents

There is a risk that protocol are not followed in advising stakeholders and the public of environmental incidents. This may resultin

OGs

public health not being protected Group Risk Register, Reputation

Owner: Colin Dall INHERENT

8.0

HIGH

ReCoCo work program doesn’t deliver shared capabilities within the required timeframe

There is a risk that the ReCoCo work program doesn't deliver shared capabilities in a timeframe that meets NRC needs resulting in NRC needing to
pursue alternatives, increasing investment required.

—
a)n

®

Group Risk Register, Service Delivery
INHERENT
Owner: Bruce Howse 12.0

HIGH

Flyger Road Nursery - strategy and LTP LOS

There is a risk that we will not meet our soil conservation strategy and LTP levels of services caused by poles not being available from

@Cs

the Flyger Road Nursery Group Risk Register, Service Delivery

Owner: Jonathan Gibbard INHERENT
6.0

MODERAT
E
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1.2  Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption Risk Scores
Printed Monday, September 21, 2020 11:05 AM

(5 Theft and inappropriate use of council assets
There is a risk of theft or and inappropriate use of council assets Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse

INHEREMT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Conflict of Interest

There is a risk of corruption where a conflict of interest exists Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Service Delivery

OION

Owner: Bruce Howse

INHEREMT

9.0

HIGH

é Bribery and inappropriate receipt of gifts & secondary employment

There is a risk that bribery and inappropriate receipt of gifts & secondary employment - could result in inappropriate

®

decisions being made, fraud, bad press etc. Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Reputation

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Supplier Invoice Fraud

There is a risk of supplier invoice Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Financial, Service Delivery

OC»

Owner: Bruce Howse
INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Timesheet and expense claim fraud

There is a risk of timesheet and expense claim fraud

@@

Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Financial, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse gHS RENT
MODERAT
E

Recruitment Fraud

There is a risk of recruitment Fraud

@@e

Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Service Delivery

INHEREMT

6.0

Owner: Bruce Howse

MODERAT
E
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7. Theft of Bus Service Revenue

There is a risk of theft of Bus Service

e®

Revenue Fraud, Dishonesty and

Corruption, Financial Owner: Bruce INHERENT

6.0

MODERAT
E

Howse

8. Material misstatement of the financial statements
(@ There is a risk of Material misstatement of the
financial statements Fraud, Dishonesty and
Corruption, Financial INHERENT

Owner: Bruce Howse 6.0
MODERAT
E

9. Payroll Fraud
c
() There is a risk of payroll fraud
@ Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse INHERENT

3.0

LOW

Theft of Koha
There is a risk of theft of keha

(OO

Fraud, Dishonesty and Corruption, Service Delivery

Owner: Bruce Howse
INHERENT

3.0

LOW
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Appendix 2 — Corporate risk deep dives

RC0O0015 Core IT applications/systems are not designed
and/for implemented to support all organisational
processes

There is a risk that our core IT applications/systems are not
designed and/or implemented to support all organisational
processes as an integrated single solution. There are gaps in our
core systems such as People & Capability, Enterprise Assets,
Customer Relationship Management, and Contract Management.
Current systems are unable to support organisational needs and
we cannot deliver the tools that are required by staff to support
them in delivering the LTP activities. Systems will break if nothing
is done.

Pre-controls

(Inherent) Risk  Risk

Likelihood

Frequent Major

Pre-controls

Consequence

Pre-controls Risk Post-control Risk Owner
Ranking (Residual) Risk
Ranking

Extreme Extreme GM
Corporate
Excellence -
Bruce Howse

Type of Risk: Service delivery, financial, reputation

Background:

Council’s Information Services Team:

plans

agile.

Appetite: Not included in this report as risk appetite is still in development as part of the risk maturity evaluation.

NRC aims to be a technology enabled and information led organisation. We are in an increasingly digital age characterised by rapidly evolving
technology, ongoing business change and increasing expectations of our stakeholders including customers and staff. In order to meet these
expectations, capture the opportunities and continue to deliver efficient and effective services NRC needs to continually review and invest in ensuring
that our technology platforms and solutions remain current and continue to enable our organisation.

- continually review and revise how Council delivers information services to ‘keep up’ and make the most of technology enabled opportunities

- provide information and technology services and leadership to support Council to fulfil statutory roles and achieve outcomes

- operate robust IT management processes that support a secure, efficient and enabling technology environment

- remain aware of the significant and increasing cyber security threats ensuring a balance of flexibility with risk and maintaining response and recovery

- plan for future by with continuous review and investment in technology (software, systems and hardware) to enable us to remain current, secure and

ITEM: 5.2
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Key Treatments or mitigation Activities

Responsible
Person

Timeframe

Signoff

Frequency

Status

Enterprise System indicative business case developed & Carol Cottam 18 Feb 2020 | Approved by ELT | Once Complete
approved and Council in

June 2019
Enterprise Solution detailed business case in development eta Carol Cottam June 2020 Detailed business | Once Complete
June 2020 Linda Harrison case developed.
IRIS replacement - RHSL request for expression of interest was Carol Cottam December Detailed Quarterly In progress
completed in 2019. Development of detailed requirements for 2020 requirements are
RFP is underway. Intent is that this will inform investment being generated
requirements. through

collaboration

across 10

councils. RFP to

be issued in

December 2020.

Now tracking

behind Enterprise

Solution.
Ensure our current systems are updated to current Carol Cottam On-going All applications Monthly Implemented
releases/versions are running on

supported

versions
Alternative interim solutions considered and assessed based on Carol Cottam On-going Requests are Quarterly Implemented

critical needs.

reviewed when
raised, no
additional
requirement
identified
recently
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RC00014 Cyber security attack Pre-controls Pre-controls  Pre-controls Risk Post-control Risk Owner
(Inherent) Risk  Risk Ranking (Residual) Risk
Likelihood Conseguence Ranking
There is a risk of cyber security attack causing disruption to Severe Extreme High GM
Council systems and possible loss of data Corporate
Excellence -
Bruce Howse
Appetite: Not included in this report as risk appetite is still in development as part of the risk maturity evaluation.
Type of Risk: Service delivery, financial, reputation
Background:
Information security relates to both electronic and manual storage of data, and corporate/personal information. In addition, it considers real time
information/instructions that are electronically transmitted through the operational network. Threats to information can be generated externally to NRC
or from within the organisation. There is an increasing global trend of cyber-crime therefore the inherent risk assessment assumes that with no controls
such as firewalls it is almost certain that NRC would fall victim to an intentional or opportunistic cyber event. This type of event would have a major
consequence for NRC impacting core services. In addition to the several technical preventative controls in place that are operating effectively, NRC has
compensating soft controls around staff and contractor competency to be alert to activities such as phishing attacks and to ensure the protection of
physical information.
Council’s Information Services Team:
- operate robust IT management processes that support a secure, efficient and enabling technology environment
- remain aware of the significant and increasing cyber security threats ensuring a balance of flexibility with risk and maintaining response and recovery
plans
- plan for future by with continuous review and investment in technology (software, systems and hardware) to enable us to remain current, secure and
agile.
Key Treatments or mitigation Activities Responsible Timeframe Signoff Frequency Status
Person
Multiple layers of defences (Perimeter & endpoint) Carol Cottam On-going Several products | Quarterly Implemented
are utilised to
provide multi-
layer defences.
Additional
security layers
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have been added
to provide cover
to a distributed
working
environment.

Education programme (K5 SSE phriendly phishing, fraud and
seminars)

Carol Cottam

On-going

Online training
courses are

available for staff.

Quarterly

Implemented

Network accounts with elevated permissions are changed
regularly and stored in an encrypted password safe

Carol Cottam

On-going

Privileged
account
passwords are
stored in
password safe.
Passwords on
privileged
accounts are
changed when
key staff leave

Quarterly

Implemented

Cyber Security Audit

Carol Cottam

On-going

A review of Cyber
and Information
security risks is
being undertaken
from August.

Quarterly

In progress

Undertake Cloud Software baseline audit to identify how many
cloud software solutions are used by staff to assist with the
development of appropriate controls

Carol Cottam

On-going

Requests are
reviewed when
raised, no
additional
requirement
identified
recently

Quarterly

Outstanding

ITEM: 5.2
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Risk Owner

RC00012 Noncompliance with Health and Safety at Work Act Pre-controls Pre-controls  Pre-controls Risk Post-control
2015 (Inherent) Risk  Risk Ranking (Residual) Risk
Likelihood Conseguence Ranking
Severe Extreme High GM
Corporate
Excellence -
Bruce Howse

There is a risk that council does not provide a safe and health
work environment for staff, contractors or visitor events that
may result in loss of life or permanent disability therefore not
complying with Health and Safety at Work Act 2015
Appetite: Not included in this report as risk appetite is still in development as part of the risk maturity evaluation.
Type of Risk: Health and Safety, service delivery
Background:
The Health and Safety at Work Act 2015 makes everyone's health and safety responsibilities clear:
s Businesses have the primary responsibility for the health and safety of their workers and any other workers they influence or direct. They are
also responsible for the health and safety of people atrisk from the work of their business.
¢ Officers (company directors, partners, board members, chief executives) must do due diligence to make sure the business understands and is
meeting its health and safety responsibilities.
¢ Workers must take reasonable care for their own health and safety and that their actions don't adversely affect the health and safety of others.
They must also follow any reasonable health and safety instruction given to them by the business and cooperate with any reasonable business
policy or procedure relating to health and safety in the workplace
« Other people who come into the workplace, such as visitors or customers, also have some health and safety duties to ensure that their actions
don’t adversely affect the health and safety of others
Key Treatments or mitigation Activities

Responsible Timeframe Signoff Frequency Status

Person

Health and Safety Strategy to identify, prioritise and schedule Beryl Steele On-going In place and Annually Implemented
actions/initiatives/projects to align Council's practices with good operational
practice
Health and Safety Committee terms of Reference established and | Beryl Steele On-going Reviewed at the Quarterly Implemented
reviewed end of 2019
Health and Safety Policy is reviewed as scheduled and available Beryl Steele On-going Reviewed June Every 24 Implemented
to staff on the express 2019. Next review | months
June 2021
Health and safety processes and practices documented Beryl Steele On-going On-going as per Annually In progress
H&S Action plan
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Health and Safety hazard/risk register Beryl Steele On-going Has been Monthly In progress
reviewed. Itis a
living document
so will require
continual review
and updating.
Health and Safety Training: Beryl Steele On-going H&S Strategy Annually In progress
- induction action plan
- hazard specific includes
- task safety plans development and
- contractor H&S management review of these
- H&S Leadership items
- H&S Representatives
- Incident Management
Monitor and report health and safety incidents and trends to Beryl Steele On-going Monthly reportto | Every six Implemented
health and safety committee, ELT and Audit and Risk Sub- Jess Matson H&S Committee. months
Committee Kelcie Mills Quarterly

reporting to ELT
and six-monthly
to Audit and Risk
Sub-committee.
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TITLE: Business with the Public Excluded

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to recommend that the public be excluded from the proceedings of this
meeting to consider the confidential matters detailed below for the reasons given.

Recommendations

1. That the public be excluded from the proceedings of this meeting to consider
confidential matters.
2. That the general subject of the matters to be considered whilst the public is excluded,

the reasons for passing this resolution in relation to this matter, and the specific
grounds under the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for
the passing of this resolution, are as follows:

Item No. Item Issue Reasons/Grounds
6.1 Confirmation of Confidential Minutes - 24 The public conduct of the proceedings would be likely
June 2020 to result in disclosure of information, as stated in the

open section of the meeting -.

6.2 Up date form AON Insurance The public conduct of the proceedings would be likely
to result in disclosure of information, the withholding
of which is necessary to protect information where
the making available of the information would be
likely unreasonably to prejudice the commercial
position of the person who supplied or who is the
subject of the information s7(2)(b)(ii) and the
withholding of which is necessary to enable council to
carry out, without prejudice or disadvantage,
commercial activities s7(2)(h).

3. That the Independent Financial Advisor be permitted to stay during business with the
public excluded.

Considerations

1. Options

Not applicable. This is an administrative procedure.
2. Significance and Engagement

This is a procedural matter required by law. Hence when assessed against council policy is deemed
to be of low significance.

3. Policy and Legislative Compliance

The report complies with the provisions to exclude the public from the whole or any part of the
proceedings of any meeting as detailed in sections 47 and 48 of the Local Government Official
Information Act 1987.

4. Other Considerations

Being a purely administrative matter; Community Views, Maori Impact Statement, Financial
Implications, and Implementation Issues are not applicable.

ID: A1370066 212



	Contents
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	4.1  Confirmation of Minutes - 24 June 2020
	5 Reports
	5.1  2019/20 Annual Report and Deloitte Audit Report
	Supporting Information
	2019/20 Deloitte Audit Report
	2019/20 Geoff Copstick Commentary
	2019/20 Annual Report Summary
	2019/20 Annual Report


	5.2  Risk Management Activity- Update
	Supporting Information
	Corporate and Group Risk
	Corporate Risk Deep Dives


	Recommendation to close the meeting

